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IN MEMORIAM

John M. Ravinski

K.P. Regional High School Committee 1954- 1958

Zoning Board of Appeals 1954- 1974
Sealer of Weights and Measures 1976- 1977

Austin G. Smithers

Tri County Regional Vocational School Study 1979
By-Laws Study 1980- 1983

Zoning Board of Appeals 1982- 1984
Groundwater Protection Corn. 1984 1986

Town Land Acquisition 1988- 1990

Master Plan 1992

Planning Board 1992- 1997
Zoning By Laws Study 1992- 1994

Metro Area Planning Council Rep. 1992- 1995
Southwest Area Planning Council 1993 - 1995

Henry F. Larochelle
Advisory Board 1970- 1973
Tax Policy Committee 1980

George S. Murray
Council OnAging Board 1972- 1973

Ross Connors

Advisory Board 1950
Everett Street Water Study 1950- 1951
Council On Aging Board 1979- 1988

Council on Aging Associate 1991

Phyllis Jones
HESSCO Worker
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT    _

ELECTEDCTED OFFICERSS RECREATION COMMISSION

Deborah K. DeBello 2000

Term Expires E. Kurt Czarnowski 1999

Thomas F. Terpstra 1999

MODERATOR
Eugene J. Orsogna 1998

Frank J. Gross 2006°    Barbara Gillis 1998

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
NORFOLK SCHOOL COMMITTEE

James R. Giebfried 2000 John Spinney 2000

John J. Czyzewski 1999 James Lehan 2000

Girard L. St.Amand 1998 Rita Advani 1999

Lucille V. Bailey 1999

TOWN CLERK
Maureen Howard 1998

Alice S. Boschen 1999
KING PHILIP REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE

BOARD OF ASSESSORS
George T. Cronin, Jr.   2000

John G. Robbins 2000 Jane P. Morris 1999

Fred L. Pfishchner 1999 Jonathan Smith 1998

Donna L. Putt 1998
CONSTABLES

BOARD OF HEALTH
Robert L. Smith 1998

Dr.Thomas R. Gilbert 2000 E. Christopher Bettencourt 1998

Dr,Albert G. Anderson, resigned 1999

Laurence M. Magner 1998 APPOINTED TOWN OFFICERS
Cheryl H. Dunnington, appointed 1998

MODERATOR APPOINTMENTS

LIBRARY TRUSTEES

Frances M. Holman 2000 ADVISORY BOARD

Harvey R. Boulay 1999 A. Graham Sterling 2000

Kenneth W.Nelson 1998 Norman Gentry 2000

Joyce Terrio 2000

WATER COMMISSIONERS Robert D. Kelleher, resigned 1999

Deborah J. Robbins 2000 Richard H. Moore, resigned 1999

Donna L. Putt 1999 Catherine A. Elder 1999

Lawrence Kennedy 1998 Glenn R. Beernink 1999

Arthur Warren IV 1999

HOUSING AUTHORITY Marc V. Waldman 1998

Patricia Lang 2002 James F. Ward 1998

Robert G. Boucher 2001 Edward V. Cannon 1998

Walter Zagieboylo 2000

Bruce A. Simpson 1998 PERSONNEL BOARD
Joanne T. Smith 1998 Lori J. Hurley 2000

Lawrence E.Corcoran 1999

PLANNING BOARD Alison L. Light 1999

Andrea D. Langhauser 2000 Robert Garrity 1998

Robert E. Nicodemus 1999 Alicia Cannon, resigned 1998

Steven G. McClain 1999

Arthur A. Sprach 1998 BYLAW COMMITTEE

Charles J. Clahasey 1998 Vida E. Holmes 2000

Elinor H, Pearson 2000

Donald E.Newhall 1999

Alice S. Boschen 1999

George T. Cronin, Jr.   1998

Paul D. Maggioni, Town Counsel
Ex-Officio)

6
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

BOARD OF HEALTH APPOINTMENTS SCHOOL LIBRARIANS

Diane Balut

9 BOARD OF HEALTH AGENTS Mary Carney
9

William R. Domey 1998

BJanet M. Prevett 1998
LIBRARY ASSOCIATES-SCHOOL 0

8 Bonnie Durand
Anne Kotch, resigned 1998

Alice S. Boschen 1998
Elizabeth Lehan

Bruce A. Simpson 1998 Kathryn Astley
p Christine Schwartz, resigned

SANITARIAN

9Mark Oram 1998 TOWN CLERK APPOINTMENT
9

8 FINANCE DIRECTOR' S ASSISTANT TOWN CLERK

APPOINTMENTS
Mary Jane Masty, resigned

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
9 TREASURER/ COLLECTOR

APPOINTMENTS8David B. Okun

CHIEF ASSESSOR TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

8 Deborah J. RobbinsGregL. Balukonis
8

ASSISTANT TOWN ACCOUNTANT TOWN COUNSEL

Lorraine H. Foley Paul D. Maggioni

TECHNICAL SCHOOLTRI-COUNTY VOCATIONALASSISTANT TREASURER

Cheryl A. Kelley COMMITTEE

Ronald E. Janosko

o LIBRARY TRUSTEES
SEALER OF WEIGHTS AND MEASURES 4

0 APPOINTMENTS
0

Peter S. Hildebrandt

g
Robert J. Shannon, Assistant

g
DIRECTOR OF LIBRARIES Thomas G. Degnim, Assistant, resigned

g
Robin A. Glasser

01

9
OFFICER OF VETERANS' GRAVES

9
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR Arthur R. Keenan

18
Francena M. Johnson y ';

18
LOCAL INSPECTOR-SHADE TREE MANAGER AND

8
YOUTH LIBRARIANS PEST CONTROL

Sarina Bluhm Remo R.Vito, Jr.   w

John Spinney

0
TREE WARDEN

g
TECHNICAL SERVICES Vacant

19
Marion T. Graham

8
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

f8.    
LIBRARY ASSOCIATES APPOINTMENTS

Marie Langlais

Ann Asci

10
Louisa Zagieboylo

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE- ACCOUNTANT

0
Bonnie Durand Susan L. Gagner

ig Patricia Slovacek

19
Lynn McWilliams

POLICE DEPARTMENT

18
Jennifer Robinson CHIEF OF POLICE r°

1
Judith B. Swaim, resigned Charles H. Stone, Jr.       

7



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

LIEUTENANT SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS

John W. Holmes Albert A. Leverone

Charles E.Ray
SERGEANTS J. William Meau

Paul J. Murphy William F. Kelley
David R. McConnell Harry L. Sanborn, Jr.
Jonathan M. Carroll, Sr. George J. Murray
Robert J. Shannon Janet M. Poirier

Joy Leonard
REGULAR POLICE OFFICERS Hilary Penlington

Alan F.Washkewits Edward Nolan

Stephen K. Plympton E. Christopher Bettencourt

David J. Holt William Davis
Winslow Karlson, HI

Thomas Ci. Degnim Police Chaplain Rev. Robert Connor

Timothy P. Heinz Police Chaplain Rev. Mark Ferrin
Leo F. lathier, Jr. Police Chaplain Rev. Paul Toms
Glen R. Eykel

POLICE MATRONS
RESERVE POLICE OFFICERS Helena R. Findlen

E. Christopher Betteneourt, resigned Joy Leonard
Steven A.Burke, resigned Janet M. Poirier

William J. Davis, resigned Pamela P. Holmes
Louis Droste Sarah J. Hill

David J. Eberle Donna M.Wolfrum
Susan Fornaciari Mary A. Dugdale
Thomas Heatley, Jr.     Kathleen DelGrosso, resigned
William R. McGrath Kirsten Hoist, resigned

Jeffrey Peavey, resigned
Donna M. Wolfram FIRE DEPARTMENT
Berton C. Cummings, not appointed CHIEF OF FIRE DEPARTMENT

William E Kelley
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

Helenmarie Diamond DEPUTY CHIEF

Stephen A. Wood
POLICE/FIRE COMMUNICATIONS

Joy Leonard LIEUTENANTS
Michael J. LaaValley Peter J. Petruchik, EMT/Full- time FF
Janet M. Poirier Joseph W. Nolan
Jamie J. Masterson David C. Holmes, Jr., EMT
E. Chistopher Bettencourt, part time Bruce E. Hamlin
Steven A. Burke, part time- resigned A. Roger Callahan, Retired
Kathleen A. DelGrosso, part time- resigned
John E. Donovan, part time- resigned EMS DIRECTOR
Mary A. Dugdale, part time John M. Malaney, III, FF/EMT
Helena R. Findlen, part time
Michael P. Findlen, part time- resigned
Stephen R. Hamlin, part time
Sarah.J. Hill, part time

Pamela P. Holmes, part time resigned
Kirsten Hoist, part time- resigned
Troy P. Kelley, part time
Jason T. Kenwood, part time- resigned
Donna M. Wolfram, part time



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

FIRE DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL INSPECTION DEPARTMENT

Bruce E. Belcher, FF BUILDING COMMISSIONER

Wayne E. Burton, FF Gerald E. Hughes

Richard F. Clancy, Jr., FF/EMT
Peter R. Curran, FF LOCAL INSPECTOR/ASST. ZONING OFFICER

Norman P. Eykel, FF/EMT David A. Roche

Michael P. Findlen, FF/EMT Paul R.DiChiara, resigned

Gregory M. Graves, FF
Mark W. Haigh, FF/EMT ZONING OFFICER

Stephen R. Hamlin, FF/EMT Gerald E. Hughes

Peter S. Hildebrandt, FF/EMT
Pamela P. Holmes, FF/EMT INSPECTOR OF WIRES

David W. Johnston, FF William R. Bain

Douglas E. Johnston, FF/EMT

Mark R. Kantzer, FF/EMT ASSISTANT INSPECTOR OF WIRES

John F. Kelley, FF/EMT J. William Carberry

James F. Leary, Jr. FF
Leo E. MacDonald, FF/EMT INSPECTOR OF GAS FITTINGS

James J. Masterson, FF/EMT Edward Forsberg

C. Scott Thayer, FF/EMT
PLUMBING INSPECTOR

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT James K. Murray

Patricia A. Bixby, FF/EMT
INSPECTOR OF ANIMALS

FOREST WARDEN Hilary Penlington

William F. Kelley, Chief Harry L. Sanborn, Jr., retired

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER

SUPERINTENDENT OF STREETS Hilary Penlington

Remo R.Vito, Jr.  Harry L. Sanborn, Jr. retired

HIGHWAY PERSONNEL
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR

Kenneth Salisbury, Foreman
Edward Nolan

John Haehnel, Asst. Foreman

Kimball Rogers, Mechanic DEPUTY DIRECTOR/RADIO OPERATOR

Thomas Benedetti, Asst. Mechanic John Nuhibian

Stephen Daley
Kenneth Cooper FIRE OFFICER

John Patete Wiliam F. Kelley, Chief

Robert Joyce

Alan F. Washkewits, Jr.    
BOARDS- COMMISSIONS-COUNCILS

Authorized by Statute or Bylaw

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT Appointed by Board of Selectmen

Karen Mitnick
BOARD OF APPEALS- 5 year term

TRANSFER STATION Lisa K. Keating 2002

Earle Bercier, Head Monitor
Bruce A. Simpson 2001

Donald Bernardo, resigned Lorraine M. Sweeney 2000

Jake White
Linda D. Eckard 1999

Raymond Mullaney
John M. Burke 1998

Margaret Silletti- part time Clerk
ASSOCIATE MEMBER- 1 year term

Sarah P.Dewey 1998

Brian D. Wolf 1998

9
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

ADA COMPLIANCE COMM- 1 year term DESIGN REVIEW BOARD- 3 year term

Thomas Terpstra 1998 Donald Seymour, Pl. Bd appt. 2000

Mary Nuhibian 1998 Gautam Ghosh, Pl. Bd. appt.  2000

Donna Angelico 1998 James H. Neubert, resigned

Greg L. Balukonis, ex- officio Sarojit Malik, Selectmen appt. 1999

John Buchholz, Selectmen appt.       1998

ARTS COUNCIL- 3 year term M. Elizabeth Pyne, Hist.appt. 1998

Sandra J. Myatt 2002

Kristen Stashenko 1999 EARTH REMOVAL ADV. COMM- 1 year term

Christina Krouk 1999 Daniel Crafton, Conservation 1998

Thomas Elder 1999 Gerald Hughes, Building Comm.     1998

Katherine Furst 1999 Andrea Langhauser, Planning Bd.     1998

Anne Marie Battistone 1999 Fred L. Pfischner, Assessors 1998

Brian Lies 1999 Laurence Magner, Bd. of Health 1998

CAPITAL OUTLAY COMMITTEE- 2 year term HISTORICAL COMMISSION- 3 year term

William F. Sharkey 1999 Mary Power 2000

Suzanne Burns 2000

CEMETERY COMMISSION- 3 year term Marie Langlais 2000

Frank J. Gross 2000 Loretta McClellan 1999

Paul L. Kozak, Sr.    1999 Emily Jacques, resigned

Robert L. Kirby 1998 M. Elizabeth Pyne 1998

Thelma Ravinski 1998

COMPUTER SYSTEM COMM- 3 year term Marcia Johnston 1998

David Wildman 2000

David Rosenberg 1999 PERMANENT BUILDING COMM 3 year term

Richard Olsen 1999 Winsor Bowden III 2000

Daniel Duffy 1998 Lawrence Cheever 2000

David Barry, resigned Robert P. Lowndes 1999

David Jenner 1998

CONSERVATION COMMISSION- 3 year term Paul DiChiara 1998

Cynthia C. Andrade 2000 Ernest Alix, resigned

Daniel Crafton 2000

Maryann T. Magner 1999 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS- 3 year term

Allan M.Shaw 1999 Mary Ellen Gattoni- D 2000

Jane M. Dewey 1998 Donna Bentley- D 1999

Thomas R. Gilbert 1998 Charles E.Burnett- R 1998

Brian Butler 1998 Alice S.Boschen- R Town Clerk

John McFeeley- D- resigned
COUNCIL ON AGING- 3 year term

Patricia Lang 2000 VETERAN' S SERVICES- 3 year term

Norman Lenihan 2000 Edward Lyons 2000

Martin Moeckel 2000 Frank J. Gross, resigned
Ruth Masison 2000

John Evans 1999 MBTA ADVISORY BOARD REP.- 1 year term
Christine Shaw 1999 Daniel Catlett 1998

Georgia Jones 1999

Elizabeth Santandreau 1998 METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COUNCIL
Priscilla Tsarides 1998 REPRESENTATIVE- 3 year term

George Clinton 1998 Charles Clahasey 2000

Harriet Fisher 1998

Carolyn Shepard, resigned

Nancy Seitz, resigned
John McCann, resigned

10



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

SOUTHWEST AREA PLANNING COUNCIL- 1 year ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

term.       Apptd. jointly by Board of Selectmen/ Planning Bd.)
Charles Clahasey 2000 Jack Olivieri 1998

V.Philip Briselli 1998

1 NORFOLK COUNTY ADVISORY BOARD MEMBER- 1 Beverly Panettiere 1998

year term
Anne Marie Battistone 1998

3 Jonathan Smith 1998 Gary Molino 1998

Wesley Dunnington 1998

BOARDS AND COMMITTEES Robert Howard, resigned

3Appointed by Board of Selectmen
Arthur Bent, resigned

3
3TOWNHALL RE-USE COMMITTEE

3
MIRROR LAKE ADVISORY COMMITTEE Frank D. McDonald 19(K

3
Joseph Gilio 1998

Mary Logan 194

Annette English-Guertin 1998

Frank McDonald 1998
CORRECTIONS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

William Perron 1998

RECYCLING/SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE Lisa Newell 1998

Charles Jerome 1998
Timothy Ahearn 19) 8

Ellen Clas 1998

Amy Brady 1998
CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Kenneth MacClean 1998
John McFeeley 1. 998

3
Daniel Crafton, resigned

3
Donna Jones 1998

3
Norman Lenihan, resigned Paula Austin 1998

Michael Keane 1998

ROAD SAFETY COMMITTEE Larry Harrington 1998

James R.Giebfried, ex-officio 1998

Charles H. Stone, Jr.   1998

Remo R. Vito, Jr.       1998

Amy Brady 1998
3

Ruth Masison 1998

3
Daniel Catlett, resigned

ZONING BYLAW STUDY COMMITTEE
NideSelectmen designee 1998Robercomus, 1

Brian Wolf,Appeal Board designee 1998

Sarah Dewey, Conservation designee 1998

Gerald Hughes, Building designee 1998

Steven McClain, Planning Board designee 1998

Glendon Coulter, Selectmen designee 1998 j

Lois Boucher, Board of Health designee 1998

Paul D. Maggioni, Town Counsel,( ex-officio)      1998

INSURANCE COMMITTEE

Raymond J. Turano 1998

Bruce Shapiro 1998

3
Loretta Jacobs 1998

11
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE move in early, 1998. This continues to be a lengthy process, and

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
the Selectmen thank town officials, employees, and citizens for
their patience.

This report is submitted in accordance with Norfolk By-     The Board of Selectmen supported efforts to construct a
laws, Article V., Section 1 which requires the Board of Select-      new Senior Center on Medway Branch. A$ 500,000 grant ap-
men to submit annually a report of all elected and appointed plication was submitted in August. Town Meeting also approved
officials, boards, committees, councils and commissions, and to      $ 50,000 as the local share as evidence of Norfolk' s commitment,

give a summary of their activities, and report on the Town' s fi-      Unfortunately, the Department of Housing and Community De-
nancial transactions. This is our town report for the period of velopment( DHCD) received many other senior center grant ap,
January 1, 1997, to December 31, 1997.       plications, and Norfolk was not selected. The Board looks for-

ward to seeing the senior center as part of the new Town Hall for
The three Selectmen are the Town' s chief executive offic-      the immediate future.

ers. We are empowered by state statute to administer and imple-
ment decisions voted at Town Meetings, and establish policy for Norfolk officials expended considerable time and energy
and coordinate local government operations. The Selectmen also on affordable housing issues in 1997. The Board of Selectmen
serve as road commissioners, make numerous appointments to and Planning Board both voiced serious concerns about an of
the boards and committees, and act as the Town' s licensing au-      fordable housing project on vacant commercially zoned land at
twority. The Board is assisted by our full-time professional Town the intersection of Routes IA and 115. This site was identified
Administrator, one full-time administrative assistant, and one in Norfolk' s Master Plan as being a viable location for commer-
part-time clerk. cial development. The Selectmen resisted a proposal that would

construct 96 housing units on this site, without regard to the
The Selectmen met weekly for regular meetings, except community' s preferences. Town Meeting supported our posi-

for the months of June, July and August, when we met every tion by funding$ 25, 000 in order to hire experts needed to de-
other week. Our meetings are held in the Cable Television Stu-      fend the Town. No decision had been reached by the DHCD as
dio in the Centennial School on Monday evenings at 7: 30 p.m.      the year closed.

All meetings are open to the public, and we invite any interested
person to attend. Our meetings are also broadcast live on Nor-     The Town was an active participant in the sale of
folk Cable. Agendas are posted in the Town Hall 48 hours prior Southwood Community Hospital.  A steering committee was
to the meeting. Citizens interested in being placed on the agenda appointed by the Board of Selectmen to ensure Norfolk' s inter-
should contact the Selectmen' s Office to make the necessary ar-      ests were addressed during the required public comment period.
rangements.  As Selectmen, we also attended many hearings The Selectmen endorsed the Committee' s recommendation pro-
before other boards and committees transacting town business.       viding for Caritas- Christi to acquire Southwood Hospital. We

are confident the newly named Caritas- Southwood Hospital will
James R. Giebfried was re-elected for a second term to the continue to provide the highest quality medical care for Norfolk

Board of Selectmen in May. The Board of Selectmen reorga-      residents.

nized by electing Girard L. St.Amand as Chairman, and John J.
Czyzewski as Clerk.  

A permanent solution of the Department of Correction

DOC) sewer controversy was reached. The Board of Select-
There were many issues that required the Selectmen' s at-      men, Board of Health, and Citizens Action Committee worked

tention in 1997. We are extremely pleased that the Common-      closely with state officials in developing a,solution to prevent
wealth of Massachusetts funded its long- overdue financial obli-      further environmental disasters at Highland Lake. A new sewer
gations to Norfolk as a prison host community. The Town re-      line was being designed to avoid environmentally sensitive ar-
ceived$ 2. 3 million under Chapter 799 for the new Town Hall eas between MCI-Norfolk and the DOC treatment plant This
project. Without these funds, the Town was forced to incur con-      work will commence in 1998.
siderable short- term borrowing costs. The Town also received
an additional$ 960,000 from the Commonwealth, and earmarked The Selectmen continued their involvement in restoring
the rnoney for the new Recreation Complex off Pond Street. The the former water level in Kingsbury Pond. A special meeting
Selectmen appreciate the efforts of Senator Jacques, Represen-      was held with residents in June, and agreement was reached about
tative Sprague, and the Governor' s Office in securing funds for restoring the Pond' s water levels. Another concern was brought
our local projects.      

to our attention about a new municipal well in the Town of

Franklin. The Board of Selectmen questioned the impact of this
The new Town Hall project neared completion in 1997,      well on Populatic Pond, and demanded detailed environmental

We expected the building would be ready for occupancy in late studies be undertaken.

1997. It is our understanding that town offices will be ready to

12
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I In November, the final closure and capping of the landfill 1997 A.NNUA:L REPORT OFT E

r was completed. We were forced to rebid the project after the TOWN CLERK
Attorney General ruled the original bid process was flawed. The
rebid resulted in a cost savings of approximately$ 38,000 due to

t increased competition between vendors.      In 1997 the Town Clerk supervised two elections tt;: It a-

nual Election on May 6 and a Special Election, which was held
A Cable Advisory Committee was appointed to handle on July 1. The Annual Election was unique in my 10 year expo-

negotiations on a new franchise license with Time-Warner Cable.      rience as Town Clerk because there were no races for any poli-

The current license expires in 1999.  No agreement on a new tion. Because the July 1 Special Election came after school was

license had been reached.
out and vacation season had begun, the Town Clerk' s office was
open a number of additional hours to allow more opportunity

r We appointed several new members to the Computer Sys-      for absentee voting. There were more than 300 absentee votes

terns Committee, and requested they develop a solution to cast in the Special Election.

Norfolk' s technology needs. The Committee is preparing a rec-
ommendation in anticipation of action at the 1998 Annual Town There were three Town Meetings, in 1997. The lawn Clerk

t Meeting.   
is responsible for taking the Minutes and performing all the nec-
essary follow-up procedures. Two were lengthy meetings- the

t We wish to acknowledge several individuals who left their Warrant for the Annual Town Meeting contained 47 article%and a

employment over the past year. A. Roger Callahan retired from the Fall Town Meeting Warrant was 62. A large number of by- i!
law approved•     

the FireDepartment after many years of dedicated service. Harrychangespp by the Fall Town Meeting required lengthy

I Sanborn retired in June after 29 years of service as Animal Con-      and detailed procedure for submission for the Attorney General' s lF

trol Officer, and Animal Inspector. We commend Harry for his
approval. The December 2 Special Town Meeting was limited

most professional work to the Town of Norfolk. Paul DiChiara to calling for a Special Election early in 1998.

departed the Building Department for a similar position in North Duringlate 1997 the Town Clerk made a change of()Ewe
Attleboro. The Board of Selectmen welcomed Hilary Penlington
and David Roche as the new Animal Control Officer/Animal hours. After many years of being open for the public conve-

Inspector, and Local Building Inspector.
nience on Wednesday evening, fewer and fewer residents took

f
advantage of the service. The office is now open to public on

We would like to acknowledge the efforts of our staff, Greg Saturday from 10: 00 a.m. to 12 Noon, which appears to be more
Balukonis, Marian Harrington, Cindi Coombs and Karen

successful.

Ramsey, who serve this Board, and the public, in a pleasant and

Lon tinteAssistantTown Clerk, Mary Jane Malty retiredhelpful manner. We also want to thank all employees for a job at the end of December, as she is planning to move out of the
well done. Keep up the good work! area. She will be missed. Thank you and Good Luck.

One of the Norfolk' s finest traditions is the involvement
of many citizens who freely give their time and experience to Respectfully submitted,

make our government work. It is reassuring to find the quantity S. Boschen
t and quality of volunteerism has grown to meet the need as the

Alice

problems of local government become increasingly complex. We
Town Clerk

I are grateful for the work of all board and committee members
t who spend many evenings out of their homes in addressing town
r business and their families continued support. We, the Board of

Selectmen, truly appreciate the dedication of all of you who make f'

Norfolk the special place that it is.  r ,

Respectfully submitted,

BOARD OF SELECTMEN

t Girard L. St.Amand, Chairman

t John J. Czyzewski, Clerk
James R. Giebfried, Member

i

k

r
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REPORT OF LICENSING VITAL STATISTICS

ACTIVITY- 1997
We do not print the names of Norfolk citizens who died,

or of babies born during the past year, to protect the privacy ofSPORTING LICENSES
the families involved.  Specific information on births, deaths,

Two Hundred Sixty Four licenses in seven different cat-
egories were sold in 1997, as well as other transactions such as

BIRTHS
sale of sporting stamps and issuance of duplicate licenses, re-
sulting in total sales of$ 3, 604.65. In addition twelve free li-
censes were issued to residents who are handicapped or over 70.     There were 151 births recorded to Norfolk residents in

By regulations of the Division of Fisheries and Wildlife, the Town 1997. The certificates for births taking place late in the year or

of Norfolk retained fees in the amount of$ 176. 80.    in Boston often do not reach this office until April or May. For
comparative purposes, 132 births were recorded in 1992, 140 in

DOG LICENSES
1993, 145 in 1994, 135 in 1995 and 134 in 1996.

The following licenses were issued in 1997: 638 Neutered
DEATHS

Male and Spayed Female; 134 Males and Females not neutered;

5 Kennels of four dogs or less, and 4 Kennels of five to ten dogs.     There were 163 deaths recorded in 1997.  Thirty- seven
Total sales were$ 4,562.00. the entire amount of which was de-      were of Norfolk residents, occurring in Norfolk or in other loca-

posited in the general fund for the Town of Norfolk.  tions; the additional 126 were residents of other communities

who died at Southwood Community Hospital, the Correctional

Dog owners are reminded that all dogs over the age of six
Institutions, or elsewhere in Norfolk.

months must be licensed and proof provided of current rabies
MARRIAGES AND INTENTIONS

inoculation, Licenses are to be renewed yearly beginning Janu-
ary 1. An additional$ 25.00 late fee per license will be charged

Thirty-four marriage intentions were filed and certificatesto owners who fail to relicense until after May 1. Dog owners
issued in Norfolk in 1997. All thirty-four certificates were re-are also reminded that Norfolk does have a dog control bylaw.      
turned following the performance of the ceremony. Of the 34,Copies of the bylaw are available at the office of the Town Clerk.      
in 20 of the marriages one or both parties were Norfolk resi-

SUMMARY OF TRANSACTIONS OF THE dents, 5 had both parties from other cities or towns, and the re-

TOWN CLERK' S OFFICE- 1997 mainder involved prisoners at the Correctional Institution.

Dog Licenses 4,562.00

Sporting Fees Retained by Town 176. 80
Certificates and Copies 6, 351. 65
Sale of Books and Maps 1, 555.00
Raffle Permits 40.00
U. C.C. Filings 1, 834.00
Pole Location Filing 80.00
Fines 496.00

Revenue Generated for the' town of Norfolk 15, 095.45

14
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ANNUAL TOWN- ELECTION Planning Board Member

MAY 6 1997
Unexpired Term of 1 Year

Charles J. Clahasey*  323

Blank 189

Pursuant to the Warrant for the Annual Town Meeting, the Misc. Write-Ins 7

inhabitants ofPrecincts 1, 2, and 3 of the Town of Norfolk quali-
fied to vote in town affairs assembled in MacBride Auditorium Recreation Commission Member

at the Freeman-Centennial elementary school on Tuesday, May Debra K. DeBello*    348

6, 1997 to act upon Article 1, the Annual Election of Town Offi-      Blanks 16 :

cials.       Misc. Write-Ins 9

Polls were declared open at 7: 00 a.m. Election Officials School Committee Member

were duly sworn in by Warden Elinor Pearson. The ballot boxes Two for Three Years Each

for all three precincts were found to be in good working order John Spinney* 339

and registered zero. Instructions to voters and specimen ballots James C. Lehan*      227

were posted at the entrance to each precinct and within polling Blanks 365

place a corrected voting list was on display.    Misc. Write- Ins 7

The polls were closed at 8: 00 p.m. A total of 519 ( app.      King Philip School Committee Member for Three Years
9.5%) of the 5,434 eligible voters in the town cast their ballots George T.Cronin, Jr.* 414

with the following results:       Blanks 103

Misc. Write-Ins 2

Moderator for One Year

Frank J. Gross* 423 Housing Authority Member for Five Years
Blank 89 Patricia M. Lang*     381

Misc. Write- Ins 11 Blanks 132

Misc. Write-Ins 5

Selectmen for Three Years

James R. Giebfried*   336      * Declared elected

Blank 166

Misc.Write-Ins 17 Question 1

Assessor for Three Years Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an addi-

John G. Robbins*      369 tional$ 50,000 in real estate and personal property taxes for the

Blank 147 purposes of design services and construction for a new Senior
Center for the fiscal year beginning July first, nineteen hundred

Board of Health Member for Three Years and ninety-seven?

Thomas R. Gilbert*    354

Blank 157 YES 258 NO 254 Blanks 7

Misc. Write-Ins 8

Question 2

Library Trustee for Three Years
Frances M. Holman*  396 Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an additional

Blanks 118      $ 11, 000 in real estate and personal property taxes for the pur- fi

Misc. Write-Ins 5 poses of equipping the Ladder Truck with a mobile cascade/ air
filling station for the fiscal year beginning July first, nineteen x

Water Commissioner for Three Years hundred and ninety-seven?       

Deborah J. Robbins*  
361

Blank 153 YES 271 NO 232 Blank 16

Misc. Write-Ins 5

i

Planning Board Member 1
Two for Three Years Each N

Andrea Langhauser*   
331

Blank 117

Misc. Write-Ins 9
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MINUTES OF 1997 200 each=$ 600; Planning Board- 5 members @ $ 200 each

ANNUAL,TOWN MEETING
1000; Board of Health- 3 members @ $ 200 each=$ 600; Wa.

ter Commissioners- 3 members @$ 200 each=$ 600; and Town
TUESDAY, MAY 27, 1997 Clerk$ 27, 500.

King Philip High School Auditorium
GENERAL GOVERNMENT FY 98 Approved

The meeting was called to order at 7:40 p.m. by Modem-      
Moderator

tor Frank Gross. The National Anthem was played by trumpeter Salary 1

George Clinton, accompanied on the piano by Charles Stacey of
Expense 154

Wrentham. The Moderator announced that the lighting and com-      
Total 155

munications were being supervised by King Philip teacher Joe
Ferrar and students B. J. Cummings and Jesse MacKenzie. The Selectmen

Moderator then introduced the Town Clerk, Town Finance Di-     Salary 102,961

rector, Town Administrator, members of the Board of Select-     Expense 23, 640

men, Town Counsel and the Advisory Board Chairman, who in Committee Funds l

troduced the members of that Board. There were 288 registered Total 126,602

voters and 17 non- registered persons in attendance. Sworn as

Counters were J. Martin, J. McFeeley and J. Smith.   Advisory Board
Salary 2,970

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to waive the reading of Expense 4,700

the Warrant and Return of the Warrant.       Reserve Fund 40, 873

Total 48, 543

ARTICLE 1
Municipal Finance

Articlel was the Annual Election of town officers, which Salary 315,992

took place on Tuesday, May 6, and included two questions re-     Expense 57,349

garding funding, both of which passed.       Audit 11, 000

Total 384,341

ARTICLE 2
Board of Assessors

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the Town of Salary 600

Norfolk Personnel Bylaw by changing the Classification Sched-     Expense 1, 000

ule as follows: Chief Assessor from Grade M/5 to Grade M/6;      Total 1, 600

Chief Dispatcher- Grade Ito Communications Department Co-

ordinator- Grade K; Mechanic, Highway Department- Grade I Town Counsel

new position); Secretary, Water Dept.- Grade 8( new position);     Legal Fees 15, 500

Mechanic, Highway Department- Grade K new title to be Head Retainer Fees 15,000

Mechanic; and Secretary/Data Processor/EMT, Police Depart-      Total 30,500

ment- Grade 9 new title to be Secretary/ Data Processor.
Personnel Board

ARTICLE 3 Salary 2,225

Expense 1, 600

ARTICLE 3 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY VOICE Total 3, 825

VOTE( Sick Leave Buy Back)
Computer Committee

ARTICLE 4 Expense 100
Total 100

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to fix the salary and
compensation of all elected officers of the Town as provided for Town Hall Operations

by Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 41, Section 108; and Expense 69, 135

to fix the salary or compensation thereof for the fiscal year corn-      Total 69, 135

meneing on July 1, 1997: Moderator$ 1; Selectmen- 3 mem-
bers @ $ 200 each=$ 600; Board of Assessors- 3 members @
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Town Clerk Fire

Salary 45, 546 Salary 276,268

Expense 1, 450 Expense 30,750

Total 46,996 Total 207 018

Elections Ambulance

Salary 1, 150 Salary 67,000

Expense 2, 140 Expense 4,000

Total 3, 290 Tuition& Training 16,000

Total 87,000

Voter Registration

Salary 4. 150 Building Department
Expense 2250 Salary 117, 064

Total 6,400 Expense 3, 150

Total 120,214

Conservation F.

Salary 11, 682 Weights& Measures 1

Expense 2,922 Salary50o

Total 14, 604 Expense 311

Total 531

Planning Board
Salary 34,202 Emergency Management
Expense 37,275 Salary 570

Total 71, 477 Expense 1, 870

Total 2,440

Zoning Board of Appeals
Salary 17,542 Animal Inspector

Expense 1, 253 Salary 1, 739

Total 18,795 Expense 0

Total 1, 739

Engineering
Expense 950 Animal Control

Total 950 Salary 10, 821

Expense 2,719

Permanent Building Committee
Total 13, 540

Salary 4,670

Expense 550 Tree Warden

Total 5, 220 Salary 2,750

Expense 21, 237 r

Building/Liability Insurance
Shade Tree Salary 0

Expense 155, 000 Shade Tree Expense

Total 155,000 Total 23,988

Town Reports
Fire/Police Communication

Expense 5,225 Salary 157, 175

Total 5,225 Expense 4,900

Total 162,075

PUBLIC SAFETY
Fire/ Police Station

Police
Expense 36,985

Salary 941, 480 Total 36,985 F.

Expense 87,6914,

Cruisers 50,692

Total 1, 0'79, 863 o
4
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EDUCATION HUMAN SERVICES

Board of Health

Norfolk Elementary 5, 538,644 Salary 34, 124
King Philip Regional 2,391, 459 Expense 34,602

Tri- County Regional 212,753 Total 68,726
Override Increment 155, 448

Appropriation- Contingent on Override 5, 695,448 Special Programs

Norfolk Mental Health 6,650
PUBLIC WORKS SNCARC 4,025

Total 10,675

Highway
Salary 348, 274 Council on Aging
Expense 71, 801 Salary 50,862
Special Projects 45, 320 Expense 18, 320

Total 465, 395 Total 69, 182

Highway Garage Veterans Services

Expense 31, 318 Salary 3, 028
Total 31, 318 Expense 1, 146

Total 4, 174
Snow& Ice

Expense 80,300 CULTURE& RECREATION
Total 80,300

Library
Recreation/Grounds Maintenance Salary 171, 881

Salary 26,680 Expense 83, 144
Expense 27,593 Total 255,025

Total 27,273

Recreation
Transfer Station Salary 36,747

Salary 92, 128 Expense 12,761
Expense 91, 837 Total 49,508

Total 183, 965

Historical Commission
Landfill Expense 323

Expense 45, 229 Total 323
Total 45,229

Memorial Day
Septage Assessment Expense 525

Expense 2,300 Total 525
Total 2,300

DEBT SERVICE 1, 443, 893
Cemetery Commission

Salary 19, 366 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 884,678
Expense 3, 220

Total 22,586 Allowance for Abatements& Exemptions 80,000

Custodian of Veterans Graves State Assessments/ Offsets 314,435
Salary 560
Expense 1, 492 ARTICLE 4 1

Thal '     2,052

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to raise and appropriate
Streetlighting 14,240,306; transfer$ 57,000 from Ambulance Receipts Re-

Expense 26,500 served for Appropriation and$ 7,500 from Cemetery Sale of Lots x:

Total 26,500 Receipts Reserved for Appropriation; transfer $ 10,000 from
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Overlay Surplus Reserve; transfer$ 29,292 from FY 1997 Mu-     Bay Circuit Regional- 2 members
t,

e
nicipal Debt Service; Temporary Interest Account, and transfer f

300,036 from Water Revenue to defray the departmental and ADA Compliance Comm. - 5 members plus Town .Ad- i,

incidental expenses of the Town not otherwise provided for the ministrator, ex-officio and non-voting.

Fiscal Year commencing July 1, 1997 for a total of$ 14,644,434,
subject however to a contingent override of$ 156,448, for the Insurance Advisory Committee- 5 members

elementary schools, which would change the total to$ 14, 835, 738
if approved.      Recycling/Transfer Station Advisory Committee- 5 mem-

bers and Highway Supt., ex-officio and non-voting.
ARTICLE544,

Zoning Bylaw Study Committee- 7 members appointed
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer the sum of as follows: two members appointed by the Board of Selectmen,

402,730 from Water Department revenues to fund the Water and one member or designee each appointed by the Planning

Department maintenance and operating expenses for the fiscal Board, Board of Health, Conservation Commission, and Build-

year commencing July 1, 1997.  ing Department and Town Counsel ex-officio and non- voting.  i!,,';
ARTICLE 6 Corrections Advisory Committee- Three members

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer $ 110,000 Economic Development Committee- 5 members appointed et t4

from Prison Mitigation Funds$ 73,000 from Free Cash, and raise jointly by the Board of Selectmen and Planning Board.
and appropriate above the Fiscal Year 1998 Tax Levy$ 11, 000 to
fund the Schedule of Capital purchases as follows:   Regional Sewage Package Treatment Plant Study Corn-

mittee- 3 members appointed jointly by the Board of Selectmen t'

la.   King Philip FY 98 Capital Plan( King Philip)     38,698 and Planning Board.

lb.   Upgrade Mainframe Computer( Finance) 26,303

lc.   Copy Machine( Selectmen) 10,000 Open Space Committee- 5 members as follows: one mem-

Id.   I- Ton Dump Truck( Highway)     34,000 ber to be a member or designee of the Recreation Commission,

le.   Mobile Data Terminals( Police)     7, 194 one member to be a member or designee of the Conservation

If.   Emergency Generator( Police)      20,000 Commission, one member to be a member or designee of the

1g.   Roof Repair-( Fire/ Police Station) 10,000 Planning Board and two others to be appointed jointly by the
lh.   Asbestos Removal( Elementary School)   30,000 Planning Board and Conservation Commission.
li,   Carpeting( Elementary School)      6,805

lj.   Cascade System( Fire) Capital Exclusion 11, 000 There were reports and presentations by the School Build-

TOTAL Capital Purchases 194,000 ing Needs Assessment Committee and the Library Building
Needs Committee:

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE To hold discussion of
ARTICLE 7 until consideration of ARTICLEE 12,     ARTICLE 10

ARTICLE 8 APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to ac- 4
cept and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into con-

ARTICLE 8 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY tracts for the expenditure of Chapter 90 funds in the amount of

VOICE VOTE( Highway Street Sweeper)     258,705 and allocated by the Commonwealth for the construe-       a

tion, reconstruction, or improvements of public roads and other       -

ARTICLE 9 To choose any committees, or to hear or act improvements within the Town, as requested by the Selectmen,

on the report of any committee, town officer, or to instruct any and to authorize the Treasurer to borrow or bond pursuant to any       { `'

committee or town officer act on the report any committee,      applicable statute in anticipation of reimbursement.

town officer, or to instruct any committee or town officer, or
take any other action relative thereto.  

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to postpone consider-

ation of ARTICLES 11 and 18 until tomorrow night, or before t`

APPROVED BYVOICE VOTE To Authorize the Board Article 46,

of Selectmen to appoint the following committees unless other-
wise noted:       

ARTICLE 13

Arts Council- 9 members
ARTICLE 13 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED ( Town

Office Moving Costs)
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ARTICLE 14 ARTICLE 7

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to raise and appropri-     MOVED AND SECONDED to transfer $ 5, 000 from
ate$ 50,000 above the Fiscal Year 1998 Tax Levy to design, con-      Overlay Surplus toward funding the purchase and equipping of
struck and furnish a new Senior Center, said appropriation to be a new ambulance allowing for trade in of old ambulance.
contingent on the prior commitment by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts to pay the total expected cost of construction AMENDMENT MOVED AND SECONDED to trans-
about$ 600,000) of the new Senior Center.   fer from the Stabilization Fund$ 105, 000 and$ 5,000 from Over-

lay Surplus.
ARTICLE 15

AMENDMENT APPROVED BY COUNTED VOTE
ARTICLE 15 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED ( Day Yes 50 No 39

School Addition Design)

MAIN MOTION DEFEATED BY LACK OF 2/3 RE.
ARTICLE 16 QUIREMENT Counted vote Yes 52 No 38

ARTICLE 16 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED by voice ARTICLE 20

vote( Acquire Lind land on Marshall St.)

ARTICLE 20 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY
ARTICLE 17 VOICE VOTE( Aerial Mosquito Control)

ARTICLE 17 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED by voice ARTICLE 21

vote( Acquire Boy Scout land on Boardman St.)

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to ap-
ARTICLE 19 propriate a sum of money for the purpose of financing the fol-

lowing water pollution abatement facility projects:  repair, re-
ARTICLE 19 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY placement and/ or upgrade of septic systems, pursuant to agree-

COUNTED VOTE Yes 69 No 51 ( Hazardous waste collec-      ments with the Board of Health and residential property owners,
tion)    including without limitation all costs thereof as defined in Sec-

tion 1 of Chapter 29C of the Massachusetts General Laws; to
MOVED, SECONDED AND APPROVED BY VOICE determine whether this appropriation shall be raised by borrow-

VOTE TO ADJOURN THE MEETING UNTIL WEDNESDAY,      ing from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust or
MAY 28, 1997 AT 7: 30 P.M. AT THE KING PHILIP HIGH otherwise.

SCHOOL AUDITORIUM The meeting adjourned at 11: 15 p. m.
ARTICLE 22

WEDNESDAY, MAY 28, 1997

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer$ 9,000 from
There were a total of 153 voters in attendance. The meet-      Free Cash to the Planning Board to facilitate street acceptances

ing was called to order at 7:40 p.m.    of existing subdivision roads.

ARTICLE 12 ARTICLE 23

MOVED AND SECONDED to transfer$ 115,000 from APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer the sum of

Free Cash and $ 60000 from Prison Mitigation Money, and      $ 5, 000 from Free Cash to fund legal and other consulting ser-
45,000 from Overlay Surplus for a total of$ 220,000 for the vices, including costs incidental thereto, associated with the ne-

completion of the closure of Phase 0 of the Landfill in compli-      gotiation of Norfolk' s cable television franchise license.
ance with the Department of Environmental Protection require-
ments. ARTICLE 24

Substitute Motion to transfer $ 115, 000 from Free Cash ARTICLE 24 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY
and$ 105, 000 from Stabilization Fund for a total of$ 220,000 VOICE VOTE( Computer Needs Assessment)
DEFIA1ED 13 k' VOICE VOTE

ARTICLE 25
MAIN MOTION APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE.

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE pursuant to Massachu-
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setts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2, to authorize A.    A full-time employee who is a Department Head or

the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of paying the ex-    who is the designated spokesman of a Department

penses of snow removal from King Philip Regional school prop-    Head may address the Town Meeting prior to any

erty within the Town of Norfolk; said fund to be credited with action on any Article which has been sponsored by
receipt of fees charged for this service under the authority and or directly affects his/ her Department notwithstand-
direction of the Board of Selectmen, such expenditures not to ing his or her domicile or citizenship
exceed$ 5, 000 in fiscal year 1998.

B.    A consultant or other expert retained by a Depart-

ARTICLE 26 ment, Board, Commission, Committee or elected ii

official may address the Town Meeting prior to any
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to reauthorize a Plan-    action on any Article related to the services per-

t.

Hing Board Revolving Fund pursuant to Massachusetts General formed by said consultant or other expert notwith- t

Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2 from which to receive and standing his/her domicile or citizenship.
disburse subdivision performance inspection fees as may be es-
tablished by the Planning Board for services of Town Depart-     C.    Any appointed Commission, Board or Corm: Iittee
ments in the inspection and approval of subdivisions and to au-    member may address the Town Meeting prior to any

thorize the Planning Board to pay such fees collected to the Town action on any Article which has been sponsored by s
of Norfolk General Fund in an amount not to exceed $ 40,000 or directly affects his/ her Commission. Board or 1

during fiscal year 1998.       Committee notwithstanding his/her domicile or crit.-

zenship.

ARTICLE 27
ARTICLE 31

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE pursuant to Massachu-

setts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2 to authorize APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the ger 1
the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of paying expenses bylaws, Article 1, Town Meeting and Elutions, by addirl

related to the collection of parking ticket violations; said fund to following new Section 8:
be credited with receipts collected not to exceed$ 1, 000 in fiscal
year 1998 under the direction of the Board of Selectmen.    SECTION 8

r 4
ARTICLE 28 a.    When a two-thirds( 2/3) vote of town meeting

quired by statute, the Moderator shall make a i
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to appropriate water declaration of the vote and a count need not be

receipts, not to exceed $ 5, 000 from Inspection Services under

the Authority and direction of the Board of Water Commission-     b.    If a vote so declared is immediately questioned by w ; 9

ers and to authorize the use of a Revolving Fund, pursuant to seven( 7) or more voters, the Moderator shall verify

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section A53E 1/ 2 for it by polling the voters.       

the purpose of a Department ofEnvironmental Protection Cross I a'

Connection Control Program, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2 for MOVED, SECONDED AND APPROVED BY VOICE

the purpose of a Department ofEnvironmental Protection Cross VOTE TO ADJOURN THE MEETING UNTIL TUESDAY,       r14

Connection Control Program, said revolving fund shall be cred-      JUNE 6TH AT 7: 30 PM AT KING PHILIP HIGH SCHOOL

ited with receipts from Inspection Services under the authority
i     <

and direction of the Board of Water Commissioners, such ex-     
TUESDAY JUNE 6, 1997 a A{;t,, 3'

penditures not to exceed$ 5, 000.     
The meeting was called to order at 7: 40 p. m. There were 1  ,

ARTICLE 29 86 voters in attendance.

ARTICLE 29 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY The Moderator read the following letter from the Norfolk f

VOICE VOTE( Fund for Ambulance Transport Services)    American Legion Post# 335

ARTICLE 30
TO THE CITIZENS OF NORFOLK:

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the General Your only local Veterans Group, The Norfolk Post of the
Bylaws, Article 1, Town Meeting and Elections, by adding the National American Legion, wishes to congratulate the citizens r,r' i

following new Section 9: 
ofNorfolk, and in particular the Cemetery Department and vol-
unteers who participated in the Memorial Platform and surround-
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ing facets of the facility in the Norfolk Cemetery honoring Vet-     1.    Add the following new definition to Section B," Deli.
erans of the Armed Forces and all Citizens who have worked for nition Section"

and suffered through national emergencies in service to our na-

tion and its ability to avoid major conflicts on our soil.      WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY shall
mean a facility( with antennas, if any) designed to facilitate the

Though most of us have suffered ancillary discomforts and following types of services; cellular telephone service, personal
sacrifices from world conflicts, our Armed Forces have kept most communications service, and extended specialized mobile radio

major conflict from occurring on our mainland. With support service.

from our citizens at home, our forces have, for the most part,
shielded us from most battles which might have escalated to our 2.    Add the following provision as Section 1. 7. b Spe.
very backyards.      cial PermitUses by the Zoning Board ofAppeals.

This edifice conveys the spirit of our people in remember-     Telecommunications and cellular towers consisting of
ing and appreciating these efforts.      Wireless Communications Facilities on an existing structure, on

property owned by the Town of Norfolk which is in the care,
It is with great respect and appreciation that our Norfolk custody, management and control of the Board of Selectmen,

Veterans thank Norfolk' s people and leadership for erecting this the Board of Road Commissioners, or the Water Commission
monument. Our Town employees and leaders should be con-      ers.

mended, in particular for extra effort in readying the facility in
time for use on Memorial Day. 3.    Add the following new Section 1. 4.a. 16 Regulation

of Wireless Communication Facilities
Your Veterans appreciate this dedication to our Veterans.

Wireless Communications Facilities. Notwithstanding any
Sincerely,    language to the contrary in Sections 1. 7.a Wireless Communica-
George Clinton, Service Officer tions Facilities ( including antennas, if any) may be erected in

Town Center District (B- 1) upon the issuance of a special per
The Moderator also noted that two flags had been donated mit by the Board of Appeals pursuant to applicable zoning by-

to ytothe town for use in the Cemetery: one by Paul Muliero in laws. As part of any application for said special permit, appli-
memory of his father Matthew who served in the Navy during cants shall submit, at a minimum, the information required for

World Wars I and H; one from Janet Prevett in memory of her site plan approval, as set forth in applicable zoning bylaws, as
husband Leo who served in the Navy in World War II. may be amended.

ARTICLE 32 Applicants shall comply with all of the following condi-
tions:

Planning Board Recommendation
1.    To the extent feasible, all network interconnections

Adds a description for" Wireless Communications Facil-   from the Wireless Communications Facility shall be
ity", adds a new Section in the B1 District ( Town Center) by via land lines.

special permit for such uses, and adds a new Section 1. 4.a. 16,
Regulation of Wireless Communication Facilities. In the Fall 2.    Existing on- site vegetation shall be preserved to the
we did not support the article that was proposed relative to Tele-   maximum extent practicable.

communications and Cellular Phone Towers because it was tech-
nically inadequate and recommended Indefinite Postponement.     3.    The Wireless Communications Facility shall mini-
Nevertheless, Town Meeting voted to support the article which Mize, to the extent feasible, adverse visual effects
simply put a use in the B I District to allow the use without safe-   on the environment.  The Board of Appeals may
guards. We believe that the current Article 32 addresses some of impose reasonable conditions to ensure this result
our prior concerns but again believe that the article as presented
is inadequate. In this case, however, we support this article with 4.    Traffic associated with the Wireless Communications
the caveat that further safeguards should be instituted at the Fall Facility and accessory facilities shall not adversely
Annual Town Meeting, We recommend the Board ofWater Corn-   affect abutting ways.
missioners work with other Town agencies to present a more

comprehensive and complete article for the Fall Town Meeting.     The following types of wireless communications towers
are exempt from Section 1. 7.b:

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to
amend the Zoning Bylaws of the Town as follows:
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a.     Amateur radio towers used in accordance with Federal Grants and reimbursements for the Water Department

the terms of any amateur radio service license which do not require matching funds from the Town or any rep-
issued by the Federal Communications Com-      resentative or agency thereof and will not obligate or encumber
mission, provided that( 1) the tower is not used any resident of the Town of Norfolk without a t     ;. resting.

or licensed for any commercial purpose, ( 2)
the tower must have a cost of replacement ARTICLE 37

value of less than$ 10, 000, and( 3) the tower

must be removed if the use is discontinued for MOVED and Seconded to acquire by donation, purchase 4

six months, and or eminent domain land parcels or easements for the purpose of
obtaining a secure and public right of way for the Miller Street

b.     Towers used for the purposes set forth in Mas-      bridge construction project.

sachusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, Sec-

tion 3. Substitute Motion to omit the words " eminent dom2rin"
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE

ARTICLE 33
New Main Motion APPROVED BY VOICE to acquiro

Planning Board Recommendations- Amends the Sched-      by donation, or purchase land parcels of easements for the pur-
tile of Sign Regulations by adding to Section F9.b. 1. the words pose of obtaining a secure and public right of way for the Miller
or one freestanding after the word" wall". This will allow either Street bridge construction project.

a free standing sign or a sign on a building for the purpose of
advertising farm produce. The Planning Board recommends that ARTICLE 38 Y-=

this article be indefinitely Postponed as worded in the warrant.      
As worded the article provides no definition of limits for the MOVED AND SECONDED to authorize the Board of

free standing sign square feet and there are other safeguards that Selectmen to acquire by gift, eminent domain o otherwise st ch

should be considered when putting a free standing sign in a resi-      easements as may be necessary for drainage purposks and tare t i.

dential area. These safeguards include but may not be limited to laying out of public ways. j

defining of size, illumination controls and restrictions on eligi-
bility.     

Amended Motion to omit words" eminent domain" AP-
PROVED BY VOICE VOTE f

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the Zoning i

Bylaw of the Town or Norfolk by deleting the current wording NEW MAIN MOTION APPROVED BYVOICE VOTE i

of Bylaw F.9.b. 1. c. 1 and substituting the following wording. One
wall SIGN not to exceed 8 sq.ft., or one freestanding SIGN not ARTICLE 39 i

to exceed 8' sq. ft. in area per side located on property whose
primary use is for AGRICULTURAL purposes. Said sign shall

ARTICLE 39 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY

be used for advertising the sale of AGRICULTURAL products
VOICE VOTE( Open Space)

or produce. If located in a residential zone signs are not to be
illuminated.      

ARTICLE 40

ARTICLE 34 ARTICLE 40 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY
VOICE VOTE( Surplus municipal land)  

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to establish a workers 1
compensation claims reserve fund in accordance with the provi-     

ARTICLE 41

sions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Sections 13A t,

and 13C as amended.    
APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to trans- 

fer from Water Revenues to acquire by eminent domain addi-  
ARTICLE 35

tional land off Mill River road for a watershed and well from
Mary U. Mikita, Trustee ofAntimur Trust, and James H. Wyllie,

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to authorize the Board and for expenses of taking and registration fees; to apply for and
1

of Selectmen to accept any monies received through grants ap-      accept any State and Federal grants and reimbursements that

plied for by various Town Departments/Boards.       
become available therewith;

ARTICLE 36
I

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept all State and
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ARTICLE 42 01. 5122.3190 Audit 700.00
01. 5122. 8571 Potter Prop Maint/Disposal 136.71

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to au-      01. 5122. 8720 Addt' l Office Space 3, 086.00
thorize the Board of Selectmen to advertise in a local newspaper 01. 5152.4010 Personnel Bd Expenses 1, 200.00
and sell at public sale from time to time, as it may deem in the 01. 5162. 1100 Elections Salary 225.00
best interest of the Town, any and all lands or portions thereof 01. 5189.8599 Library Renovation TM 94 756,00

which the Town has acquired or may acquire as Tax Title land,      01. 5189.8922 Lib/Pol/ Fire Building TM 84 1, 870.78
so called, such sales to be made on behalf of the inhabitants of 01. 5210. 1011 Police Salaries Encumbered 14,000.00
the Town of Norfolk, and to authorize the Selectmen to expend 01. 5210.8555 Rabies Inoculation- TM 94 600.00
from the proceeds of such sale the necessary costs of recording 01. 5210.8709 Police Bulletproof Vests- TM 95 2,848.00

fees, documentary stamps, and auctioneers fees, if required;  01. 5231. 3121 Ambulance Training& Tuition Encumbered

7,000.00
ARTICLE 43 01. 5241. 1100 Building Dept. Salaries 565.00

01. 5303.4010 Tri-County Assessment 1, 153.00
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to grant the Board of 01. 5421. 4011 Highway Expenses Encumbered 1, 200.00

Selectmen permission to sell surplus property of the Town, ex-      01. 5420.8583 Highway Dump Trucks- TM 96 365.72

elusive of buildings and land, no longer needed by the Town; 01. 5491. 8585 Cemetery Lawnmowers- TM 96 844. 15
01. 5543.7700 Veteran' s Benefits 2, 500.00

ARTICLE 44 Total 40, 170.36

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to authorize the Town to:

Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Selectmen, to bor-

row money from time to time in anticipation of revenue for the Acct Number Acct Name Amount

fiscal year beginning on July 1, 1997 in accordance with the 01. 5135. 1100 Accounting Salaries 48.00
provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 01. 5162.4010 Election Expenses 225.00
4, and to issue a note or notes therefore payable within one year 01. 5162.4027 Special Election Expense 3, 500.00

and to renew any note or notes as may be given for a period of 01. 5220. 1100 Fire Salaries 20,000.00

less than one year in accordance with Massachusetts General 01. 5230. 1100 Ambulance Salaries 3, 200.00
Laws, Chapter 44, Section 17.  01. 5220.4010 Fire Expenses 1, 20000

01. 5421. 4010 Building Dept Expenses 565.00
ARTICLE 45 01. 5293. 1100 Animal Control Salaries 520.00

01. 5423. 4010 Snow& Ice 10,912.36
ARTICLE 45 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED( Bills of Total 40,170.36

a Prior year)

ARTICLE 47
ARTICLE 11

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE appropriate to the Stabi-
ARTICLE 11 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY lization Fund, established pursuant to the provisions of Chapter

VOICE VOTE( Pond St. Engineering) 40, Section 5B of Massachusetts General Laws fan amount equal
to the difference between the amount of the Town is authorized to

ARTICLE 18 levy for FY 1998 Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes and the
sum of all amounts to be so levied excepting said appropriation, it

ARTICLE 18 INDEFINI'T' ELY POSTPONED being the intent of this Town Meeting for these purposes to use its
Medway St. Sidewalk) authority to appropriate such sums as will levy taxes to the maxi-

mum limit authorized by proposition 21/ 2 so called, for FY 1998,
ARTICLE 46

MOVED, SECONDED AND APPROVED BY VOICE
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to make the following VOTE TO DISSOLVE THIS TOWN MEETING. The meet-

transfers in the various departmental budgets for the Fiscal Year ing was dissolved at 10 PM.
ending on June 30, 1997

NOTE: the Bylaw changes approved at this town meeting
from:     were approved by the Attorney General effective October 24,

1997.
Acct Number Acct Name Amount

01. 5122. 1100 Selectmen' s Salary 1, 120,00
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SPECIAL ELECTION above holidays should fall on a Saturday, the Friday preceding

WEDNESDAY, JULY 1, 1997 the holiday shall be granted off as provided herein.

ARTICLE 2 a

Pursuant to the duly posted and distributed Warrant for a
Special Town Election, the inhabitants of Precincts 1, 2 and 3 of APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the Town of
the Town ofNorfolk, qualified to vote in town affairs, assembled Norfolk Personnel Bylaw, Article XX, Suspensions, be deleting
in MacBride Auditorium in the Freeman Centennial Elementary in its entirety, and replace it as follows:
School on Tuesday, July 1, 1997.

XX. Suspensions i
The polls were open from 7: 00 a.m. to 8: 00 p.m. A total j

of 1, 555 voters ( 33% of those eligible) cast their ballots, with Suspensions are to be implemented only in extrem`' y se. 4),

the following result:     rious situations and/ or when time is needed to gather' s+ torna;.-
tion to determine the facts in a situation,  A suspension of 3

Question1workingdays or less may be implemented, with or without pay,
in the Supervisors judgment. All suspensions shall be cortss-

Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an addi-      tent with Article XXIII( B) Dismissal with Notice.

tional$ 156,448 in real estate and personal property taxes for the
purposes of the Norfolk Elementary School for the fiscal year The Personnel Board must be notified in writing atthe
beginning on July first, nineteen hundred and ninety seven?  beginning of the suspension period. Notification shall include

the reason, duration, and type of suspension implemented.
YES 864

NO 690 ARTICLE 3
Blank 1

TOTAL 1, 555 APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the Town of

Norfolk Personnel Bylaw by deleting the Calendar on page 3 in
FALL TOWN MEETING its entirety and replace it as follows: Ir    !'_

NOVEMBER 18, 1997
CALENDAR

it

MINUTES Anytime Requests for Classification of New Positions

The Meeting was called to order at 7: 35 p. m. on Tuesday,      March Performance Appraisals completed and original 1,

November 18, 1997 at the King Philip High School Auditorium.       sent to Personnel Board no later than 3/ 31 rl,.

Trumpeter George Clinton played the National Anthem, accom-       Public Hearing by Personnel Board for all
panied by pianist Charles Stacey of Wrentham. The Moderator changes proposed on the Annual Town Meeting 1
introduced the Town Clerk, Finance Director,Town Administra-       Warrant

tor, Board of Selectmen, Town Counsel, and the Advisory Board
Chairman, who in turn introduced the members of his board.      April Notification of response to Performance Apprais-
There were 221 voters and 14 non-voters in attendance.    

r,''

als( when appropriated)

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE TO WAIVE THE i,; 4
READING OF THE WARRANT AND RETURN OF THE

July Longevity paid

WARRANT.     September Public Hearing by Personnel Board for all C;

ARTICLE T.       
changes proposed on the Fall Town Meeting
Warrant 31p

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the Town of
Norfolk Personnel Bylaw,Article XIV,Fringe Benefits, Section

December Requests for re- classification and/ or re-evaluation
Y g of positions, approved by the Department Head,

3 by deleting sub- section 3 ( b) in its entirety and replace it as must be received by 12/ 31 in order to be consid-
follows:    ered for the upcoming Annual Town Meeting.

If any of the above holidays should fall on a normal day ARTICLE 4

off, an additional days pay or additional day off shall be given,    
subject to the approval of the department head.  If any of the APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend the Town of      ! ss
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Norfolk Personnel Bylaw Article VI New Personnel by deleting copy of which is on file in the office of the Town Clerk, to en.
Section B. Hiring New Employees in its entirety and replace it able the Selectmen to sell Easement Rights.

as follows:
ARTICLE 10

B.    Hiring New Employees
APPROVED BY MAJORITY VOICE VOTE DE.

All new employees are to be hired at Step 1, 2, or 3 in CLARED BY THE MODERATOR that pursuant to the provi•

accordance with their experience and qualifications, at the dis-       sions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 40, Section 3, to

cretion of the hiring supervisor. If the applicant is found to pos-       authorize the Board of Selectmen to grant to GMS, Inc., a Mat.

sess an experience level or other qualifications that warrant a sachusetts corporation having a usual place of business in Nor.
higher compensation level, the facts are to be presented to the folk, Norfolk County, Massachusetts, its successors and/ or as.
Personnel Board for review and approval. If a new employee is signs, a perpetual right and easement to use and maintain that

hired at a step level above Step 1, step increases will only occur certain septic system presently installed in and under that piece
on an annual basis. The probationary period requirements, as of land, containing 10,054 square feet of land more or less, shown'
outlined in the Probationary Section of this bylaw apply.      as Septic Easement on a plan entitled Easement Plan Norfolk,

Mass., dated July 12, 1996, by GLM Engineering Consultants,
ARTICLE S.     Inc., a copy of which is or file in the Office of the Town Clerk,

together with the right to enter upon said premises, at any time

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer $ 130, 151 that it may see fit, for the purpose of maintaining, cleaning, re.
from Free Cash and the proceeds from the trade- in of the present pairing and re- installing said septic system and taking whatever
Ambulance to purchase and equip a new ambulance for the Fire action is deemed necessary for the maintenance and continued
Department.     use of said septic system for the benefit of the premises situated

at 24 Rockwood Road, Norfolk, Norfolk County, Massachusetts;
The Moderator has been requested to defer action on Ar-

ticle 6 until after Article 62.   ARTICLE 11

There were no objections from the Town Meeting mem-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to rescind the unissued

bers.     balances of these bonds or notes authorized by votes of town
meetings for water purposes:

ARTICLE 7

Town Meeting Date Article Amount to be Rescinded

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to ac-       November 16, 1994 36 211, 919.00

quire by donation, purchase or eminent domain land parcels or May 23, 1995 23 26,354.00

easements for the purpose of obtaining a secure and public right November 21, 1995 16 627,000.00

of way for the Miller Street Bridge construction project, and to November 19, 1996 40 18, 845.03

transfer from Additional Lottery Aid$ 1. 00 for said purchase.
ARTICLE 12

ARTICLE 8

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to ap
APPROVED BYVOICE VOTE DECLARED BYTHE propriate$ 900,000 to replace 7, 260 feet of water main in Union

MODERATOR AS A 2/3 VOTE to acquire by donation, our-       Street from Diamond Street to North Street, in King Street from
chase or eminent domain land parcels or e:: ements for the pur-       Union Street to King Philip North Junior High School, in North
pose of obtaining a secur'e' s. d public right of way for the Main Street from Union Street to Union Street, in Mirror Lake Av.
SUM Intersection Reconstruction project, and transfer from enue in Shear Street, in Ash Road, and this appropriation Of

Additional Lottery Aid 100'for said purpose. 100,000 be transferred fromWater Department Retained Earn

Ings, and that the Treasurer with the approval of the Selectmen, 1,
ARTICLE 9,     be authorized to borrow$ 800,000 under the provisions of Chap

ter 44, Section 8( 5) of the General Laws of Massachusetts, or
APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE pursu-       any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the

ant to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter Town therefor.

40, Section 15A, to transfer from the School Committee to the
Board of Selectmen control of a certain piece or parcel of land,     ARTICLE 13

containing 10,054 square feet of land more or less, shown as
Septic Easement on a plan entitled Easement Plan Norfolk, Mass.,     ARTICLE 13 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY

dated July 12, 1996, by GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc., a VOICE VOTE( Temporary Political Signs)
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i.  ARTICLE 14 tersection with such street unless a written permit is first oh-

tained from the Highway Superintendent.
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend its Bylaws,

Article IX Sign Regulations, Section 5 by adding to Section 5. e ARTICLE 20

after the words " Norfolk Fire Department" the words" or by a
qualified installer approved by the Board of Selectmen".    Planning Board Recommendation - Adds to Section

E. 1. c.2.  LOT Width, the requirement that no lot be narrower

D
ARTICLE 15 than 50' between the frontage and the rear of the dwelling. Only

the first paragraph of the article should he part of the motion as

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer the sum of a sentence was inadvertently omitted from the second paragraph.
1, 862.50 from the Wetland Protection Fund to the Wetland Pro-      With the change as noted, the Planning Board supports passage

LI tection Expense Account. of this article.       s

e

n! ARTICLE 16 APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaw by adding the following sen-
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer from 1997-      tence to Section E. 1. c.2. LOT Width" No lot shall be narrower

1998 Fiscal Year budgets: than 50 feet at any point between the frontage and the rear of the
e dwelling.

01. 5302.4010 King Philip Regional School 34,513 i

r 01. 5299. 8578 Fire/Police Station Ceiling Tiles 3, 500 ARTICLE 21

d
t

d Total 38,013 Planning Board Recommendation Adds to Se 4.: tion E. 1. c.4
the requirement that lots be no narrower than the Minimum front- 

and to transfer to 1997- 1998 Fiscal Year Budgets:      age through the added requirement lot width circle. The Plan-

ning Board supports passage of this article. This is intended to
01. 5151. 3090 Town Counsel( Litigation) 1, 500 provide a mechanism, along with the Build Factor, to reduce the

d 01. 5158.4010 Tax Title Foreclosure 17, 903 potential for odd shaped lots by requiring a minimum width of

n 01. 5162.4027 Special Elections 2, 000 lots which is called the" required circle". As a result of discus-

01. 5231. 4010 Ambulance Expenses 3, 000 sion during the public hearing, we recommend adding to Article
01. 5220. 1100 Fire Department Salaries 6, 525 21, a definition for the following: " required circle is defined as

l 01. 5220.8172 Fire Department Bay Exhaust 3, 500 a circle with a diameter equal to the minimum FRONTAGE.

01. 7701. 0815 School Special Needs Equipment 3, 585
MOVED and Seconded to amend the Norfolk Zoning

Total 38,013 Bylaw by changing Section E. l. c.4. by adding the following
sentence to the end of the section: No lot shall be narrower than

ARTICLE 17 its minimum frontage between such right-of-way line and the
required circle.  Required Circle is defined as a circle with a

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to trans-      diameter equal to the minimum FRONTAGE.

w fer from Fiscal Year 1997- 1998 Additional Lottery Aid the
n amount of$ 12, 096.25 to pay a prior year bill for Tax Title ser-     The Section will read now as follows:     y,:

a viees rendered as of June 30, 1997.
fit, E, 1. e.4. The minimum LOT width shall be maintained from 7';

r• ARTICLE 18 the FRONTAGE line to the front YARD setback line. No lot 4

g'( shall be narrower than its minimum frontage between such right

I. APPROVED BYVOICE VOTE to transfer from Fiscal of way line and the required circle.      I:
F

Yearar

1997
1

98tea
ititi l Aid the amotint of$ 11, 000
legalclaim.       Required Circle is defined as a circle with a diameter equal

It to the minimum FRONTAGE.

10,, ARTICLE 19

a MOTION to Amend by adding the words" and tangent to

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to amend Article X,      the frontage" DEFEATED BY COUNTED YES 23, NO 73 t.

Section 26 of its Bylaws by deleting the words " Building In-
spector" and replacing these with the words" Highway Superinr MAIN MOTION APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE DE-

y tendent", so the sentence reads: No driveway or other access to CLARED AS 2/ 3 by the Moderator
a public street shall be constructed or altered at the point of in-
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ARTICLE 22

Planning Board Recommendation- Changes Section E. 1. 1)
Schedule ofDimensional Requirements" by adding a new col-

umn Lot Width Circle Diameter( in feet)". The Planning Board
supports passage of this article which places Required Circle"

into the Dimensional Table,

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE DECLARED AS 2/3

BY THE MODERATOR to amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaw,
Section E. 1. b. Schedule of Dimensional Requirements by add-
ing a new column entitled Lot Width Circle that will pertain all
the residential districts so that the Schedule of Dimensional Re-

quirements will now read as follows:

E. 1. b. Schedule of Dimensional Requirements

District Minimum Minimum Lot Width Minimum Maximum Maximum

Lot Size Frontage Circle Yard Setback Lot Building
sq. ft.)   in feet) Diameter in feet) Coverage*      Height

in feet)

Front Side Rear Stories Feel

Residence 1 30,00 150 150 50 25 25 25%       2- 1/ 2 35

Residence 2 43,560 200 200 50 25 25 25%       2- 1/ 2 35
Residence 3 55, 000 200 200 50 25 25 25%       2- 1/ 2 35
Business 2- 4 30,000 150 25 25 25 30%  40

Commercial 2,3,5 30,000 150 50 25 25 30%**   40
HIV!& PO 30,000 150 50 25 25 30%**   40

Including ACCESSORY BUILDINGS.   APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to
60% when PARKING AREAS are included.       amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by deleting the cur-

rent Sections D. 1. e. and D, 1. f,in their entireties and substituting
ARTICLE 23 a new Section D. 1. e. as printed in the Warrent (Language fol-

lows),

Planning BoardRecommendation: The Planning Board is
requesting this article be indefinitely postponed as the digital D. 1. e.      Buffer/Green Belt/Landscaping Requirements in
zoning map is not yet available. Non-Residential Districts.

ARTICLE 23 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED( DIGI-      D. I. e. 1,    All outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel, refuse,
TAL MAP)     

materials and/or equipment shall be enclosed by a fence of solid
and uniform appearance not less than six feet in height or a tight

ARTICLE 24 WILL BE DISCUSSED AFTER AR-      and well maintained evergreen hedge which shall attain a height
TICLE 31

of not less than six feet, in order to conceal such uses from ad-

CLE
joining properties.  Such facilities shall be located to the side

ARTIand/or rear of the BUILDING to which it is accessory, and the
enclosure shall not exceed 1, 000 square feet in area except by

Planning Board Recommendation- Deletes caret Sec-      Special Permit from the Planning Board.
tion D. I. e and D. l, f.and adds new Section 0.1. e, Buffer/Green
Belt/Landscaping in Non-Residential Districts. Primarily a con D. 1. e.2.    In the B2-B4 and HM& PO Districts, no BUILD-
densing and rearrangement of the current Sections 0,1, e and ING or STRUCTURE shall be located less than 50 feet from a
0,1f, The Planning Board supports this article, which rearranges Residential District, In the C2,C3 and C5 Districts, no BUILD-
and relocates Zoning bylaw sections dealing with buffer/green ING or STRUCTURE shall be located less than 150 feet from a
belt/landscaping for business and commercial districts,       Residential District.  In the B2-B4, HM & PO, C2, C33, and

C5Districts, no use( including PARKING AREAS, driveways,
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vehicle circulation areas or other vehicle access ways) shall be ARTICLE 26

located less than 50 feet from a Residential District.
APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

D. 1. e. 3.    In the B2-B4 and HM& PO Districts, a green belt amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by making the
shall be provided on any LOT that abuts a Residential District changes and additions to Section 1. 4.b. 1. ( B- 1 District Town

should any use on said LOT ( including any BUILDINGS,      Center) as printed in the Warrant. ( Language follows)

STRUCTURES, driveways, PARKING AREAS, vehicle circu-
lation areas or other vehicle access ways) be located less than Renumber Section 1. 4.b. 1. a. to Section 1. 4.b. I. A.,deIete it 0
100 feet from the Residential District. In the C2, C3 and C5 in its entirety and replace with the following:
Districts, a green belt shall be provided on any LOT that abuts a
Residential District. Such a green belt shall:   1. 4.b. 1. A.       No BUILDING, STRUCTURE, Use, PARK-

ING AREA, driveway, vehicle circulation area, or other vehicle 11
D. l.e.3. a.      Be located on the non- residential LOT access way shall be located less than 50 feet from the Residen- 1

along the shared property line.   tial District.

D. 1. e. 3. b.      Have a minimum depth from the shared 2,    Renumber Section 1. 4.b. 1. b. to Section 1. 4. h. 1. B.,

property line of 30 feet. Delete it in its entirety and replace with the follow- sg'
ing:    

I¢'

D. I. e.3. c.      Be used for no purpose other than planting
and/ or sidewalks.  1. 4.b. 1. B.      All outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel,

refuse, materials and/ or equipment shall be screened from view

D,l.e.3. d,      Constitute a screen ofevergreen trees and/      with a solid fence a STRUCTURE and located to the rear of the
eel or shrubs not more than 15 feet apart building to which it is accessory. The fence shall be of reason
35 planted in two or more staggered rows, The able height, a minimum of 6 feet, and the enclosure shall not

35distance between each row shall not be exceed 1, 000 square feet in area except by Special Permit from
35 more than 10 feet, Plants shall be no less the Planning Board.
40 than 6 feet in height at the time of planting
40 and shall be continuously maintained.  3.    Add a new Section 1. 4.b. 1. C. as follows:   l

40

In those circumstances where an effective screen of exist-      1, 4.b. 1. C.      A green belt shall be provided on any LOT that i,
to

ing plantings already provides an appropriate buffer, the Plan-      abuts a Residential District should any use on said LOT( includ-
r' t ning Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval pro-      ing any BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, PARKING AREAS,
g 1 cess, to waive strict compliance with Section D. 1. e.3., provided driveways, vehicle circulation areas orother vehicle access ways) 1

i1' 1 that the intent of Section D. 1. e. 3. is met.  If such a waiver is be located less than 100 feet from the Residential District. Such
4'+

granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval, re-      green belt shall:

quire that the green belt be maintained and replanted where nee-   7
10 I essary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of the 1, 4,b. 1. C. 1. Be located on the non-residential LOT along

site and the STRUCTURE.  the shared property line.

e'  D.1. e.4. Landscaping Requirements: For each foot 1. 41. C, I,   Have a minimum depth from the shared prop-

idofFRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 erty line of 30 feet,
ht square feet of landscaping. This require-
ht ment shall not be conditioned to require 1. 4.b, 1. C. 3. Be used for no purpose other than planting and/
d landscaping of more than 20% of the LOT.  or sidewalks.

ie

t101.4.b. 1. 0.4. Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/orARTICLES 6, 27-AND 28 g

ry =   shrubs not more than 15 feet apart planted in

Planning Board Recommendations: Article 26, Article 27,  two or more staggered rows.  The distance 1'

Article 28 makes changes and adds to current Section 1. 4.b. 1( B-  between each tow shall not he more than 10

1 District Town Center), J, 4,b. 1.( District Routes 115/ 1A) and feet. Plants shall be no less than 6 feet in height
a K.4.b. 1 ( C-4 Mixed Use District, Routes 115/ Holbrook Street):  at the time of planting and shall be continu-

The Planning Board supports these articles which place Buffer/  ously maintained.
a

Green Belt/Landscaping requirements into each of the aforemen
td

tioned zoning bylaw sections.
s,
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In those circumstances where an effective screen of exist-     l,4.b. 1. C.4. Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/or

ing plantings already provides an appropriate buffer, the Plan-  shrubs not more than 15 feet apart planted in
ping Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval pro-  two or more staggered rows.  The distance
cess, to waive strict compliance with Section 1. 4.b. 1. C., provided between each row shall not be more than 10
that thx: intent of Section 1. 4.b. 1. C. is met. If such a waiver is feet. Plants shall be no less than 6 feet in height
granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval, re-  at the time of planting and shall be continu-
quire that the green belt he maintained and replanted where nec-  ously maintained.

essary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of the
site and the STRUCTURE.       In those circumstances where an effective screen of

existing plantings already provides an appropriate buffer, the
4.    Add a new Section 1. 4.b. 1. D. as follows:  Planning Board has the discretion, during the Site plan Approval

process, to waive strict compliance with Section 1. 4.b, 1. C., pro.
1. 4.B. 1. D. Landscaping Requirements: For each foot of vided that the intent of Section 1, 4.b. 1. C. is met. If such a waiver

FRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 square is granted, the Planning Board shall in its Site Plan Approval,
feet of landscaping.  This requirement shall require that the green belt be maintained and replanted where

not be conditioned to require landscaping of necessary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of
more than 20% of the LOT. the site and the STRUCTURE.

Section 1. 4.b. 1. will now read as follows: 1. 4.b. 1. D. Landscaping Requirements: For each foot
of FRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 square feet of

1. 4.b. 1.   General Requirements landscaping. This requirement shall not be conditioned to
require landscaping of more than 20% of the LOT.

1. 4.b. l.A. No BUILDING, STRUCTURE, Use, PARK-

ING AREA, driveway, vehicle circulation area,     ARTICLE 27

or other vehicle access way shall be located
less than 50 feet from the Residential District.     APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by making the following
1. 4.b. 1. B.       All outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel,      changes and additions to Section J. 4.b. 1. C- District - ( Routes

refuse, materials and/ or equipment shall be 115/ 1A).

screened from view with a solid fence STRUC-

TURE and located to the rear of the building to 1.   Renumber Section J.4.b. 1.( A). to Section J. 4.b. l.A,

which it is accessory. The fence shall be of rea-   delete it in its entirety, and replace with the follow-
sonable height, a minimum of 6 feet, and the ing:
enclosure shall not exceed 1, 000 square feet in

area except by Special Permit from the Planning J.4.b. l.A.  LOTS that abut a property with a residentially occu-
Board.       pied BUILDING shall provide on the commercially

used LOT a green belt buffer of evergreen trees or
1. 4.b.C. A green belt shall be provided on any LOT that shrubs along the property line in a single row. The

abuts a Residential District should any use on plants shall be no less than 6 feet in height at the

said LOT( including any BUILDINGS, STRUC-   time of planting, be located six feet on center and
TURES, PARKING AREAS, driveways, vehicle continuously maintained. A green belt shall be pro-
circulation areas or other vehicle access ways)   vided on any LOT that abuts a Residential District.
be located less than 100 feet from the Residen-   Such green belt shall:
tial District. Such green belt shall:

J.4,b. 1. A. 1. Be located on the non-residential LOT along
1. 4.b.C. I.   Be located on the non-residential LOT along the shared property line.

the shared property line.

J. 4.b, I. A:2. Have a minimum depth from the shared prop-
1. 4.b. I. C.2. Have a minimum depth from the shared prop-  erty line of 30 feet.

erty line of 30 feet.

J.4.b. 1, A.3. Be used for no purpose other than planting and/
1. 4.b. I. C.3. Be used for no purpose other than planting and/  or sidewalks,

or sidewalks.

J. 4.b. 1. A.4, Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/ or
shrubs not more than 15 feet apart planted in
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at two or more staggered rows.  The distance J.4.b. 1. E.       Landscaping Requirements:  For each foot of

In between each row shall not be more than 10 FRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 square
e feet. Plants shall be no less than 6 feet in height feet of landscaping. `This re. tdirement shall not
0 at the time of planting and shall be continu- be conditioned to require landscaping of more
it ously maintained.      than 20% of the LOT.
1-

In those circumstances where an effective screen of exist-      Section J.4.b. 1. will now read as follows:

ing plantings already provides an appropriate buffer, the Plan- 
f ning Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval pro-      J. 4.b. 1. General Requirements:

1e cess, to waive strict compliance with Section J.4.b. 1. A., provided
al that the intent of Section J.4.b. 1. A. is met. If such a waiver is J.4.b. I. A.       LOTS that abut a property with a residentially
1•     granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval, re- occupied BUILDING shall provide on the cons-

N'    quire that the green belt be maintained and replanted where nec- mercially used LOT a green belt buffer of ever-
1,     essary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of the green trees or shrubs along the property line in a
e site and the STRUCTURE.      single row. The plants shall he no less than 6
1f feet in height at the time of planting, be located

2.       Renumber Section J. 4. b. I.( B) to Section six feet on center and continuously maintained.

J.4.b. 1. B., delete it in its entirety and replace with
the following:    A green belt shall be provided on any LOT that

abuts a Residential district. Such green belt shall:

J.4.b. 1. B.       OUTDOOR STORAGE shall be permitted as

follows: J.4.b. 1. A. 1. Be located on the non- residential LOT along
the shared property line.

1)    Automobile and Light Truck Class 1 Sales displayed

a minimum of 20 feet from the front LOT LINE and J.4.b. 1. A.2. Have a minimum depth from the shared prop-
a in no way obstructing vehicle sight lines.      erty line of 30 feet.

s 2)    RETAIL NURSERY plant stock displayed a mini-     J.4.b. 1. A.3. Be used for no purpose other than planting

mum of 20 feet from the front LOT LINE and in no and/ or sidewalks.

way obstructing vehicle sight lines.
J.4.b. 1. A.4. Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/or

3)    All other outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel,   shrubs not more than 15 feet apart planted in

refuse, materials and/ or equipment shall be screened two or more staggered rows.  The distance

from view with a solid fence STRUCTURE and lo-   between each row shall not be more than 10 s

I. cated to the side and/or rear of the BUILDING to feet.  Plants shall be no less than 6 feet in 1,+ 2

Y which it is accessory. The fence shall be of reason-   height at the time of planting and shall be 1P
r able height, a minimum of six( 6) feet, and the en-   continuously maintained.      

ce closure shall not exceed 1, 000 square feet in area t

1e except by Special Permit from the Planning Board.     In those circumstances where an effective screen of exist- P. 1

id ing plantings already provides an appropriate buffer, the Plan-
3.       Renumber Section J. 4.b. 1.( C). to Section ning Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval pro-

t,     J. 4.b. I. C. cess, to waive strict compliance with Section 1. 4. b. I.A.,provided qi

that the intent of Section 1.4.b. I. A. is met. If such a waiver is r

4.       Add a new Section 1. 4,b. 1: D. as follows:      granted, the Planning Board shall, in ins Site Plan Approval, re- 1

g quire that the green belt be maintained and replanted where nec-

1. 4.b. 1. D.       No BUILDING or STRUCTURE shall be lo-      essary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of the i

cated less than 150 feet from a Residential Dis-      site and the STRUCTURE.

trict and no use( including PARKING AREAS,    
Ifi

driveways, vehicle circulation areas or other ve-      1.4.b. I. B.       OUTDOOR STORAGE shall be permitted as

hicleaccesss ways) shall be located less than 50 follows:   fi'
9 feet from a Residential District.

1)    Automobile and Light Truck Class I Sales displayed 1j

5.       Add a new Section J.4.b. 1. E, as follows:   a minimum of 20 feet from the front LOT LINE and l

r in no way obstructing vehicle sight lines.   t`

n
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2)    RETAIL NURSERY plant stock displayed a mini-     1) RETAIL NURSERY plant stock displayed a minimum
mum of 20 feet from the front LOT LINE and in no of 20 feet from the front LOT line and in no way obstructing
way obstructing vehicle sight lines.       vehicle sight lines.

3)    All other outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel,     2) All other outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel, refuse,

refuse, materials and/or equipment shall be screened materials and/ or equipment shall be screened from view with a
from view with a solid fence STRUCTURE and lo-      solid fence STRUCTURE and located to the side and/or rear of
cated to the side and/ or rear of the BUILDING to the BUILDING to which it is accessory. The fence shall be of

which it is accessory. The fence shall be of reason-      reasonable height, a minimum of six( 6) feet, and the enclosure
able height, a minimum of six( 6) feet, and the en-      shall not exceed 1, 000 square feet in area except by Special Per.
closure shall not exceed 1, 000 square feet in area mit from the Planning Board.
except by Special Permit from the Planning Board.

3.      Renumber Section K. 4. b. 1.( C). to Section

J.4.b. l.C.    Any use, except those listed in Section D. l. c. of K.4.b. I. C.

this zoning bylaw, FARMER'S MARKETS, and
Open Space, Village Greens and Squares, shall have 4.      Renumber Section K.4.b. 1.( D). to Section

a BUILDING with a minimum FOOTPRINT of K.4.b. 1. D. delete it in its entirety and replace with
2,000 square feet. the following:

J. 4.b. 1, D.    No BUILDING or STRUCTURE shall be located K.4.b. I. D.     A green belt shall be provided on any commer.
less than 150 feet from a Residential District and cially used LOT that abuts a Residential District
no use( including PARKING AREAS, driveways,       or a LOT with a residentially occupied BUILD.
vehicle circulation areas or other vehicle accesss ING. A green belt shall be provided on any LOT
ways) shall be located less than 50 feet from a having an ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY. Such
Residential District.       green belt shall:

J. 4.b. 1. E.    Landscaping Requirements:  For each foot of K.4.b. I. D. I. Be located on the LOT along the shared prop.
FRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 square feet erty line.
of landscaping. This requirement shall not be con-
ditioned to require landscaping of more than 20%     K.4.b. I.D.2. Have a minimum depth from the shared prop.
of the LOT.    erty line of 50 feet.

ARTICLE 28 K.4.b. 1, D.3. Be used for no purpose other than planting
and/or sidewalks.

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by making the following K.4.b. 1. D.4. Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/or'
changes and additions to Section K.4.b. 1.( C-4 Mixed Use Dis-    shrubs not more than 15 feet apart planted in
trict- Routes 115 and Holbrook Street). ( Language follows)      two or more staggered rows. The distance

between each row shall not be more than 10
1. Renumber Section K.4.b. 1.( A), to Section K.4.b. l.A.,    feet. Plants shall be no less than 6 feet in

delete it in its entirety and replace with the following:      height at the time of planting and shall be
continuously maintained.

K.4.b. 1. A.     No Commercial BUILDING, STRUCTURE, use,
PARKING AREA, driveway vehicle circulation In those circumstances where an effective screen of exist-

area or other vehicle access way shall be located ing plantings already provide an appropriate buffer, the Plan-
within 50 feet of a residentially occupied BUILD ping Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval pro
INGS property or LOT line within 50 feet of a cess, to waive strict compliance with Section K.4.b. 1. D., pro.
Residential District.     vided that the intent of Section K.4.b. I. D. is met. If such a waiver

is granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval,'
2.      Renumber Section K.4. b. 1.( B) to Section require that the green belt be maintained and replanted where

K.4.b. 1 B., delete it in its entirety and replace with necessary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of
the following:   the site and the STRUCTURE.

K.4.b. I.B.     OUTDOOR STORAGE, shall be permitted as 5.   Renumber Section D.4.b. 1.( E). to Section
follows:       K.4.b. I. E.
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6.   Add a new Section K.4.b. 1. F. as follows: K.4.b. I. D.3.  Be used for no purpose other than planting
and/or sidewalks.

K.4.b. 1. F.   Landscaping Requirements: For each foot of
FRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 square K.4.b. 1. D.4.  Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/

feet of landscaping. This requirement shall or shrubs not more than 15 feet apart

not be conditioned to require landscaping of planted in two or more staggered rows.

more than 20% of the LOT.      The distance between each row shall not

be more than 10 feet. Plants shall be no

Section K.4.b. I. will now read as follows:     less than 6 feet in height at the time of

planting and shall be continuously
K.4.b. 1.     General Requirements maintained.

K4.b. 1. A.  No Commercial BUILDING, STRUC-     In those circumstances where an effective screen of exist-

TURE, use, PARKING AREA, driveway ing plantings already provide an appropriate buffer, the Plan-
vehicle circulation area or other vehicle ac-      ning Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval pro-
cess way shall be located within 50 feet of a cess, to waive strict compliance with Section K.4.b. 1. D., pro-

residentially occupied BUILDINGS property vided that the intent of Section K.4.b. I.D. is met. If such a waiver
or LOT line within 50 feet of a Residential is granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval,
District,      require that the green belt be maintained and replanted where

necessary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of
K.4.b. 1. B,  OUTDOOR STORAGE shall be permitted the site and the STRUCTURE.

as follows:

K,4,b. 1. E.     All YARD setbacks are to be measured from the

I) RETAIL NURSERY plant stock displayed a minimum LOT lines.

of 20 feet from the front LOT line and in no way obstructing
vehicle sight lines. K,4.b. 1, F Landscaping Requirements: For each foot of

FRONTAGE the LOT shall contain 40 square feet

2) All other outdoor facilities for the storage of fuel, refuse,       of landscaping.  This requirement shall not be
materials and/or equipment shall be screened from view with a conditioned to require landscaping of more than

solid fence STRUCTURE and located to the side and/ or rear of 20% of the LOT

the BUILDING to which it accessory, The fence shall be of
reasonable height, a minimum of six( 6) feet, and the enclosure ARTICLE 29 A'

shall not exceed 1, 000 square feet in area except by Special Per-    t
mit from the Planning Board.  Planning Board Recommendation - Provides a 10' Tree n

Preservation Zone at the frontage of lots by adding to section

K.4.b, 1. C.     Any use, except those listed in Section D. 1. c,      D. 1. f, or creates a new Section D. 1. g depending on action on
public, religious, educational, etc.) of this zon-      previous articles and adds anew Section G.2. a. regarding" Tree I

ing bylaw, FARMER'S MARKETS, Open Space,      Preservation Zone The Planning Board supports this article
i;..

Village Greens and Squares, shall have a BUILD-      which requires a minimal number of trees over 3" in diameter be IA
r

ING with minimum FOOTPRINT of 1, 000 square kept when houses are built on lots either on existing Town Ways ti

feet,       or on subdivision streets.   

K.4.b, 1, D,     A green belt shall be provided on any cornmer-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE DECLARED AS 2/ 3 II

cially used LOT that abuts a Residential District BY THE MODERATOR to amend the Norfolk Zoning By-

or a LOT with a residentially occupied BUILD-      laws SectionD. 1. f.or to create a new Section D. 1. g., as appro-   

ING. A green belt shall be provided on any LOT priate, which shall read as follows

having an ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY Such l%
green belt shall: D. I. f.(Or D. 1, g.) Tree Preservation Zone. On properties

under construction in the RI - R3 Districts, 33% of the existing

K.4.b, 1. D: 1.  Be located on the LOT along the shared trees that are 3 inches in diameter and larger and located within 1

property line,       a depth of 10 feet from the STREET right of way along the front
r

LOT LINE(S) shall be preserved.  This requirement may be

K.4.b. 1. D.2.  Have a minimum depth from the shared waived by the Building Commissioner where significant grad-
property line of 50 feet,    ing for the construction of the public or access roadway is re- iji

quired. This requirement shall remain in effect until the occu- i

pancy permit for the DWELLING is issued.      
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And to add a new Section G.2. a. to read as follows:   ARTICLE 24

G.2. a. For LOTS under construction in the R1- R3 Dis-     Planning Board Recommendation- Adds Section" D.14,
tricts, the plan shall also show the location of all trees 3 inches Buffer/Green Belt/Landscaping in Non-Residential District" to
in diameter and larger within the Tree Preservation Zone( D. 1. G.      those sections superseded in Sections I.2., J,2., and K.2. The
or D. 1. f.). Those trees to be preserved shall be indicated as such Planning Board supports this article but recommends action no
on the plan.      it be postponed until later in the Town Meeting after other as

tides dealing with Buffer/Green Belt/Landscaping are acted
ARTICLE 30 upon.

Planning Board Recommendation- Deletes Section F.7. d APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to
Parking Requirements as is now included in previous articles.)      amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws Sections I. 1., J. 2., and K.2,

Since Articles 25- 28 have passed, the Planning Board supports by adding Section D. l.e. Buffer/ Green Belt/Landscaping Re
passage of this article.  quirements in Non-Residential Districts: to the list of those see

tions that are superseded.

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by deleting F.7.d.( Parking ARTICLE 32

Requirements) in its entirety and substituting the following:
Planning Board Recommendation - Adds a definition to

This section reserved for future amendment.    Section B. for Affordable Housing Development and adds a new
Section H.3. entitled" Affordable Housing Development" which

ARTICLE 31 allows a 20% greater density with a percentage of dwellings to
be set aside for low to moderate income families in all residentti

t,,       Planning Board Recommendation- Removes citing of Sec-      tial zoning districts by Special Permit. The Planning Board sup.
tions D.1. e. and D.l.f. from Section F7.m ( Parking Require-      ports this article, which is intended to fulfill the housing goals of
ments) and rewords same, The Planning Board supports this the Master Plan by limiting Affordable Housing Developments
article as the references being deleted, which deal with land-      to residential districts while at the same time leaving available
soaping, is covered elsewhere in action already taken in Articles for future use" Business and Commercial property for economic

1 15- 19; however, we recommend amending this article because development purposes. The Planning Board believes that amend,
we believe that parking lot tree planting should not be counted ments should be made to this article and will make our recom. 3

t{

y as part of other landscaping requirements. We recommend that mendation regarding potential amendments at Town Meeting. 1
the proposed article be amended such that" Notwithstanding any l

contrary provisions of the zoning Bylaw, parking..." is substi-     MOTION Made and Seconded with many changes froth
1 tuted with" in addition to landscaping required in other sections language printed in the Warrant.

of this bylaw parking..."
s

j Substitute Motion presented by the Planning Board - a f'
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE AS 2/3 BYTHE MOD-      hand-out not previously available.  DEFEATED BY VOICE[

i ERATOR to amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws Section F.7.m VOTE.      
t

Parking Requirements) by deleting the words: In addition to
1 landscaping required by this bylaw under Section D. 1. e. and SUBSTITUTE MOTION to defer consideration of Ar<:

Section o.Lf... and replacing them with the following:  Not-      tide to the end of the Town Meeting. APPROVED BY VOICE
withstanding any contrary provisions of the zoning bylaw... so VOTE
that Se  : onRim willl read as follows:

ARTICLE 33
S Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of the zoning

t 1 bylaw, parking lots containing 10 or more spaces shall have at Planning Board Recommendation- Adds prohibited uses 1,
i least one tree per S parking spaces, such trees to be located ei-      to Section K.I. c.4 District ( Route 115/ 1A) by adding Section
i ., ther with the lot or within 5 feet of it. Such trees shall be at least 7. c Prohibited Uses This Article adds Prohibited Uses in the use Ii 2" trunk diameter, with riot less than 40 square feet of unpaved table in the C4 District prohibited uses.  The Planning Board0  .; soil or other permeable surface are , per tree.   supports this article. f

Substitute Motion to add the words" or fraction thereof'     APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to
following" 8 parking spaces"   amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaw by adding a new Section K.7.c.

to read as follows:
Defeated by Voice Vote
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K,7. c Prohibited Uses in the C-4 District except as H,2.g.2. Special Permit/Definitive Plan
expressly exempt from restriction by Statute.

If the concept/ preliminary plan is approved for an Open
Aviation Field; Space Preservation development, the APPLICANT shall submit

Adult Business;       a Special Permit application and a Definitive Plan which have
Class 3 Operations or Sales; been prepared and stamped by a professional landscape archi-
Commercial Composting;    tect in addition to a civil engineer of land surveyor in cofor-

Dry Cleaning or Power Laundry;    mity with the requirements and procedures for definitive plan
Massage Parlors;     submission and review under the Subdivision Rules and Regu•  

Power Generating Plant Generating More lations of the Planning Board.
than 1500 Kilowatts of Electricity;
Foundation or Cellar Hole for Residence; ARTICLE 36

Hazardous Waste Treatment Facility;
Noncommercial Riding Stable;    Planning Board Recommendation- Adopts a new Aquifer
Nonprofit General Acute Care Hospital;    and Water Resource Protection Map under Section D.4.d, 2, This
Outdoor Business;    article, which adopts a new Zone II of the Gold Street well, is
Outdoor Commercial Vehicle Storage;      supported by the Planning Board. The basis for the newly de-
Scrap Yards;  fined Zone II is through hydrological testing rather than the ex- i

Truck Terminal or Motor Freight Station.   isting Zone II which is a half mile radius of the well.    Jik

i4
b

ARTICLE 34 APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to
t

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws Sections D.4.d.2. by delet-

Planning Board Recommendation Changes parking re-      ing the current Section D.4.d. 2, in its entirety and substituting
4$

quirements for bench seating in Section F.7,b. a The Planning the following new Section D.4.d.2. to read as follows:
Board supports this article.  This article changes the required

number of parking spaces for bench seating from 1 space per D.4,d.2.      The boundaries of the Water Supply Pro- to

linear foot of bench seating to 1 space per 6 linear of bench tection District are delineated on a map at a

seating, which we believe to be more practical number of spaces scale of 10inch= 1000 feet. This map, as it
r to require.       may be amended from time to time, is en-

titled, Aquifer and Water Resource Protec-

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to tion Map- Town of Norfolk, MA is dated
u

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws Section F.7.b. 8. by changing August 20, 1997, is on file in the office of

the minimum number of parking spaces from, 1 per linear ft. of the Town Clerk, and is hereby made a part
i

I bench seating or 1 per 4 seats to, 1 per 6 linear ft, of bench seat-    of this Bylaw. These boundaries reflect the

i;   ing or 1 per 4 seats
best hydrologic information available as of

the date of the map( s).  In the event of a

1 ARTICLE 35 discrepancy between the map and the

Planning Board Recommendation Changes Section ARTICLE 37

H.2.g.2. to clarify and require that Landscape Architect prepare r

definitive Open Spade Preservation Subdivision plans. The Plan-     Planning Board Recommendation  -  Changes

ping Board supports this article, This requirement was previ-      SectionD.3.e. 1. F. Watershed Protection District by specifying

ously implied.     that expansions do not violate underlying zoning district require-
meats. The Planning Board supports this article which clearly

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE DE-      states that zoning setbacks must be met. This currently is im-   
CLARE]) TO BE A 2/3 VOTE BY THE MODERATOR to a plied.

mend the first paragraph of Norfolk. Zoning Bylaws Section
I.1, 2.g.2, Special Permit/Definitive Plan by deleting the existing APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

F

Section H.2. g.2. which reads as follows: If the congept/prelimi-      amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaw Section D.3. Watershed Pro- 14

f nary plan is approved for an Open Space Preservation develop-      tection District as follows: By changing Section D,3. c. I. f. by
merit, the APPLICANT shall submit a Special Permit applica-      adding to the end of the section, the following words: and such
tion and a Definitive,Plan in conformity with the requirements expansion does not violate the requirements of the underlying

and procedures for definitive plan submission and review under district so that Section D.3. c. 1. f.will now read as follows: 1

the Subdivision Rules and Regulations of the Planning Board l

and substituting there with the following new first paragraph of
Section H.2.g.2. to read as follows:

rt
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D.3. c. 1. f.     Repair, maintenance, and reconstruction of ARTICLE 43

STRUCTURES and uses lawfully existing
prior to adoption hereof may he continued APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as public ways

as permitted under the Zoning Act. Exist-      certain streets in Noon Hill Estates as shown on the approved

ing DWELLINGS may be expanded pro-      definitive plan entitled, Noon Hill Estates which was prepared
vided ground coverage is not increased more by McIntyre and Johnson, Inc. dated September, 1965 and as
than 25% and such expansion does not vio-      further described in documents entitled as follows: Legal De-

late the requirements of the underlying zon-      scription of Chicatabut Avenue, Norfolk, Massachusetts; Legal

ing district. Description for Seneca Street, Norfolk, Massachusetts; Legal
Description for Pennacook Street, Norfolk, Massachusetts; Le.

ARTICLE 38 WILL BE DEFERRED TO THE END gal Description of Hemlock Lane, Norfolk, Massachusetts; Le.
OF THE TOWN MEETING gal Description for Cowesit Avenue, Norfolk, Massachusetts;

Legal Description of Masconomet Avenue, Norfolk, Massachu.

ARTICLE 39 setts; Legal Description for Naugatuck Avenue, Norfolk Massa-

chusetts; all of which were prepared by Judith Nitsch Engineer.
Under the direction of the Moderator and the Board of ing, Inc.. Streets to be accepted are as follows:

Selectmen to hear committees, act on reports. Reports received

from the Conservation Commission, the School Committee and A.    Chicatabut Avenue, a distance of 1, 920+/- feet, from

the Town was presented a check from Norfolk County for food Fruit Street to cul-de- sac

pantry purposes.
B.    Seneca Street, a distance of 370+/- feet, from Noon

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to adjourn this meeting Hill Avenue to Medfield Town Line

to Wednesday, November 19, 1997 at 7: 30 p. m. in King Philip
High School Auditorium.     C.    Pennacook Street, a distance of 1, 500+/- feet, from

Massachusetts Avenue to Chicatabut Avenue

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 1997

D.    Hemlock Lane( formerly Nipmuck Street), a distance
There were 181 voters and 7 non-voters in attendance at of 300+/- feet, from Noon Hill Avenue to Medfield

the second session, which was called to order at 7: 40 p.m. Town Line

ARTICLE 40 E.    Cowesit Avenue, a distance of 900 +/- feet, from

Noon Hill Avenue to Naugatuck Avenue

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

way and to accept all easements. Bridle Lane, a distance of 761 F.    Masconomet Avenue, a distance of 1, 150+/- feet,

feet, as approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance from Fruit Street to Cowesit Avenue

with the acceptance plan as drawn by Landmark Engineering of
New England, Inc. of Norfolk, Massachusetts dated February 6,     G.    Naugatuck Avenue, a distance of 1, 520+/- feet, from

1985 and Revised March 22, 1996 and July 28, 1997.      Fruit Street to cul de sac and to accept all utility and
drainage easements as shown on the subdivision plan

ARTICLE 41 of Noon Hill Estates September, 1965.

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public ARTICLE 44

way and to accept all easements, Bridle Lane, a distance of 1, 570
feet, as approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

with the acceptance planus drawn by Paul N. Robinson Associ-      way and to accept all easements, Lantern Lane, a distance of
ates, Inc. of Millis, Massachusetts dated June 8, 1996, and re-      1, 230+/- feet, from Lafayette Lane to the cul-de-sagas approved
vised November 26, 1996, and February 4, 1997.      by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance

plans drawn by Yunits Engineering Co., Inc. of Holbrook, Mas-
ARTICLE 42 sachusetts dated October 12, 1979 and as further described in a

document entitled, Legal Description for Lantern Lane, Norfolk,
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public Massachusetts which was prepared by Judith Nitsch Engineer-

way and to accept all easements, Mountain Rock Lane, a dis-      ing, Inc.
tance of 913+ 1- feet, as approved by the Board of Selectmen in
accordance with the acceptance plan as drawn by Paul N.
Robinson Associates, Inc. of Millis, Massachusetts dated June
8, 1996 and revised November 26, 1996, and February 4, 1997.
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ARTICLE 45 ARTICLE 50

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as public way

way and to accept all easements, Lafayette Lane, a distance of and to accept all easements, Old Liberty Lane( formerly Future
310+ 1- feet, from a Lafayette Lane cul- de-sac to Lantern Lane Road and Liberty Lane), a distance of 300+ I- feet, from Free-
as approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the dom Trail to the Walpole Town Line as shown on the g,,[- oivi.

acceptance plans drawn by Yunits Engineering Co., Inc. of sion plan entitled, LAFAYETTE ESTATES, EXTE,vSION 3

Holbrook, Massachusetts dated October 12, 1979 and as further drawn by Yunits Engineering of Holbrook, Massachusetts 02343
described in a document entitled, Unaccepted Roadways in dated September 9, 1980 and as further described in a document

Lafayette Estates which was prepared by Judith Nitsch Engi-      entitled, Legal Description for Old Liberty Lane, Norfolk, Mas-
neering, Inc.       sachusetts prepared by Judith Nitsch Engineering, Inc.

ARTICLE 46 ARTICLE 51

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

way and to accept all easements, Lafayette Lane, a distance of way and to accept all easements, Chickadee Drive. a distance of
543+ 1- feet, from Valentine Drive to the cul de sac on Lafayette 1. 255 +/- feet, from King Street to the cul-de- sac as shown on
Lane as approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the subdivision plan entitled, PINE BROOK ESTATES drawn

the acceptance plans drawn by Stavinski Engineering, Associ-      by Landmark Engineering of New England, Inc. of Wrentham,
ated, Inc. of Wrentham, Massachusetts dated September 21, 1989 Massachusetts dated March 19, 1982 and revised June 2, 1982

and as further described in a document entitled, Lafayette Lane and as further described in a document entitled, Legal Descrip-
Description.       tion of Chickadee Drive, Norfolk, Massachusetts which was pre-

pared by Judith Nitsch Engineering, Inc. and to.;accept a drain
ARTICLE 47 easement as depicted on Lot 2 of a plan entitled, Easementnt Plan

of Land in Norfolk, Mass, as drawn by Landmark a ngineering
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public of New.England, Inc. of Wrentham, Massachusetts, and dated

way and to accept all easements, Valentine Drive, a distance of July 20, 1983.
1, 145 +/- feet, from Freedom Trail to Valentine Drive, as ap-
proved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the accep-     ARTICLE 52

tance planus drawn by Stavinski Engineering, Associates, Inc.    
of Wrentham, Massachusetts dated October 20, 1989 and as fur-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

ther described in a document entitled, Valentine Drive Descrip-      way and to accept all easements, Sparrow Road, a distance of
tion and accompanying easement descriptions. 692+ 1- feet, from near Robin Road to Chickadee Drive as shown

k

on the subdivision plan entitled, PINE BROOK ESTATES drawn s

ARTICLE 48 by Landmark Engineering of New England, Inc. of Wrentham, f
Massachusetts dated March 19, 1982 and revised June 2, 1982

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public and as further described in a document entitled, Legal Descrip-

way and to accept all easements, Freedom Trail, a distance of don of Sparrow Road, Norfolk, Massachusetts which was pre- e

3,765+/- feet, from Everett Street to the end of the cul-de- sac,      pared by Judith Nitsch Engineering, Inc. 

as approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the
acceptance plan as drawn by Stavinski Engineering, Associates,     ARTICLE 53 i

Inc. of Wrentham, Massachusetts dated March 7, 1989 and as a
4

further described in a documents entitled, Freedom Trail De-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

scription, and accompanying easement descriptions,  way and to accept all easements, Eagle Drive, a distance of 960 e {
1 1

1- feet, from Lawrence Street to Dead End, as approved by the j

ARTICLE 49 Board of Selectmen as shown on the acceptance plan dated Oc-
tober27, 1989 and revised June 7, 1992 drawn by GLM Engi-

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public neering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston, Massachusetts and as fur-
way and to accept all easements, Country Squire Drive, a dis-      ther described in documents entitled, Description of Eagle Drive

tance of 654+ 1- feet, from Valentine Drive to the end of the cul and Drain Easements on Eagle Drive.

de sac, as shown on the subdivision plan entitled, COBBLE
KNOLL ESTATES drawn by Norwood Engineering, Inc. of ARTICLE 54

Norwood, Massachusetts dated July 14, 1971 and as further de-
scribed in a document entitled, Legal Description for Country APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

Squire Drive, Norfolk, Massachusetts prepared by Judith Nitsch way and to accept all easements, Bretts Farm Road, a distance 1

Engineering, Inc.       1 1
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of 2,556+/- feet, from Lawrence Street to Eagle Drive, as ap-     ARTICLE 60

proved by the Board of Selectmen as shown on the acceptance
plan dated October 27, 1989 and revised June 7, 1992 drawn by APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public
GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston, Massachusetts way and to accept all easements, Hassler Road, a distance of
and as further described in documents entitled, Description of 254+/- feet, from Mill River Road to Franklin Town Line, as
Bretts Farm Road and Drain Easements on Bretts Farm Road. approved by the Board of Selectmen as shown on the accep.

lance plan dated June 12, 1997 and revised August 25, 1997
ARTICLE 55 Sheet 1 and 1) drawn by GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of

Holliston, Massachusetts.

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public

way and to accept all easements, Cranberry Meadow Road, a ARTICLE 61

distance of 1, 355+/- feet, from Lawrence Street to Dead End, as

approved by the Board of Selectmen as shown on the accep-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE DECLARED TO BE
tance plan dated July 19, 1991 and revised June 8, 1992 drawn 2/3 BY THE MODERATOR to accept a gift of land and an 1
by GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston, Massachu-      easement or to take as a public way and to accept all easements, !.
setts and as further described in documents entitled, Description Berkshire Street, a distance of 1082 +/- feet, as approved by the
Cranberry Meadow Road and Drain Easement on Lots( on Cram-      Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance plan as
berry Meadow Road and un-named street).    drawn by Landmark Engineering of New England, Inc. of Nor-

folk, Massachusetts dated July 9, 1997 and revised September
ARTICLE 56 16, 1997.

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a public ARTICLE 62

way and to accept all easements related thereto an unnamed street
on Cranberry Meadow Road, a distance of 153 feet more or less ARTICLE 62 INDEFINITELY POSTPONED BY
from Cranberry Meadow Road to the end of the pavement, as VOICE VOTE

approved by the Board of Selectmen, as shown on the accep-
tance plan ofCranberry Meadow Road dated June 8, 1992, drawn ARTICLE 57

by GLM Engineering Consultants Inc. of Holliston, Massachu-
setts and as further described in documents entitled " Descrip-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept a gift of land
tion Cranberry Meadow Road" and Drain Easement on lots( on and easements or to take, pursuant to Chapter Seventy-Nine of
Cranberry Meadow Road and un-named street).       the General Laws, the unfinished portion of the un-named street

off Cranberry Meadow Road to property of William H. and
Article 57 has been repositioned after Article 61.       Beverly J. Slattery as shown on Sheet 2 of 2 of the plan entitled,

Acceptance Plan of Land of Cranberry Meadow Road in Nor-
ARTICLE 58 folk, Massachusetts dated July 19, 1991 and revised June 8, 1992

drawn by GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston, Mas-
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as a AP-      sachusetts and as further described in documents entitled De-

PROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept all easements, Knoll scription Cranberry Meadow Road and Drain Easements. Said
Drive, a distance of 630+/- feet, from Strawberry Lane to cul-      parcel containing the roadway between Lots 10 and 11 and all
de- sac, as approved by the Board of Selectmen as shown on the easements as shown on said plan.

acceptance plan drawn by Francis X. f)esimone of Millis, Mas-
sachusetts and dated April 6, 1989 and revised March 20, 1990 ARTICLE 6
and May 17, 1990,

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to transfer $ 9, 873. 75
ARTICLE 59 from Fiscal Year 1997 Additional LotteryAid and$ 15, 106, from

Free Cash to be used to employ special counsel and other ex
APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to accept as <t public pests to protect the intent of the Town' s Master Plan as it relates

way and to accept all easements, Mill River Road, a distance of to the Business and Commercial zoning districts.
1, 250+/- feet, from School Street to cul- de- sac, as approved by
the Board of Selectmen as shown on the acceptance plan dated ARTICLE 32
June 12, 1997 and revised August 25, 1997( Sheets 1 and 2 of 4)
and Drainage Easement plans( Sheets 3 and 4 of 4) drawn by Planning Board Recommendation - Adds a definition to
GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston, Massachusetts.      Section B. for Affordable Housing Development and adds a new

Section H.3. entitled" Affordable Housing Development" which
allows a 20% greater density with a percentage of dwellings to

3R
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be set aside for low to moderate income families in all residen-      by offering the option of increased density to encourage the cre-

tial zoning districts by Special Permit. The Planning Board sup-      ation of such housing. Accordingly, the goals of this devel op-
ports this article, which is intended to fulfill the housing goals of ment program are to: increase the supply of housing in the Town
the Master Plan by limiting Affordable Housing Developments that is available to and affordable by low and iiiotl; ra=e: income
to residential districts while at the same time leaving available households; to encourage a greater diversity of;: rousing accoin-

for future use Business and Commercial property for economic modations to meet the needs of family households; and to pro-

development purposes. The Planning Board believes that amend-      mote a reasonable mix and distribution of housing opportunities

ments should be made to this article and will make our recom-      in residential neighborhoods throughout the Town.

mendation regarding potential amendments at Town Meeting.
H.3. b. AFFORDABLE HOUSING OPTION

APPROVED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE to

amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws as printed in the Warrant and The following procedure is available in order to carry^ pit
the Handout available for this Town Meeting except as follows:      the purposes of inclusionary housing previously defined r:• :A1-

FORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT.

LANGUAGE FOLLOWS)

The provisions of this section shall apply to all develo -

Delete Items 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 as printed in the warrant.      ments of parcels in residential districts having ten er more ac, es
and which create ten or more new SINGLE FAMILY DWELL-

Add " to the extent permitted by law" in Sections H.3. c.      INGS. Tracts of land may be developed under the provisions of

and H.3. k. as indicated by underlining in the handout. the existing zoning, or an applicant who owns the parcel, or who
has the right to develop it, may elect to proceed under the bonus

Omission of the phrase in parenthesis in the first sentence provisions described in Section H.3.

of Section H.3. d.
H.3. c.   Applicants who meet the foregoing requirements may

The addition of a new Section H.3. 1. as printed in the hand- apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a special per-
out.  

mit that will allow them to receive additional SIN3LE
FAMILY DWELLINGS and relaxation of frontage re-

1,    Adding the following to Section B Definitions to quirements in exchange for the provision of affordable

read as follows:       SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS. To the extent per-
mitted by law, the Planning Board shall determine that

AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT- Any new the requirements of the Site Plan Approval achieve the 1  '.

housing development in a residential district filed under State provisions of zoning by law. To the extent permitted 1

and/or Federal Grants that would contain a proportion of SINGLE by law, if a subdivision is involved, a definitive subdi-
FAMILY DWELLINGS affordable to persons of low or moder- vision plan shall be submitted to the Planning Board in       ',;

ate income ( as defined and determined by Commonwealth of addition to the submission required under Site Plan Ap- k
Massachusetts Department of Housing and Community Devel- proval procedures. The Norfolk Housing Authority or       ,: 1

opment( DHCD),   any successor organization having similar interests shall q

be included in the agencies receiving the distribution

2.    Adding a new section H.3. to read as follows:      copies of plans for comment.       

1
H.3. AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT H.3. d.   The number of additional SINGLE FAMILY DWELL-

INGS permitted under these procedures may not ex

H,3.a. Purpose
ceed 20% of that otherwise permitted under the under-

lying zoning, as demonstrated by a plan submitted toy;,
In the General Laws Chapter 40A, the particular intent the Zoning Board of Appeals and the Planning Board,

relating to elective inclusionary overlay zoning in all residential In determining the number of additional SINGLE FAM- 1

districts is to increase the production of SINGLE FAMILY ILY DWELLINGS ( size of the bonus option) be

DWELLINGS affordable to all persons of low and moderate granted, the Planning Board may consider a number of

income, Affordable housing may be created by employing in- factors including; the cost of the land; the cost of de- ii

centives offered under the inclusionary overlay zoning which is velopment including the cost of construction of the

intended to encourage the utilization of the Town' s remaining SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS and infrastructure;

residentially zoned developable land in a manner consistent with and the proposed market price of the SINGI..E FAM-

local housing policies and needs, and to encourage new housing ILY DWELLINGS to be built. In addition to my other IR,

developments to contain a proportion of the SINGLE FAMILY waiver permitted under use of intensity regulations, re- r

DWELLINGS affordable to persons oflow or moderate income quirements for area and/ or frontage may he reduced as      ,,
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follows: area may be reduced up to 15% of the mini- long- term affordability of the SINGLE FAMILY
mum intensity requirements of the underlying zone; DWELLING and to ensure its continued availability to
frontage may be reduced up to 20% of the minimum low or moderate income households. The limitations
required in the underlying zoning district.     may include a formula to determine the maximum sell.

ing price which will take into account the lowered mon.
H.3. e.   Provided that additional SINGLE FAMILY DWELL- gage rates available to the owner at time of purchase,

INGS are granted by the Zoning Board ofAppeals and any appreciation to date ofproposed sale, and any regu.
the Planning Board under the previous provision, then lations of the agency which may have participated in
affordable SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS shall be providing financing for the original purchase. Addl.
provided in any one of the following alternatives, sub- tionally, such limitations may provide that in the event
ject to approval of the Planning Board: of a market rate sale a sum of money shall be returned

to a designated agency in the Town that reflects the dif.
H.3. e. I. By donation to the Norfolk Housing Authority, a mini- ferential in mortgage rates enjoyed by the owner as a

mum of 5% of total SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS result of less than market rate financing.  The resale
in the development, rounded up to the next whole num- controls shall be established though a deed restriction,
ber.       and shall be in force for the maximum period that is

permitted under the Massachusetts General Laws. Such
H.3. e.2. By sale to the Norfolk Housing Authority, a minimum restrictions may also provide that the Norfolk Housing

of 10% of total SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS in Authority shall have a prior right of purchase at the
the development, rounded up to the next whole num- price determined according to the restriction for a pe.
her.      riod of thirty days after the affordable SINGLE FAM.

ILY DWELLING is placed on sale. Notice of any pro.
H3.L. 3. By sale directly to low or moderate income households, posed sale shall be given to the Zoning Board of Ap•

a minimum of 10% of total SINGLE FAMILY DWELL- peals, Planning Board and the Norfolk Housing Au.
INGS in the development, rounded up to the next whole thority.
number.

H.3.j.   Affordable SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS to be of-
H.31.   SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS to be donated to the fered for sale under these provisions shall, for a period

Norfolk Housing Authority are subject to the approval of six months from the date of first offering for sale, be
of the Norfolk Housing Authority, and of the applicable offered on a 50%- 50% basis to residents of the Town
federal or state funding agency. of Norfolk and to persons employed within the Town

ofNorfolk. Norfolk residency status will be given onlyH.3. g.   SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS set aside for sale to to one who had been a resident for a least one year
the Norfolk Housing Authority shall be offered at prices within the previous five years. Such preference shall
which do not exceed the greater of: the construction not be given ifprohibited by, or to the extent prohibited
costs of the particular SINGLE FAMILY DWELL- by, a federal or state agency under a financing or othe
INGS, the current acquisition cost limits for the subsidy program. Persons who are both residents and
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS under applicable state work in the Town of Norfolk shall be given only one
or federal financing programs. If the Norfolk Housing preference.

Authority is unable to purchase the set- aside units at
the time of completion, the units shall he for sale to H.3.k.   To the extent permitted by law, in addition to any re-low or moderate income households.   

quirements under Site Plan Approval, the Special Per-
mit, and/ or subdivision approval, an applicant mustH. 3. h.   SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS set aside for low/ submit a development plan acceptable to the Zoning

moderate income households shallbe offered only to Board of Appeals and the Planning Board indicatingthose households which qualify as " low" or" moder- how the parcel could be developed under the underlyate" in accordance with the definitions set forth in this ing zoning( ie a baseline plan). Any bonus granted shall
bylaw, as defined and determined by Commonwealth be calculated from the baseline plan. The development
of Massachusetts Department ofHousing and Commu- plans showing the bonus SINGLE FAMILY DWELL-
nity Development( DHCDJ.    INGS shall also indicate the proposed affordable

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS, which must be dis-H.3. i.   Each SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING created in accor- persed throughout the parcel to ensure a mix of mar-
dance with this section shall have limitations govern- ket-rate and affordable housing. Affordable SINGLEing its resale as conditioned by the Special Permit. Such FAMILY DWELLINGS shall have an exterior appear-limitations shall have as their purpose to preserve the ance that is compatible with and to the extent possible,
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Yindistinguishable from the market rate SINGLE FAM-      these agencies. The Wireless Communications Facility, includ-

ILY DWELLINGS in the development.  Affordable ing antennas and accessory structures, if any, may be erected
te SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS shall contain at least upon the issuance of a special pert.:it by the Zoning Board of

ins

11
two or more bedrooms and shall be suitable as to de-      Appeals, subject to Site Plan Approval, as set forth herein, as

sign for family occupancy. The owners of affordable may be amended, and shall be subject to the following require-.
a.

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS shall have all rights ments:
se,

P
and privileges accorded to market rate owners regard-

ingiaamenities within the development. F.13. a.  To the extent feasible all service providers shall co- lo-

ii.  
cate.

nl
Add a new Section H.3. 1. to read as follows:     F.13. b.  The height of the antenna of the WIRELESS COM."

ed
MUNICATIONS FACILITY shall not exceed a height

if.    H.3. 1.   Notwithstanding other provisions of this section, afford- of 90 feet as measured from the vertical distance from

a able housing consistent with housing as may be allowed the grade to its highest point.

de in other districts shall be permitted to the extent and
subject to the same limitations as set forth in other dis-      F.13. c.  The WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY

is
tricts.      shall not be located near any property line a distance

h
less than or equal to the height of the STRUCTURE

ig
Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit that and in no case less than 150 feet.

le
type of residential development as designed for an affordable

e•    housing context so long as the type of said affordable housing is F.13. d.  All monopoles shall be located 500 feet from the near

4,     consistent with that housing presently allowed or allowed by est property line.

D.     
special permit and to the extent it shall be subject to the same

P.     
limitations and requirements as effect such permitted use.    F.13. e.  To the extent feasible, all network interconnections from

the communications site shall be via underground,lines.
u•

This Section is not intended to preclude development of
other forms of affordable housing in other districts where resi-      F.13,f.   Land clearing shall be performed in a manner which

f•     dential uses are permitted provided however that it consistent will maximize preservation of natural vegetation anti

d with the specifically allowed residential use in those other dis- conservation of natural resources.

e
tricts.

n
F.13. g.  The facility shall minimize, to the extent feasible, ad-

n
To the extent that site plan approval is required in any other verse visual effects on the environment. The Zoning

Y
district it shall also be required for any affordable housing in Board of Appeals may impose ret sonable conditions

sr
such districts,       to ensure this result, including painting and lighting

11
requirements.

d ARTICLE 38
F13.h.  If personal WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS

e

d Planning Board Recommendation
FACILITY(S) are not camouflaged from public view-

ing areas by existing BUILDINGS or STRUCTURES,
e

Deletes Section" I.4. a. 16. Wireless Communications Fa- they shall be surrounded by buffers ofdense tree growth

cility" and replaces same with a new Section E13.  Wireless and understory vegetation in all directions to create an o

Communications Facility( s). The Planning Board supports this effective year-round visual buffer,  Ground-mounted

article as it is important to provide the Town with regulations
personal WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS i

t pertaining to this use by requiring landscaping and protection of
FACILITY(S) shall provide a vegetated buffer of suffi-       4

g the surrounding area where these entities are located.   
cient height and depth to effectively screen the facility.
Trees and vegetation may be existing on the subject

B
APPROVED BY DECLARATION OF 2/3 VOTE BY property or installed as part of the proposed facility or x

1 MODERATOR to amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by delet- a combination of both; The Zoning Board of Appeals f

ingSection I.4.a.16 in its entiretyand by adding a new Section shall determine the types of trees and plant materials
t

F 13 as printed in the Warrant( Language follows):      and depth of the needed buffer based on site conditions.       1
V

A WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY and its F 13. i.   Any extension, addition of cells, or construction of new

appurtenances shall be located in accordance with the Federal or replacement facilities or transmitters requires a Spe

Communications Commission( FCC) and the Federal Aviation cial Permit following the same procedure as for an origi-

Administration ( FAA) regulations in effect a the time of con-
nal grant of a Special Permit.,

struction and its operation shall comply with all requirements of
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F.13.j.   Fencing shall be provided to control access to the facil-     The following types of WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS
ity. This fencing shall not be barbed wire or razor wire.      FACILITIES are exempt from this section of the Zoning Bylaw,

F.13. k.  The Applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of a.    Amateur radio towers used in accordance with
the Zoning Board of Appeals that the location is suit-      the terms of any amateur radio service license
able and that the site and height is the minimum neces-      issued by the Federal Communications Commis.
sary for the purpose.   sion, provided that ( 1) the tower is not used or

licensed for any commercial purposes, ( 2) the
F.13. 1 There shall be no signs, except no trespassing signs and tower must have a cost of replacement value of

a required sign giving a phone number where the WIRE-      less than$ 10,000 and ( 3) the tower must be re-
LESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY owner can he moved if the use is discontinued for six months
reached on a twenty- four( 24) hour basis.  All signs and

shall conform with the sign requirements of the Nor- b.    Towers used for the purposes set forth in Massa.
folk Zoning Bylaw and shall be subject to review by chusetts General Laws Chapter 40A, SECTION
the Design Review Board.     3.

F.13. m. Night lighting shall be limited to that needed for emer-     MOTION MADE, SECONDED AND APPROVED BY
gencies and/ or as required by the.Federal Aviation Ad-      VOICE VOTE TO DISSOLVE THIS TOWN MEETING.
ministration.   

Meeting was dissolved at 9: 30 p.m.

F. 1 . a.  Conditions of Use and Non- Use. All facilities and parts NOTE: Bylaw changes have been submitted to Attorney
thereof or accessory facilities and structures which have General and are awaiting approval
not been used for two years shall be dismantled and
removed at the applicant' s expense.    

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING
1.    The facility and transmission shall comply in all TUESDAY, DECEMBER 12, 1997

respects with the current standards of the Ameri-

can National Standards Institute( ANSI) and the The Meeting was called to order at 7: 40 p.m. There were
National Council for Radiation Protection 82 voters in attendance throughout the session and 5 non- voters.
NCRP), whichever is stricter.

APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to waive the reading of
2.    If new technology is developed which is deter-      the Warrant and return of the Warrant.

mined by the SPGA to be safer and less obtru-
sive to the landscape, it shall be substituted, APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE DECLARED AS 2/3

BY THE MODERATOR to Appropriate$ 2,200,00 to design,
F.13.o Performance Guarantees.  Insurance in a reasonable construct and furnish an 8 room addition to the H. Olive Day

amount determined and approved after consultation at School and that the Treasurer be authorized to borrow$ 2,200,000
the expense of the Applicant with one( 1) or more in-      under the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter
surance companies shall be in force to cover the dam-      44, Section 7( 3A) or any other enabling authority and to issue
age from the structure, damage from transmissions and bonds or notes of the Town therefore, with the approval of the
other site liabilities. Annual proof of said insurance is Selectmen. Said Appropriation and Borrowing to be contingent
to be filed with the Town Clerk.      on the approval by the Town of a Debt Service Exemption Ref-

erendum in accordance with Massachusetts General.Laws, Chap-F.13.p.  Operation. Monitoring, testing, and inspection shall be ter 59, Section 21C.
in accordance with the Regulations of the Massachu-
setts Department of Public Health, 105 CMR 122, Rep-     Amendment to add a buffer zone- Rescinded by Propo
lations Governing Fixed Facilities Which Generate nent- no vote

Electromagnetic Fields in Frequency Range of 300 kHz
to 100 Ghz and Microwave Ove;,,,,, and other require-     APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE to dissolve this Town
ments of the Department.     Meeting. Meeting dissolved at 9:00 p.m.

F.13.q.  All Wireless Communications Facility( s) towers shall Note: The Special Election was scheduled for January 15,he the monopole type. 1998.
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BYLAW COMMITTEE BOARD OF REGISTRARS OF VOTERS

The Bylaw Committee was created in 1975 for two major Under Mass. General Laws, the Board of Registrars rs....-

purposes: ( 1) to maintain a record of amendments to the Town quired to supervise voter registration of resident of the Town,

Bylaws, statutes and special legislative acts accepted by the Town,      enumerate Norfolk residents as of January 1 of each year by a

and( 2) to make periodic reviews of the existing Town Bylaws to town-wide census, and keep and certify a voting list of all regis-
determine whether any amendments or revisions might be tered voters over seventeen years of age.

needed, and if so, to prepare such changes for Town Meeting
approval. The Committee is requested from time to time to re-     The membership of the present Board is Charles Burnett,
view possible bylaw changes suggested by citizens or other town Republican, and Donna Bentley and Mary Ellen Gattoni, Demo-
departments for recommendations on suitability and language.      crats, all appointed by the Board of Selectmen for three year

The Committee' s consensus is that the research and authorship terms. The Town Clerk serves by mandate of Massachusetts law.
of originial creation of entire bylaws is beyond its scope.     The current Town Clerk is an enrolled Republican.

In 1997 the Committee reviewed changes to Article I of Massachusetts now allows registration by mail. Mail-in

the General Bylaws dealing with Town Meeting procedure.   forms have been placed at the Post Office, Library, Police S',a-

tion, Credit Union and Stony Brook Nature Center. They are
also available for new residents through the Welcome Wagon
representatives. To date, the mail- in method has been vers suc-

cessful. Because of the ease in registering by mail, state Wlection
laws have eliminated the requirements of most special i c' istra-
tion sessions before each election or Town Meeting. Also, be-
ginning in January 1995, registering to vote may be accomprisheet
at the Registry of Motor Vehicles and certain other state agen-
cies. These registrations are forwarded electronically to Norfolk
and entered on the voting list.

On January 1 of each year, Census Takers begin the enu-
meration of persons living in Norfolk. Although most munici-
palities conduct their census by mail, Norfolk continues to use
census takers who contact residents by telephone and in person
in an effort to obtain the highest possible percentage of responses,

and also to provide a point of contact and information for resi-
dents. in 1997 the Town Clerk directed the efforts of Brenda
Bowden, Linda Janes, Deborah McGonagle, Christine Shaw,Ann

Shriberg and Janet Yavarow in gathering the required data. The
Board appreciates the many hours of dedicated service given by
these ladies.

The census provides information for several needs of the

town, including the Street Listing, Jury List, and Dog List. For
the School Department, it establishes a list of the names of all
children living in Norfolk and for the Council on Aging, it pro- y,
vides a list of all elder citizens of the town.      

The data collected by the Annual Census provides us with
the following statistics: as of January 1, 1997 the population
was 9,276 persons in approximately 2, 825 households.

Voter registration figures as of January 1, 1997 were

Republicans 1, 115

Democrats 975

Unenrolled 3, 320

Other 10
Total 5, 434
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TOWN COUNSEL SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL
SERVICES GROUP

This is my nineteenth annual report as Town Counsel for
Norfolk and likely will be my last. The year 1997 was memo-     

The Southeastern Regional Services Group( SERSG) isarable in that significant litigation was concluded including claims
consortium of sixteen cities and towns located in Southeasternresulting from the construction of the North Street Connector
Massachusetts who have signed an Inter-Municipal Agreementand the construction of the Olive Day School. Drainage for the
for the purpose of creating a voluntary regional association,Town Center and litigation arising from damage claims were
Members pay a yearly assessment of$ 3, 100.00 per year. Theresolved and completed.

Board of Directors of SERSG design a yearly work plan of shared
services that member communities will receive. ContinuingThe Town Hall after over ten years of studies, proposals
SERSG projects include: cooperative purchasing ( which con.and negotiations is well on its way to completion and the final
tinues to save members thousands of dollars), shared personnelresolution of the Town Hall land taking and registration of title

has been completed. For a split second there was a respite in training, monitoring of the de regulation of the electric utility
industry, drafting of a model street opening by- law for the pur-legal work before construction of a recreation complex and an
pose of assuring that public ways are properly restored follow-addition to the Olive Day School generated additional contracts.      
ing excavations, and grant writing for joint applications. The
Boards of Health of the Towns of Easton, East Bridgewater,During 1997 thirteen formal opinions to Town Boards,      
Raynham and Stoughton asked SERSG to organize a Board of4nrnmissioners and Officers were rendered. Titles were re-      
Health collaborative and to write a grant application on theirsearched, contracts drafted, informal opinions rendered. Only
behalf for a grant from the Massachusetts Tobacco Control Pro-with the outstanding cooperation from the Town Administrator,      
gram. This collaborative was funded by the Dept. of Public Healththe Water Superintendent and all department heads could this
for three years. These communities will benefit from shared to-have been possible.     
bacco cessation services, health education and technical assis-
tance with drafting regulations.Respectfully submitted,

Paul D. Maggioni SERSG is assisted with its mission by three advisory Coun•
Counsel cils. The SERSG Academic Council is composed of distinguished

political scientist from area institutions of higher education. It
met twice during 1997- at Stonehill College in March and at
Northeastern University in September. We shared our luncheon
at NU with former Gov. Michael Dukakis who now teaches in
their political science department. Our Legislative Council con-
sists of those members of the U.S. House ofRepresentatives, the

Mass. State Senate and the Mass. House of Rep. whose districts
include SERSG communities. Our Legislative Council met once
in May with our featured speaker being Congressman Barney
Frank who spoke about the changes that will result from balanc-
ing the federal budget. The SERSG Executive Council, consist-
ing of all of the serving chief executive officers of each SERSG
member community, had its inaugural meeting in October at The
Martin Institute. Our speaker at that meeting was Paul Trane,
former Communications Director for the City of Somerville, who
spoke about Telecommunications Planning.

The SERSG program is flourishing and your municipality
is receiving great value for its investment. We look forward to
new and additional opportunities to serve your community in
the up-coming year.

Respectfully submitted,

Catherine L. Salisbury,
SERSG Regional Administrator
Greg L. Balukonis,
Norfolk SERSG Representative
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COMPUTER SYSTEMS COMMITTEE If you have any questions, issues or concerns, please come
to one of our meetings( which are posted at the Town hall and in

The Town of Norfolk Computer Systems Committee ad-      
the Norfolk Press) or contact us through the Town Administr,.tc ",.

vises the town on the acquisition, implementation and use of
office. If you would like to help in the work of the Computer

computer technology. We want to minimize the use of town re-      
Systems Committee, please contact the Board of Selectmen about

sources such as money, energy, and personnel time and in turn,      becoming a member of the Committee.

obtain the maximum value for those resources that are expended.
The committee has several goals. The first into facilitate an effi-
cient operational environment between the various town depart-
ments, 

Respectfullyboards, committees and offices. The second is to ease the
process of sharing relevant data and information between the Computer Systems Committee
various groups within the town. The Computer Systems Com-
mittee plans to develop and recommend a set of computer hard-
ware and software standards that promote ease of learning, ease
of use, ease of controlled sharing of data, and require minimal
support. The Computer Systems Committee hopes to make rec-
ommendations in other areas such as data and telecommunica-
tion wiring, interconnection, communication protocols, security
considerations, disaster recovery, system administration, and The Norfolk Board of Selectmen, to negotiate a renewal

technical supporta cable television franchise license with Time Warner C", a' le, has
formed the Cable Advisory Committee, The current ! I cense,

During the latter half of 1997, the Board of Selectmen which was signed with Cablevision Industries( CVI) in October
appointed 4 new members to the Computer Systems Committee 1984, will expire in October 1999.
in an effort to continue the committee' s involvement in address-
ing several key technological issues currently facing the town.     In late 1995, Time Warner purchased CVI and the existing
The current members have a combined total of 75 years experi-      franchise license was transferred to them at that time. The new
ence in the Information Systems/Finance/Sales industries and license will be for a period no longer than ten years from the
are very excited about assisting in the development of the town' s expiration of the existing term.
technological infrastructure. The Computer Systems Commit-
tee intends to play a pro- active role in offering guidance and The purpose of the committee is to determine the needs of
assistance to the town.    the town and the townspeople and to incorporate these needs

into the franchise license. We are currently in this initial, ascer-
The Committee has completed two key tasks. First, we tainment, phase and expect that this will last through the first

surveyed the various town departments on their respective hard-      half of 1998. The ascertainment phase will consist of surveys of
ware and software platforms and analyzed the surveys to arrive the residents and town agencies, discussions with the town de-
at an assessment of what hardware and software was currently partments and the schools, and at least one public hearing. It is
in use. These results will serve as baseline for recommending very important that we have everyone' s input if we are to deliver
upgrades, additions, replacements, and improvements. Secondly,      a quality system. Following the ascertainment the committee will
the Committee evaluated several cabling proposals and recom-      submit to Time Warner a request for proposal for the new fran-
mended one vendor to complete the data and telephone- wiring chise license. At this time the final negotiations will begin.
project for the New Town Hall.       

The committee consists of five members along with a rep-

Developing Norfolk' s technological
infrastructure is not a resentative of the Board of Selectmen. William Solomon, Town

short- term project. It will require teamwork, departmental co-      Counsel for the Town of Stoneham who is a specialist in cable
operation, effective communication and management and rapidlicensing, also assists us with outside counsel.  
decision making. It will also happen in various stages. We are
looking forward to working with' each group and

department Respectfully submitted,

during the next few years.    
Paula Austin

John Czyzewski, Selectmen designee
Larry Harrington
Donna Jones  -

Mike Keane sk
Jack MiFeeley, Chairman s"
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NORFOLK COUNTY Deeds, as always, provided outstanding services through its state
COMMISSIONERS of the art computer system and proceeded with developing its

digital imaging program, while Massachusetts Respiratory Hos.
pital in Braintree continued to provide specialized care for pa.

As Norfolk County Commissioners, we saw significant
tients. Everyone was saddened at the death of Norfolk Countychanges take place in county government within the Common-      Sheriff Clifford H. Marshall. Our newly appointed Sheriff John

wealth in fiscal year 1997, including an attempt to abolish it H. Flood expanded the current programs and worked towards
altogether. Through prudent financial management in our county initiating new ones. Our Agricultural High School in Walpole
over the years and legislative awareness, motivated by the belief received accreditation for another ten years and continued to show
that the ability to communicate with and provide valuable ser-      a steady increase in enrollment, while developing technical pro.
vices to our municipalities on the county level was a valuable grams and involving students in community service work.All of
commodity to our citizens, Norfolk County survived, the preceding statements demonstrate that county government

works in Norfolk County.
For some time we have realized the importance of sup-

porting regional services throughout the county and in 1997 con-     We wish to continue to be of service to the citizens of
tinned to provide grants to D.O.VE, and R.& S. V.P., as well as

Norfolk County, and express our thanks to the advisory board,grants to food pantries within the county. The budget also pro-      its coordinator, county and municipal officials, including ourr?pled for grants to the Norfolk County Fire Chiefs Assoc. for newly elected County Treasurer, Timothy P. Cahill, department
the equipping of a mass casualty incident vehicle. A grant to the

heads, employees and interested citizens for their support, coop.South Shore Drug Task Force reinforced their efforts to combat
eration and assistance during the past fiscal year.

drug-related activities and crimes. The United Chamber of Com-
merce, which includes several Norfolk County towns also re-  Respectfully submitted,
ceived a grant to hire an economic development consultant.

William P. O' Donnell, Chairman
Our county engineering department rendered useful and John M. Gillis

necessary assistance to municipalities who would otherwise have Peter H. Collins
to pay for such services. Wollaston Recreational Facility, hous-
ing Presidents Golf Course in North Quincy, gave golfers an
affordable and quality course on which to enjoy the game, and
also provided a camp for tennis enthusiasts, The Registry of
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tte
POLICE DEPARTMENT in this case because it helped put an end to a very sad chapter in

its Norfolk history. The guilty findings bring some vindication to

Is. The 1997 Police Department activities report is my fourth
the Lipsky family for the loss of a loved one.' l'he spirit of cow-
eration that existed between public safety agencies including state

as Chief of Police of the Norfolk Police Department, The Nor-      and local law enforcement and fire and emergency medical ser-
IV folk Police Department recognizes the continued support of thehnviceunits was crucial on that evening and will continue to exist

taxpayers that allows us to achieve the resources of personnel
during other emergencies in order to provide your communityds and equipment that make Norfolk one of the safest communities

sic
with the level of service it deserves.

to live in.
01

I am especially proud of the dedication of all members of
We want to thank Officer Stephen K. Plympton, for his

ofseemingly
tireless efforts and dedication to the D.A.R.E. pro-

the Norfolk Police Department in providing the quality service gram, the youth of this town and the King Philip District. We
41 that is needed by our community. This department will continue realize that O.P. has reached many of our young people and has

to make every effort to provide the level of services that you given them the tools to make the correct decisions in life. We
expect and deserve. We will continue to investigate the use of recognize that the D.A.R.E. Program is a partnership between

f Federal and State Grants for both personnel and equipment in
d

the Norfolk Police Department and the parents and their chit.
order to achieve these resources in the most cost effective man

dren that will help everyone achieve a long, happy, andfulfillingtoner. Federal and State Grants require the town to match the award
III

with

and we are dedicated to achieving that result.
with a sum of money that unfortunately has not been available

P.   for manpower in the last two years. The Department will con-  Respectfully Submitted,
tinue to participate in applying for grants individually and with
several regional groups, and as a result, the Norfolk Police De Charles H. Stone, Jr.
partment will continue to try to receive awards for equipment Chief of Police
and manpower.

The Norfolk Police Department will continue to be proac-
tive in our programs including D.A.R.E., Safe and Sober( Driv-     I hereby submit my fourth annual report of the activities
ing under the Influence), Community Oriented Policing, and traf

of the Police Department for 1997.
fic enforcement initiatives. This year the department instituted a
Zero Tolerance Policy in dealing with underage drinking that 1996 1997

includes enforcement initiatives involving those businesses that
hold liquor licenses and individuals who are under the age of 21 CRIMES

and are caught drinking. We firmly believe that there is a direct Murder 1 0

correlation to remaining safe in the Town of Norfolk as a result Robbery 0 0

of these programs whether you are a pedestrian, bicyclist, mo Forcible Rape 0 1

torist, resident or homeowner. We hope to maintain regular ser-      Aggravated Assault 69 4

vices to the community and hope that we don' t have to delete Burglary( B& E)  9 13

some or all of the above additional programs as a result of fund Motor Vehicle( B& E)     2 2

ing issues. Larceny 51 46

Motor Vehicle Theft 5 0 4

During Memorial Day Weekend, with the help of person- Kidnapping 0 0

nel from the Western Norfolk County Law Enforcement Con-      Fraud 2 2

sortium, the Town of Norfolk ran its third Field Sobriety Check- Assault& Battery 13 7

point. As a result of that effort seven drunk drivers were arrested Arson& Bombing 0 3

and taken off the road that evening. The Consortium is madeup2Forgery/Counterfeiting 2

of the eight towns that access the Wrentham District Court in-      Receiving Stolen Prop.    0

chiding the Foxboro State Police Barracks and provided the ad-      
Vandalism 101 93

ditional manpower that made this type of enforcement possible.     Sexual Assault 3 2

Drug Law Violations 27 22       °
10

The end of 1997 brought guilty findings to John TagueOOpen Under Influence S 1 37

and he is now serving time for the murder of Jason Lipsky of Vial. Liquor Laws 5 13

Foxborough on October 27, 1996. Michael Hankey was also General Offenses 131 108

convicted for charges related to the murder and he is now sere-      . prespassing 36 51s
p

ing time. The remaining defendants will be brought to trial in
Attempted B & F 8 8

1998. I would like to commend every officer who was involvedThreats 13 19 r
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Harassment 27 29 to utilize their training and ability for much of 1997. The in.
Disorderly Conduct 13 7 crease of detective related activitynecessitated the reassignmera

of Leo lrthier and Glen Eykel from patrol duties back to detec.
ARRESTS fives in November of 1997.

Arrests 193 128

Prot. Custody 53 30 Sergeant Carroll was reassigned to the midnight shift asa
result of a schedule change during 1997 and was unable to con.

MEDICAL/EMERGENCY tinue as an on-call detective and unfortunately had to resign,
Ambulance Assists 267 261

Sudden Deaths 3 5 In November of 1997 the trials started for the 12 people
Suicide Attempted 3 3 charged in the brutal murder of Jason Linsky. Detective/ Sergeant

Carroll was assigned as the lead investigator for the Norfolk
TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS Police. John Tague was charged with the first degree murder,

MVA Pers. Injury 31 24 attempted murder and numerous other charges and after a two

MVA Prop. Damage 127 123 week trial was found guilty and sentenced to life without parole
MVA Fatal 1 0 for murder, and 19 to 20 year on and after for attempted murder

Plea bargains and guilty findings have resulted with some of the
TRAFFIC SERVICES others who were charged and have been brought forward to date
Written Cites 647 438 in this case. The hard work of every Norfolk Police Officer who
Written Warnings 696 785 took part in this case, in addition to the work of officers from
Verbal Warnings 1, 269 706 outside agencies has resulted in the successful completion of the

Parking Viol.     62 38 trials to date.

MISCELLANEOUS Detective/Sergeant Jonathan Carroll orchestrated the larg.
Missing Person 24 30 est drug bust in Norfolk history and as a result kept approxi.
Missing Property 31 34 mately$ 30,000 in street value drugs from reaching the streets
lost& found)   and has driven a drug dealer out of Norfolk. Five pounds of

Disturbance 139 171 marijuana, over 80 grams of cocaine, crack cocaine, several hun.
general& gathering)   dred pills, scales and fireworks were seized during this raid.

Domestic Disturbance 89 66

Annoying Phone Calls 35 16 The department must also work with the Norfolk County
Suspicious Activity 288 250 anti- crime task force attend monthly meetings to exchange in-
General Services 668 679 formation. We have also worked with the Norfolk County D.A.'s'
Stolen Prop, Recovered 8 4 Sexual Assault Unit on several reported sexual assaults.
Stolen Veh. Recovered 2 3

911 Investigations 57 72 We would like to thank Chief Charles H. Stone, Jr. and the

includes silent, abandoned and hang-ups)     men and women of the Norfolk Police Department for their con.

Bldg. checks( open)      53 42 tinued support and dedication to our efforts. We also want to
Animal Complaint 82 79 thank the citizens of Norfolk for their support and assistance.
Assist/ Lockout 98 104

Burglar Alarms 429 385
Fire Dept. Assist 185 177

Assist other Dept. 73 89

DETECTIVE DIVISION

The Norfolk,Police Department Detective Division expe-

rienced another busy and sometimes difficult year during 1997.
The Detective Division has not had full time detectives available
since the layoffof police officers in July of 1996. Both officers
assigned to this division had to be put back in uniform at that

time but agreed to remain on call through July of 1997 with the
hope that their positions would be reinstated through the budget

process. These officers had many drug cases pending and many
major crimes including the murder that required the department
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FIRE DEPARTMENT January 31, 1997 marked an end of an era for: hr: 'S=m de-
m

partment with the retirement of Lt.A. Roger Callahan after serv-

e
ing the department for 48 years. It is hard to imagine the caliber

Services provided by the Fire Department were once again of dedication that he demonstrated for the department during
on the rise during the past year. The Fire Department responded this time as well as the tremendous support from his family to
to 584 requests for emergency medical services in 1997. Emer-      allow him to participate.

a gency fire incidents totaled 465 in 1997. As the total responses
n• increased, the estimated fire loss also increased from$ 132,500.00 One can only guess how many meals he had to leave on

last year to$ 244, 130.00 in 1997. More importantly, these losses the table, how many birthday parties or family functions that he
ie

occurred without loss of life or serious injury to civilians with missed not to mention the number of Christmas mornings that

Pt
three firefighters sustaining injuries during a warehouse fire in the children had to wait for him to return home from a call be
December.

Ik fore they could finish opening their presents or begin to eat a
r

holiday dinner.With Roger born and raised in Norfolk, he ha+i a
The Fire Department employs twenty- seven firefighters:      great deal of knowledge of the town and residents whish was

leThree full time employees which include the Fire Chief, a Lieu very helpful for the department. I know that the fire service re-
tenant/EMT, and a Firefighter/EMT with twenty- four" on-call"

t'    are on dutally evolved during his 48 years. Roger was always willing topersonnel. The full-time personnely at the station
he

learn and progress as he recognized that it was for the good of
Monday through Friday, 8: 00 a.m. until 4:00 p.m. which is sta-      the fire service. Each of us could see how difficult it was for
tistically the busiest time of the week. This full-time coverage

1D d

immediatelRoger
to retire. We can honestly say that we miss his participa-

allows emergency incidents to be answerey with
m

tion. He will always be a member of our Fire Department family

he
the average response time being three minutes from the time the and we wish him many enjoyable years of retirement
call is received. Incidents on weeknights and weekends are re-

sponded to by " on-call" personnel with the average response

Shortly after Roger' s retirement the department promoted
time being eight minutes. veteran firefighter Bruce Hamlin to the rank of Lieutenant. Bruce

l;. has been on the department for twelve years.
In late December, four additional" on-call" personnel were

Ls hiredbyCurran,GregGraves, Mark Haigh
of

the department. Peter Fire prevention remained a high priority this past year.With
and Doug Johnston will begin their training as firefighters for the assistance of a$ 3,000.00 S. A.F.E. ( Students Awareness of

n the town in early 1998: Fire Education) grant, fire safety instructors Patricia Bixby and

The personnel are a highly dedicated group of people -
John Kelley coordinated all fire prevention activities.

tY many of whom are your neighbors. It is hard to imagine the The Fire Department would like to thank the various town
n.    amount of time that is spent over and above their regular work-

5
P departments, boards and officials for their support and assistance

ing hours. Responding to emergency requests, attending
train-      during the year. Thank you to the residents and businesses of

ing sessions, volunteering for various activities through the Nor-      Norfolk for your continued support. Last, and certainly not least,

he
folk Firefighters' Association, or being on call to respond to thank you to all of the dedicated men and women of the Norfolk
emergency requests. When on call, we are usually at

home or
Fire Department.

within the town boundaries to assure quick response. In today' s
to world it has become very difficult to get qualified people to make Respectfully submitted,

the commitment to this type of department with both spouses

working, raising children and being able to give a substantial Fire Chief William F. Kelley

amount of time to the fire department.
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES:

There also must be a great deal ofunderstanding from fam EMS Director John M. Malaney III

ily members as we are away from home much of the time whether
it be to attend training sessions, or called to respond to emergen During 1997, the Norfolk Fire Department' s fifteen ether-
cies as well as being away from home during severe

snowstorms

gency medical technicians responded to 584 requests for emer-       0

or hurricanes so that we can assure the safety of the residents of gency medical assistance. All of our EMTs attend ongoing train-
Norfolk. Some residents feel that they live in a small, safe town ing and retraining and must recertify every three months in en-       '',
where nothing happens. Those of us in the department can attest hanced skills. In November, our EMTs attended a twenty hour
that fires and deaths related to fires have happened in town and emergency medical technician refresher program which provides t,

that we face the same dangers and risks that large cities face. We a comprehensive review of all skills and responsibilities involved d

are committed to do everything we can to ensure that our corn-      in providing emergency medical services. Pamela Holmes com-
munity is a safe one to live in.       pleted an emergency medical technician paramedic program. Her

advanced skills will be an asset to both our department and resi-
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dents. The Norfolk Fire Department continues to work closely 1997 MAJOR INCIDENTS
with the Caritas Neponset Valley Health System. Neponset Val-
ley provides advanced life support services in a cooperative ef-      January 17:     Mutual aide to the town of Wrentham- motor
fort with fire department personnel. This cooperative effort en- vehicle accident- Everett Street- seriously in.
sures that the highest quality of service is available to all who jured patient transported to Southwood COM
need it. We appreciate the support of residents in approving the munity Hospital subsequently flown to Brigham
purchase of a new ambulance. As technology and capabilities Womens Hospital by Boston MedFlight he.
expand, so do the demands placed on emergency vehicles. We licopten

expect delivery by September 1998.

February 6:     Structure fire- Norfolk Public Library- incest.
FIRE INVESTIGATION UNIT diary fire resulting in minor damage to contents,

Lt. Joseph W. Nolan

February 16:    Motor vehicle accident- Seekonk Street- two
The Fire Investigation Unit was again busy during the 1997 seriously injured patients transported to

year. This unit is comprised of one representative each from the Southwood Community Hospital both subse.
Fire and Police Departments. Officer Timothy Heinz and I have quently flown to a Level I Trauma Center by
worked together on numerous incidents as well as having at- Boston MedFlight helicopter. Mutual aid from
tended seminars pertaining to this specialty. The number one the Wrentham Fire Department.
cause of fires continues to be human error- whether it be care-
less disposal of materials, improper use of products, or over-      February 19:    Mutual aid to the town of Franklin - structure
loading electrical systems. This year we noticed an increase in fire - Dean College, Peirce House - Ladder I,
the number of incidents involving careless handling of hazard- Engine 2 and Engine 1 responded. Mutual aid
ous materials causing fires. We will continue to further our knowl- received by the Millis Fire Department to cover
edge through education and determining the causes and origins the town of Norfolk.
of all incidents in Norfolk.

February 21:    Mutual aid to the town of Foxboro - structure
JUVENILE FIRESETTERS fire - Ancyent Mariner Restaurant - Engine 2

Firefighter/EMT Patricia A. Bixby and Ladder 1 responded. Mutual aid received
from the Millis Fire Department to cover the

During this past year, programs were set up to address town of Norfolk.

juvenile firesetters. Juvenile firesetting is an on-going problem
in all communities. In the past when an incident occurred, there March 6: Severe weather- multiple calls throughout town.
was no follow- up in place for the child and family involved un- Eleven incidents)
less it resulted in action taken by the courts. We now provide
follow up and intervention consultation with the offender and March 23:       Motor vehicle accident - Everett Street- seri-
family. When determined, the child will be referred for further ously injured patient flown to Beth Israel Hos-
consultation. Fire Prevention education is our top priority. The pital by Boston MedFlight helicopter after be-
sooner we can reach these children by teaching them fire safety ing extricated from vehicle utilizing hydraulicthe better understanding they will have of what can happen. tools.

Unfortunately,due to budget constraints, our fire prevention pro-
grams were affected by cutbacks until we were able to take part March 29:       Mutual aid to the town of Wrentham- structure
in the S. A.F.E. Program. Thanks to the availability of this grant fire- Phillips Lane.       
we are able to provide fire prevention education programs once
again on a limited basis. Fire Prevention education has been April I:  Severe weather- spring snowstorm- multiple
proven to be effective. It is certainly well worth the time and calls throughout town. ( Sixty-two incidents)
effort involved to promote these programs. We will always have
Juvenile firesetters. Our goal is to reduce the number of children April 28: Motor vehicle accident- Dedham Street- two
who resort to these activitia through education and provide the seriously injured patients transported to
programs for those who need them to prevent further incidents. Southwood Community Hospital. Mutual aid

from the Wrentham Fire Department.

May 12: Mutual aid to the town of Millis- structure fire
Village Street.

May 23: Structure fire- Campbell Street.
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Severe weather- multiple calls throughout town.      Civilian Deaths: 1

June 22:
Fifteen incidents) Mutual aid from the Civilian Injuries: 2

r
Wrentham Fire Department.  Firefighter Injuries:      3

August 1:       Motor vehicle accident Shears Street - seri-       FIRE DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY FOR .t99'

1 ously injured patient flown to Brigham &
Womens Hospital by Boston MedFlight heli-      EMERGENCY INCIDENTS:  1997 1996 1995

copter. Mutual aid from the Wrentham Fire Structure Fires 45 40 33

Department.    Vehicle Fires 7 6 13

Motor Vehicle Accidents

August 19:      Mutual aid to the town ofWrentham- structure Engine Response) 33 40 40

fire- Creek Street.     Outside Electrical Fires 52 33 19

i
Outside Fires 28 25 4

1 September 2:   Motor vehicle accident- Cleveland Street- three Hazardous Material Incidents 8 13 i

patients transported to Southwood Community Fire Alarm Activated 61 86 87

Hospital. Mutual aid from the Wrentham Fire Public Assistance 4 2 11

i Department and the Millis Ambulance Service.      Line Box Coverage 1 3 2

Investigations 61 51 56

September 7:   Mutual aid to town ofWrentham- structure fire Miscellaneous 46 39 18

West Street.   Assist EMS Unit 29 48 41

Carbon Monoxide Investigations 30 23 28

September 21:  Motor vehicle accident- Mirror Lake Avenue-      Secure Helicopter Landing Zone 60 35 24

seriously injured patient transported to Emergency Medical

Southwood Community Hospital subsequently Services Incidents 584 65 547

flown to Brigham & Womens Hospital by
LifeStar helicopter.    Total Emergency Incidents 1, 049 1, 009 9F 4

September 25:  Mutual aid to the town of Millis- structure fire EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES:    r

Village Street. p y
Total Emergency Medical

October 14:     Hazardous materials release- MCI-Norfolk In- Services Incidents 584 565 547

dustries Building - Mutual aid from the Medical 240 243 222f y

Wrentham Fire Department. Motor Vehicle Accidents r=

Amb. Response) 104 1011 103
F

November 1:    Mutual aid to the town of Medway structure Mutual Aid( Given/ Received)      107 119 92       (    '

fire- Village Street. Mutual aid to cover the town Advanced Life Support 264 269 229
I

of Millis. Mutual aid from the Walpole Fire FIRE PREVENTION:    v

Department to cover the town of Norfolk.    Smoke Detector Inspections

for Resale 155 159 132 l,;'   1,

November 21:  Mutual aid to the town of Wrentham - motor Smoke Detector Inspections

vehicle versus school bus accident- mass casu- for New Homes 36 44 4U i

alty incident declared. Norfolk fire ambulance Oil Burner Inspections 34 33 26       `*`
If

transported four patients to area hospitals.   Propane Storage Inspections 8 48

44 p
Building Inspections 1V i

December 2:    Structure fire MCI-Norfolk Property Build-      Gun Powder Storage Inspections 7 35

ing - two alarm fire. Mutual aid from the Underground Storage Inspections 20 12 18

Wrentham, Millis, Walpole and Medfield Fire Tank Truck Inspections 1 8 1

Departments. Three firefighters injured.      Fire Drills/Fire Safety Presentation 20 6 8

Monitor Blasting 13 49 31

December 31:  Mutual aid to the town ofWrentham- structure Issue Burning Permits 794 722 689

fire- Wolford Road.   
Requests for Open Burning 1, 344 1, 068 1, 231

Miscellaneous 9 2 5

1997 Fire Loss Assessment: 
244, 130.00

1996 Fire Loss Assessment: 
132,500.00
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MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES:      FIRE AND POLICE

Meetings 30 28 30 COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT
Departmental Training 18 16 20

Recertification Training 3 0 2 For the year ending December 31, 1997, the Communica•
Recruit Training 1 0 0 tions Department handled over 5, 000 police incidents, 1, 000 fire
Details 162 174 281 incidents and countless thousands of phone calls for general in.

formation and service. Please remember that 9- 1- 1 should k
APPARATUS STATUS REPORT:     used only in the event of an emergency, and all other calls should

be made on the business line.

Engine 2:   1991 Pierce Excellent Condition

1, 250 GPM Pumper 1997 was also a year of transition. Lieutenant Peter
Petruchik and Sergeant Jonathan Carroll stepped down from their

Engine 1:   1977 Mack( Refurbed 1992) Fair Condition positions supervising the Communications Department to re.
1, 250 GPM Pumper spond to more pressing needs in their respective departments.

They were responsible for developing and implementing the
Ladder 1:   1996 Emergency One Excellent Condition Communication Department Policies and Procedures Manual

110' Aerial Ladder We are grateful for their efforts in achieving a better quail()
manual. In 1997, there were also many vacancies created with

Tants 1:     1989 White/GMC Good Condition the resignation of seven of our part- time dispatchers, most of
2, 500 Gallon Tank Truck whom went on to find full- time employment in a related field.

Good luck to all.

Squad 4:   1994 Ford F-450 Excellent Condition

Brush/Mini-Pumper The Statewide Telecommunications Board updated souse
of our Enhanced 9- 1- 1 equipment. Now all radio and phone calls

Squad 5:   1968 Dodge Power Wagon Poor Condition coming into the station are digitally recorded. This new equip.
Brush Truck ment is easier to operate and less expensive to maintain.

Squad 6:   1980 Chevrolet Fair Condition We' re hoping that funding for training that has previously
Brush Truck been cut from our budget will be restored in FY 99, so that we

may continue to assure a professional response to your needs for
Rescue 49: 1992 Ford Class 3 Fair Condition service.

Road Rescue Ambulance

Respectfully submitted,
Car 4- 0:    1995 Ford Bronco Excellent Condition

Command Vehicle Sergeant Robert J. Shannon
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ROAD SAFETY COMMITTEE BUILDING DEPARTMENT

The Road Safety Committee has four new members join The Building Department consists of the Building Corn-
this year. The Committee has been active in the following areas:      missioner/Zoning Officer, Local Inspector, Electrical Inspector,
investigating intersections with significant numbers of accidents;      Assistant Electrical Inspector, Plumbing Inspector, Gas Inspec-
recommending to the Highway Superintendent- new road signs,      tor and two part-time Administrative Assistants.

street lights, and street signs; developing rules and orders for
pedestrians and motor vehicles in town; working with school The Town of Norfolk Building Department conforms to
committee, recreation committee, and safety officers in plan-      the Commonwealth of Massachusetts State Building Code, The

ning a safer system of roads and sidewalks.    Building Commissioner and the Local Inspector enforce all pro-
visions of this code and any other state statutes, rules, regula-

Last year, a warrant article was presented at Spring Town tions and bylaws. The Building Department Inspectors oversee
Meeting to specifically fund sidewalks, as proposed by the Town' s construction and installation of wiring and plumbing, to insure
Master Plan. This year, another article on sidewalks will be pre-      compliance with all code requirements for the safety of the gen-

sented.     eral public.

The Committee acknowledges and thanks the many mu-     The Building Commissioner carries out the State-mandated
nicipal employees for all their help.     duties of inspecting and certifying all schools, places of assem-

bly, public halls and places of worship.
Respectfully submitted,

The Building Commissioner is also the Zoning Officer tur
Road Safety Committee the Town of Norfolk and a great deal of his time is devoted to

zoning issues and enforcement of the Town of Norfolk zoning
Bylaws.

This year the Building Department oversaw the construc-
tion onstructtionof a new Town Hall, the anticipated completion date is
Spring, 1998.

Paul DiChiara, part- time Local Inspector/ Assistant Zon-

ing Officer resigned during the year to take a full- time position
as Building Inspector for the town of North Attleboro. We wish
Paul well. David Roche was hired to fill this position.

The Building Department would like to thank the various
town departments, boards and officials for their support and as-
sistance during the year.

Respectfully submitted,

Gerald E. Hughes

Building Commissioner

The following is a list of permits that were issued during
1997;

No. of Permits Explanation Est. Value

1996 1997

33 34 New Dwelling 5, 317,770.00

New Commercial

118 61 Additions/Alt.- Res.      575, 637.00

6 8 Additions/Alt.- Comm.    58,243.00

1
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1 New Municipal HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
16 11 Pools 115, 333. 00
11 1 Wood/Coal Stove 1, 100.00

Solar Systems

Signs 100.00
for the

ThemaintenTown ok ghway Department is responsible
2 1anceofNorfandrehabilitationlHiof Town roadways, stone
7 1 nalitiorts 3, 000.00 water systems, municipal grounds and green spaces including

schools and cemeteries and municipal solid waste.14 8 Siding 48, 800.00
52 28 Re roofing 91, 526.00

The Department also provides vehicle maintenance and
6,211, 509.00 repair service for all municipal vehicles which include Police,

Fire, Council on Aging, and Water Departments.
260 153 Building Permits

ROADWAY MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATIONTotal Fees to Treasurer 58,503.00

214 211 Electrical Permits The Department completed various repairs on areas of
Total Fees to Treasurer 9, 919.00 failed roadway Town wide.

95 93 Plumbing Permits In conjunction with the water main expansion project for
Total Fees to Treasurer 6, 162.00 Briarwood Estates Subdivision, overlays were performed on 790

LF of Bridie Lane and 1375 LF of Grove Street from the inter-
4.)       57 Gas Permits section of Bridie Lane to house# 90.

Total Fees to Treasurer 1, 668.00
The first phase of the Chapter 90 projects was completed

in portions of Needham Street, Seekonk Street and Medway
Street. Details are noted below.

Medway Street- 3330 LF- Reclaim existing pave-
ment, regrade and install 2 1/ 2" of bituminous con-
crete base course.

Needham Street- 1670 LF- Install three new drain-
age structures and a 1" bituminous concrete level-
ing course over existing pavement.

Seekonk Street- 3600 LF- Repair existing drainage
structures and install a 1" bituminous concrete lev-

eling course over existing pavement.

The second phase of these projects is scheduled to be com-
pleted in the spring of 1998.

Crack Repair was completed on the following roadways;
Medway Branch, Tucker Road, Country Squire, Turner Street, t
Meadowbrook Way, Chicatabut Avenue, Naugatuck Avenue,
Masconemet Avenue, Cowesit Avenue and Day Street.

1
A temporary reconfiguration of the North Street and Shears t.

Street intersection was constructed to eliminate turning motion t
conflicts. Site distance and reconstruction issues will be addressed
in the final design phase.   F
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DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS

The Department completed various repairs on failed struc-     The Landfill Capping Project was completed in Decem-
tures and piping systems Town wide and contracted the service ber 1997. Asbuilt and certification plans are being prepared t..,

of cleaning the Town' s catch basin system.     submit to the Department of Environmental Protection for ap-
proval.

The installation of 1000 LF of sub- drain was completed

along portions of Pennacook Street and Montuck Avenue to cor-     The Department installed the new flag pole on Town Hill.

rect the ground water breakout problem which caused severe We would like to thank the Norfolk Police and Norfolk Fire As-

icing conditions during the winter months.     sociation for their donation to install the lighting system,

ENGINEERING The Department completed the installation of a foot bridge
over the new weir at Town Pond in conjunction with the Boy

After the spring of 1997 Public Hearing, the Town Center Scout project program through the Norfolk Conservation Corn-

Project was revised due to personal property impact along mission.

Rockwood Road. Rockwood Road from Boardman Street to the
railroad crossing was deleted for the project and the Massachu-     A special note of thanks to all Town Departments and

setts Highway Department( MHD) allowed the Town to incor-      Boards who assisted us in the last year.

porate Main Street from the railroad bridge to Boardman Street
into the project. One hundred percent design will be completed Respectfully submitted,

by June of 1998. The project advertisement date is October 3,
1998.  

Remo R. Vito, Jr.

Highway Superintendent

Completed 100% engineering for Medway Street from
House# 80 to Myrtle Street.

Preliminary design was completed for the intersection of
North Street and Shears Street, North Street and Union Street
and Medway Street from Main Street to house# 80.

The Norfolk County Engineers surveyed the intersection
of Seekonk Street and Main Street, King Street and Union Street
and King Street and Maple Street for future design.

Preliminary design and concept for the reconstruction of
the Route 115 corridor ( Pond Street) from the intersection of
Needham Street and North Street to Route 1 in Foxboro and
Route 1140 in Wrentham was approved by the MHD in June
1997. The project has been resubmitted for funding and con-
struction under the FY-1999 2004 TIP.

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE

The Departmentperformed daily and annual maintenance
of municipal grounds and green spaces including schools and
cemeteries.

The department completed the second phase of the Veter-
ans' Memorial located at the Norfolk Cemetery. Lots were made
available for sale in May 1997.

Trimmed and cut roadside shoulder areas Town wide to
improve sight distance.
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TRANSFER STATION Non-Recyclable Waste

The Town of Norfolk contracts with Semass Partnershi;
In 1997 the Town of Norfolk Transfer Station continued

for disposal of household waste and Laidlaw Waste Systems fa
to explore expansion of its recycling base. We received revenues bulky waste.
for corrugated cardboard, glass, plastics, wood waste and met-

als. Town resources were used to haul the recyclables and solid
waste to end sites.       

Total compacted waste 781 tom
Total bulky waste 175 tons
Total non- recyclable waste 956 tons

The Town contracted for the removal of waste oil, tires
Daily average 10 tom

and batteries. Brush and leaves were ground for mulch and made
available to the residents of the Town. 

The 781 tons of compacted waste represents 44,629 bags

The Town recycled approximately 1, 108 tons of munici-      
of household waste.

pal waste, placing Norfolk for the second consecutive year, within Recyclable Waste
the top five communities in the state not only meeting but slightly
exceeding the state' s goal of 46% community recycling.      Newspaper 360 ton

To use the Recycling/Transfer Station, you must be a resi-      
Corrugated Cardboard 103 tons

dent of Norfolk and purchase a decal for you vehicle. Specifics
Mixed Paper 13 tons

are outlined in our annual newsletter which is mailed to every
Plastics(# 1,# 2)    18 tons

household.       
Waste Oil and Anti-Freeze 2 tons

Metal( white goods and metal cans)     118 tons

Residents currently using a curb side pick up service -      
Tires 2 tons

Please feel free to come by and tour the facility. There are many
Batteries( automobile) 1 ton

services available to you that you may not be aware of. For ex-      
Glass( white and colored) 75 tons

Brush 245 tons
ample:    

Leaves/ Yard Waste 54 tons

Disposal of oil& antifreeze
Total Recyclable Waste 991 tons

Collection area for yard& brush waste
Daily Average 10 tons

Donations are accepted for charities; Goodwill, Sal-     
The figure for batteries and tires were derived by convert.

vation Army, Lions( eye glasses), King Philip Boost- ing pounds to tons using the average weight of a battery ( 36
ers( returnable bottles& cans)     

pounds) and the average weight of a tire( 25 pounds)

A special note of thanks to all Town Departments and
Recycling Rate

Boards who assisted us in the last year.

Respectfully submitted,      
Total recyclable+ non-recyclable waste 1, 947 tons

Remo R. Vito, Jr.    
These figures give a Recycling Rate of 51%.

Highway Superintendent

TOWN OF NORFOLK TRANSFER STATION
ANNUAL REPORT 1997

All of the figures in this report relate to the calendar year

January 1, 1997 through December 31, 1997.

The Transfer Station was open to Norfolk residents twice

each week, on Tuesday and Saturdays. The total number of op-
erating days in 1997 was 101.
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NORFOLK ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS Administrative Staff

f Mr. Robert Smith, Principal

R The Superintendent' s Report Freeman Centennial Schools

Mrs. Linda Balfour, Principal
On behalf of the Norfolk Elementary School Committee,      H. Olive Day School

is the faculty and staff and the children of Norfolk, I again, offer
Mrs. Betteanne McMahan,

is my thanks for your support of the elementary school system. A Part time Assistant Principal

is wide variety of efforts go into providing an excellent education Freeman Centennial School

ss for our students and I am proud of the many people who work Mrs. Lucia Godfrey,
very hard to achieve these results.       Part time Assistant Principal

gs H. Olive Day School
Your elected School Committee devotes time and enor-      Mrs. Linda Balfour, Special Education Director

mous energy in their job whether it is dealing with contract de Mrs. Patricia Connolly, Special Education
velopment, negotiations or developing and monitoring the bud-      Coordinator

get process. The Committee has made a real commitment to the Mrs. Margaret Larkin, Supervisor of School Lunch
ns community and its children.     Program

ns Mrs. Martha Bettencourt, Manager of Freeman
ns Norfolk Elementary School Committee Centennial Cafeteria

III Mrs. Betty Brady, Manager of H. Olive Day
fi Rita Advani Term expires 1999

Cafeteria

ns Lucille Bailey Term expires 1999 Mr. Toby Lyons, Supervisor of Buildings
a Maureen Howard Term expires 1999

on John Spinney .  Term expires 2000 Secretarial Staff

a James Lehan Term expires 2000

ins Mrs. Janet Curran

sns Organization Freeman Centennial Schools

IDS Mrs. Virginia Navickas

a Lucille Bailey, Chairperson H. Olive Day School
Maureen Howard, Vice Chairperson Mrs. Susan MacKinnon .

t.  John Spinney, Policy and Special Education Office

36 King Philip, Representative
Rita Advani, Legislative Liaison Faculty and Support Staff
James Lehan, Secretary

New members employed by the school system include:
The Norfolk Elementary School Committee met regularly

ns each month in MacBride Auditorium or in the Superintendent' s
Leslie Levine Bonnie Enriquez

Office located in the Freeman Centennial School.     Jennifer Demenezes

Roberta Hunt Roseanne Idzal

Meetings were scheduled for the first Tuesday of each Judith Niedz ecki

month and began promptly at 7: 15 p.m. The public was invited Jennifer Pfeiffer Melissa Tucker

to attend and participate in these meetings.     Linda Robbins Tina Masinda

Carol Burke Sandra Butler

Superintendent of Schools Kathy Astley Janet Gallo

Lorraine S. Young, Ed. D.      We accepted resignations from:

Superintendent' s Office Karen Kraemer Mary Barrett
Elaine Fagan Judy Parmenter

Thayer Olson, Business Manager

Roxanne Verdeaux, Secretary Retirements:

Julie Siewsko, Bookkeeper

Mrs. Ruth Luecke
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School Committee School Newspaper

Mr.Jonathan Smith relinquished the responsibilities of the Advisor/s: Anne Houle, Barbara McLacklan

School Committee Chairperson when he decided not to run in
the May election. Mr. James Lehan joined the School Commit-     

Expectations: Student work will be published in a neo

tee for a" second term" as a result of the election. Mrs. Lucille paper format on a regularly scheduled basis.

Bailey assumed the duties of the School Committee chairperson
during this year attending the Financial Planning Committee Piano Club

meetings, Selectmen Meetings in addition to numerous school

system meetings. Mrs. Bailey and the members of the Commit-     Advisor: Sharon Bade

tee attended the annual Massachusetts Association of School
Committee Conference and the regional MASC meetings.  Expectations: Students will have the opportunity to pe:

form.

Mr. John Spinney kept the committee informed of King
Philip Regional activities in his role as representative to the King Student Government

Philip School Committee.
Advisor: Carol Beard

Mr. Spinney, assisted by Mrs. Maureen Howard, contin-
ued to lead the Committee in matters of policy. During this year Expectations: Students will have experience with the pre.

tie School Committee worked on a combination of new policy cess of government and will engage in problem solving activi

issues and the review of existing policies.      ties as well as those which develop school spirit and communis
service.

Mrs. Lucille Bailey and Mrs. Rita Advani co-chaired the
budget subcommittee and worked endless hours to develop a School Store

budget that would be supported by the Advisory Board and with
the Town Financial Planning Committee.     Advisor/s: Debbie Grout, Marilyn Latimer

The School Committee completed negotiations of a new Expectations: Students will learn basic principles of eco

contract with the Norfolk Teachers' Association. The process nomics, i.e. marketing, pricing, distribution, etc.
was arduous and extensive but produced a clear understanding

of the expectations of the Committee and the Association.   Marionettes

Review of Programs Advisor/s: Robin Rappa

Our extra curricula programs began in the fall of 1997 af-     Expectations: Students will produce a puppet/ marionette

ter the settlement of the teachers' contract occurred. The follow-

ing programs were offered to students during the 1997- 1998 Video Production

school year:

Advisor/s: Sue Coyle,Diane Balut

Special Chorus
Expectations: Students will produce a short video.

Advisor: Sharon Bade
Computers

Expectation: Students will have an opportunity to perform
in this capacity.       Advisor/s: Jim Lafave, Mike Kelly

Drug Busters I2 sessions)       Expectations: Students will use computer skills.

Advisor/s: Trish Gallerani, Debbie Ayer Ceramics

Expectation: Students will be able to work in a small group Advisor/s: Kelly Krauss, Buffy Casey, Anne Rogers
setting with a counselor/ teacher to deal with the consequences
of alcohol and/ or drug abuse.  Expectations: Students will use create a ceramic piece.
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Crafts
Pre Kindergarten 46

Kindergarten 157

Advisor/ s: Sue Todres, Maureen Gentry Grade One 151

Grade Two 185

Expectations: Students will complete a craft project.    Grade Three 171

Grade Four 139

American Girl Doll Club Grade Five 158

Grade Six 149

Advisor/ s: Simonne Favaloro, Betty Varey
Five Year Plan

Expectations: Students will learn about the American dolls.
Schmmitteeacmeetingievementnth

TAPPS:    
Five Year

PltheanJune reportedool
onCothe hoftheirallstragoals.

ds

Again

ofe

we made less progress than we had hoped for during the first
Advisor/s: Bonnie Enriquez half of the year because of the ongoing contract negotiations. In

the capital project category, Mr. Lyons managed several demand-
Tutor Assisting, Preparing Pupils for Success— Study and ing projects bringing each to completion at or under budget.

Organizational Skills
Several improvements to school properties were aecom-

Expectations: Student will develop study and organiza-      plished during 1997. Forty- four year old windows were replaced

tional skill.
with modern dual-paned units in the third grade wing of the Free-
man School. Also inFreeman, the thirty-three year old windows

Math Games in the fourth grade wing and MacBride Auditorium were like-
wise replaced. The security system at Freeman Centennial Sem al

Advisor/s: Vivian Teague
was expanded and updated.

Expectations: Students will practice math skills in corn-     At the H. Olive Day School, the sidewalk at the gymna-

petitive, enjoyable atmosphere. Students will have an opportu-      sium/cafeteria end of the building was regraded, repaved, and

nity to play strategy games as well as math skill
games. The kids reseeded top correct drainage problems.

will be able to bring in their own games from home to share as
well. We hope to give time for kids who love to play games a

The Foundation Reserve grant allowed the School Corn-

chance to work on them and maybe teach others how to play mittee to begin a review of the site plan for the Freeman Lenten-

something new.   
nial Schools. Mr. Lowell Robinson, a local landscape architect.
prepared an analysis of the school property including recom-

t These programs added another dimension to the students
mendations for playground areas, traffic flow, roadway

learning and were valued by students and parents alike.       reconfiguration, parking, playing field reorganization, sidewalks,
and storage. This plan will be presented to the community for

Enrollment
discussion and recommendations will be made to the capital im-
provement committee under the Five Year Plan.

Our numbers continue to increase. Mrs. JudithWarren led
the School Building Needs Assessment Committee to a

success-     Budget

ful conclusion of their study. The group had completed an ex-
haustive studyof building use and enrollment projections to con-     Mr. Norman Gentry and Mr. Ted Cannon met with the

dude that an addition to the H. Olive Day School is necessary. A administration and School Committee in their role as liaisons

request for funds to design and cost out such a project was sub-      between the Advisory Board and the School Committee. Each

mitted by the Committee at the May Town meeting and was sub-      budget line item was analyzed and discussed during this process

sequently approved. At the special Town Meeting held in De-      and the Advisory Board was able to support the request for addi-
cember the request to support the addition of eight classrooms

tional funds for the elementary school budget.

was accepted and election was scheduled for January 15, 1998.
The outcome of the election indicated that the townspeople un-     

H. Olive School

derstood that there is a real need for additional classroom space. The year 1997 saw the H. Olive Day School" bursting" in

The following indicates the elementary school
enrollment many respects. In terms of physical space, it was" bursting at the

as reported in the annual October 1 report to the state: 
seams" while inside those crowded walls, the staff, students and
administration were" bursting" with activity and pride in those
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activities! During the early months of 1997, the Teachers' Work-      Adaptive Physical Education services, but also add new vitalih
room was converted to a Computer Resource Room. After iden-      and depth to our regular Physical Education program as a coma
tifying a need for the students and staff to have access to corn-      ponent of the restoration of this program.

puters in such a setting, the staff very graciously surrendered
their workroom for the use of the students in their pursuit of The GrowLab Program has continued to grow and, thus,
excellence in the field of technology. The resulting Computer promote educational growth in the Day School students and staff
Resource Room which was created by Mrs. Bonnie O' Connell,      alike. This program, which is funded by a grant that is managed
the Technology Resource Teacher, has been used extensively by by Mrs. Lucia Godfrey, the Assistant Principal and Develop
the staff and students who are learning and applying technology mental Math Teacher, has not only been incorporated into class.
skills at a rapid rate. To view just a sampling of the variety of room activities, but has also been the catalyst for some of the
activities that are taking place at the H. Olive Day School the school wide events that have become favorite annual activities
public is invited to visit the school in person( by appointment)      of the students- the Annual Bulb Planting Days and the planting
or via the Internet at our Web Site at http://      of the butterfly garden. The GrowLab Program was also forte•
www,n rrfolk.kl2.ma.us. nate to have Mrs. Carele Mayer, a former HOD teacher, provide

some of the training for the" new" GrowLab teachers.
The crowded physical space at the H. Olive Day School

continued to ha,' e an impact on our fine arts program in particu-     The Social Competency( Open Circle) Program has con
lar as the art prograe.i continued to be delivered" on a cart" to the tinued to flourish at the H. Olive Day School due to the efforts
students and the music program was confined to a portion of the and commitment of the teaching staff.All classrooms now imple.
stage. The administration, staff and students of the H. Olive Day ment the Open Circle program. The problem solving and corn
School fully supported the efforts of the School Building Needs flict resolution strategies taught through this program are ap.
Assistance Committee as they gathered information regarding plied school wide to all activities whether in the classroom, the
the school space needs and presented this information to the resi-      cafeteria or on the playground. The philosophy of this program
dents of Norfolk. The H. Olive Day School" family" is elated and its emphasis on the development of children as competent.
that the town of Norfolk has agreed with the Committee' s find-      social beings perfectly complements the developmental educa.
ing that more space is needed at the school and has made the tional program provided for the young students of the Day School.
commitment to add the needed space. The celebration of this
space is already being planned! The H. Olive Day School staff The financial and personal generosity of the members of
and students thank the School Building Needs Assistance Corn-      the Norfolk Teacher Parent Association has continued to be an
mittee and Mrs. Judith Warren, the Chairperson, for its work in important factor in the success of the educational program pro.

the identification of the space needs and its untiring efforts bring-      vided for the HOD students. the TPA Curriculum Enhancement
ing these needs to the attention of the residents of Norfolk.   Program which is coordinated by Mrs. Martha Cross, parent,

and Mrs. Anne MacKenzie, teacher, continue to add another di

In spite of the crowded physical space at the Day School,      mension to the educational program at each grade level that sign

with the beginning of the 1997- 1998 school year came the par-      ply would not exist without the fund raising efforts and planning
tial restoration of programs in physical education, art and mu-      of the TPA Executive Board. As important as the special pro.
sic. The passing of the FY 98 school budget ensured that the grams, however, are the hours of volunteer work which are con•

students now have these subjects once every five days- a sig-      tributed by the members of the TPA and enhance every aspect of
nificant increase over the last school year. Again, the adminis-      the daily operation of the.Day School. The H. Olive Day School:!
tration, staff and students are grateful that the town has allocated family extends heartfelt thanks to Mrs. MaryAnn Wilcox, the
the funds to fund this partial restoration. It has made a wonder-      President of the.Norfolk TPA, the members of the Board and all'
ful difference in the total educational program provided for the of the members who contribute their time and energy to ensure
students at the H. Olive Day School.   the success of the school.

The beginning ofthe 1997- 1998 school year brought some Continuing the emphasis on the HOD school " family',
changes to the teaching staff at the H. Olive Day School. Mrs.      the students, teachers, support staff and administrators celebrated

Karen Kraemer left her grade one teaching position after pro-      some very special, events at the H. Olive Day School. Scho4.
viding dedicated service to the children of Norfolk, While she is wide celebrations included activities that have already become
missed, Mrs. Jennifer Pfeiffer, has been welcomed to the staff as      " traditions" at HOD - the Halloween Costume Parade, the

a grade one teacher. Another welcome addition to the staff is Thanksgiving Assembly, the Holiday Sing Along, the Earth Day
Ms. Melissa Tucker who joined the Special Needs staff as a part Celebration, the Memorial Day Remembrance, the Flag Day
time Resource Teacher, Ms. Tucker' s position was created in Programa In addition," Fun in the Sun Day'" was used as an in.
order to allow the school to provide appropriate educational ser-      teractive and fun experience for the students and staff to not only
vices to our growing student population. The Day School is for-      mark the beginning of the summer season, but also to participate
tunate to have Mrs. Roberta Hunt not only continue to provide in activities from all subject areas and enjoy the outdoors. Ex-
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Its tending such educational experiences into the summer months the H. Olive Day School would not have experienced such a
m,   was the goal of Mrs. Susan Wolkon, the Developmental Read-      successful year in 1997,

ing Teacher, who devised and managed the" Spiderman Read-
ing Challenge Program", a recreational reading program for stu-  Linda Balfour, Principal

tus,   dents at the school. Students read books over the summer and H. Olive Day School

tal
recorded their accomplishments. This program provided a won-

ged derful incentive for the students to continue reading over the Freeman/ Centennial School

op.   
summer. Mrs. Sherri Holleran provided the print material and

es.   the prizes for the program through the generosity of her em-     It is with pride and pleasure that I share my view of this

the ployer, DeWolfe Realty. The HOD students appreciate the effort past year at the Freeman- Centennial Schools' for the students,

ties and the funding that was invested in this program by Mrs. Wolkon,       faculty and support staff. It certainly has been a most exciting an
ing Mrs. Holleran and the DeWolfe Company.     rewarding year for the entire school and school community. En-
rtu•       rollments, activities and learning have, increased_ and the pro-

idt An important component of the mission of the teachers,       grams and services for the children did likewise. Additionally, it
administration and staff at the Day School is to not only educate is my privilege to express to you the entire school community' s
the students, but also to guide them in the process of becoming appreciation to the Town for their support to the schools. You

on.   life long learners. The teachers and staff model this behavior as can update yourself on many of the wonderful learning activi-

els they continue to pursue professional development opportunities ties the children have experienced and are experiencing at the

r!e through courses, workshops and other learning situations. In order Freeman-Centennial Schools by accessing our Website at:

oa.   to increase the professional opportunities available to the pro-

ap•   
fessional staff, last year the Day School accepted the Depart-     http:// www.norfolk.k12/ma.us

the ment of Education' s invitation to join the first professional de-
am velopment alliance offered to elementary schools. The H. Olive Enrollments- In the spring of 1997, 139 students, one of

nt.   Day School continues to be a member of the South East Elemen-       the larger classes to exit the Freeman-Centennial Schools, were

ca.   tory School Alliance( SEESA). Fourteen elementary schools now promoted from Norfolk' s elementary program. However, as we

rol belong to this alliance, The goalis to provide teachers profes-       look forward to 2001 and our present third grade with its' 172
sional development opportunities that meet the standards of the students, we are made aware of the significant student growth in

of Educational Reform Act and, at the same time, meet the needs the Norfolk Schools... and the knowledge that classes will con-

an of the teachers and the schools in regard to the content of profes-       tinue to increase in numbers. We anticipate this continued en-

v).   sional development, Over the past year, the teachers have ben-       rollment growth for at least the next 5 years.

ens efited a great deal from the educational opportunities offered

nt,   through the alliance. So far, the experience has been a satisfying At this time, there is adequate space for our students and

di-   one that continues to hold great promise for the future. their support programs with every classroom in the Freeman-
m, -     Centennial Schools being utilized for instructional purposes. In

ing The H. Olive Day School experienced a year of excite-       the future there may be some combining of programs and shat-

r&   ment, growth and wonderful educational experience, The ad ing of space, developmental reading and math is one example,
on.   ministration and staff, believing that it does, indeed," take a vil-       but we will continue to have sufficient space for the Grades 3- 6
of lige to educate a child", knows this could not have happened programs in this facility.

aOl without the support of the entire town of Norfolk, In addition to
the'  the groups and individuals referred to previously, thanks are due A special" thank you" is extended to the Norfolk commu-

all to members of the following: the Norfolk Fire Department, es-       nity and all voters for their support to these enrollments by pass-
ire!  pecially Lieutenant Petruchik and Firefighter Bixby, who pro ing the 1997- 98 School Budget that has allowed the Freeman-

vided the students with wonderful fire safety programs; the Po-       Centennial Schools' administrative team to schedule" specialist

lice Department, especially Officer Plympton, who provide safety programs", such as music, library, art, and physical education,

y', l programs and daily safety measures; the Highway Departmentalong with computers for students and teachers, once every five
ted!  who not only keep the grounds groomed, but also helped with days, rather than the prior seven day schedule. The children and

nodi the Butterfly Garden; the Girl Scouts who helped to beautify the teacher have really enjoyed the increased opportunity for learn-
me '  grounds with a massive bulb planting; the Holmes family who ing in these important content areas.
he provided bus safety programs ( and also planted grass seed!);

say SEEN( Seniors Encouraging Education in Norfolk) who enhance Special Events- Throughout the year, many exciting ac-

say the educational and emotional atmosphere of the school; the tivities fill the children with pride for their school. This year,

in. , School Council who advise and advocate well for the students Mrs. McMahan, our part- time assistant principal, south and re-

rly
and staff; the School Committee and Superintendent Lorraine ceived a grant to design and construct a" Multicultural Mural"

ate Young who provide the vision and access the necessary resources.       in the cafeteria of the Freeman- Centennial School. Under the
sx- Without all of these members of the extended school" family",       guidance of muralist, David Fischner, the entire 600÷ student
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population; researched, designed, and painted a most impres-      accreditation process, have been working on curriculum review
sive work of art, which shows the" multicultural nature" of the and development for the past five years. Mrs. Kaufman, Grader
Freeman- Centennial Schools' social studies curriculum. Feel free teacher and Steering Committee Chairperson, along with Mrs
to contact the school( 528- 1266) and make arrangements to see Houle, Grade 4, Mrs. Wilson, Grade 6 and parents; Mrs. Man;
the" children' s work of art".    Hedberg, School Improvement Council, Mrs. Mary Ann Wilcot,

TPA President, and Mrs. Sandra Scott, parent, completed tit
Other school activities which bring the entire community school' s Five Year Follow-up Report which was due in October

together throughout the year are our class and grade level plays,      Upon submission in October and review by the Commission of
band and chorus concerts, Student Council sponsored " Spirit the NEAS& C in November, the Freeman-Centennial School,
Activities", special PTA sponsored " Enhancement Programs",      were granted approval for their Report by the Commission. Word:
the Grade 6 BULB GARDEN, Veterans' and Memorial Day from the Commission such as," The Commission was impressed
Assemblies, D.A.R.E. Celebration, Food and Coat Drives for that the town of Norfolk reacted to the needs of the elementan
the Needy, Odyssey of the Mind Program, and Holiday Celebra-      students by building the H. Olive Day School, leaving the Free.
tions. The entire school community enjoys and learns from these man- Centennial School with the necessary space to incorporate
w inderful events.       a library and fine arts area and appropriate space to augment the

educational program." or" In addition, the Commission wished
Personnel Changes- The conclusion of the 1996- 97 year to commend the F/C Schools for the appropriations projects„

was the beginning of a" new adventure" for Mrs. Ruth Luecke,      showed the Commission the high priority which the community
Grade 6 teacher. Mrs. Luecke retired after 22 years of service.      has placed on education for its children. The NEAS& C will re.
She will be sorely missed by students, parents and her colleagues visit the Freeman-Centennial School in 2002 for their decennia'

at the Freeman- Centennial Schools and the H. Olive Day School.      visit with a peer review team for reaccreditation. The Norfolk

I know that you will join with me in extending" thanks" to Mrs.      community can be proud of the achievement and support fel
Luecke' s for her many years of service to the Norfolk schools schools which made this accreditation award possible.

and its' children and our sincere wishes for a wonderful retire-
ment.    CONGRATULATIONS NORFOLK!!!

We have made the following changes to programs and/ or The Norfolk Schools' curriculum emphasis for this yen

additions to the faculty with the additional funding source you has been in the area of Language Arts. It is expected that the
provided. Mr. Thomas, our physical education instructor, and initial document will be completed by June of 1999. When this
Ms. Beard, our art teacher, have assumed responsibility for the task has been completed, the District will have achieved the goal

Freeman-Centennial Schools' Physical Education and Art Pro-      of reviewing and rewriting each of the four major content areas
grams for the approximately 620 students in this building, now,      science, mathematics, social studies, and language arts, plus`

rather than servicing 1, 150+ students in both buildings last music, art, physical education, library, health and computers ova`
year.Again, I know that the children and faculty appreciate your the past six years. The faculty and administration' s work on this
support to these programs.       important curricular task demonstrates the many hours that this

caring, dedicated and hard working professionals have achieved
Mr. Kelly, former grade 5 teacher, was assigned to an ex-      for the District. Additionally, Grade 3 teachers have been and,

paraded position of Computer Resource Teacher in the Freeman-      are continuing to be trained in the Reach Out To School: Social'
Centennial Schools, replacing Mrs. O' Connell, who assumed a Competency Program... a program that " recognizes the critical
similar role in the H. Olive Day School. Mr, Matez, returned to role that relationships play in the social development and aca
third grade, after being at the H. Olive Day School for the 1996-      demic success of children".

97 school year. Miss Solow was reassigned to a Grade 5 posi-
tion from the Special Needs Department and finally, Mrs. Wil-     The assessment program for students, the CAT/5( Calrfor

son, returned to grade 6, replacing Mrs. Luecke.       ma Achievement Tests) have been very positive, as reflected to
the following average score results shown( mean score is 50%)

New teachers: Mrs.Idzal, Grade 5 teacher, Mrs. Levine, a
part time(. 5) music teacher, Miss Jennifer DeMenezes' in the Grade 2:   Total Battery- 82. 3%
Special Needs Department and Mrs. Astley, Associate Librar- Grade 3:   Total Battery- 88. 5%
ian, replacing Mrs. Schwartz, who resigned at the end of the Grade 4:   Total Battery- 76, 8%
1996-97 school year.      Grade 5:   Total Battery- 78.0%

Grade 6:   Total Battery- 87.0%
Curriculum Development and Assessment

the Massachusetts Grade 3 Reading Test Results: ( Na.':
The Freeman- Centennial Schools, as one of the require-      tional School Norms 50%- mean score)

ments of the New England Association of School and Colleges
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Vocab Reading Comp Reading Total Spelling pate in training sessions to develop visual communication pro.

96%       89%    93%   94% grams and explore the components of a structured. phonetic read-

ing program. The special education staff working with student',
With a range of average scores shown in Norfolk' s CAT/5 in grade 3 through 6 were provided with behavioral challen,ecel

tests between 26.8% and 38. 5% above the national average,      students. The special education staff have had continued opoor-

and the even higher scores on the State Reading Test, as shown tunities to participate in specific workshop topics that relate di-
just above, I believe it is appropriate to state that the students rectly to the diverse population of students that they sereie: e.

and faculty of the Norfolk Public Schools have been doing their
jobs well. The special education department has added additional staff

in order to provide the types of programs necessary for our stu-

In closing, I would like to thank the Town of Norfolk for dents. The special education staff and the regular education staff

its support to the schools and their fund raisers; the School Corn-      have continued to work together to offer service delivery op-

mittce, our Superintendent of Schools, the Freeman- Centennial tions that provide services for children in kindergarten through

Schools School Improvement Council; the TPA, Senior Citizens,      grade six using an inclusive model. This model emphasizes pro-
parents and friends of the Freeman- Centennial Schools for their viding services for students within the regular classroom to the

many hours of volunteer support to our programs; the students greatest degree possible. A collaborative teaching team provides

for their continued" best efforts"; the teachers for their profes-      for the needs of those students through the use of classroom

sionalism and modeling of what" life long learning is all about"      modifications and small group instructional groups within th,'

through participation and involvement in various content/ spe-      regular classroom setting. This has been of benefit nut ooa'' te

cial area workshops, college course work completion, and con-      the children who are receiving special education services, 0,
tinued professional development efforts; our D.A.R.E. and safety also to other students in the class who benefit from a lower teacher

officer for his dedication to all our children; the Norfolk Police to pupil ratio. The special education program continues to pro

and Fire Departments for their assistance with school supported vide services outside of the classroom( e. g. in the resource room

programs; the food service and custodial staff for their hard work;      or speech/ language room) in order to provide a continuum of

last, but certainly not least our school nurse and secretary for services to meet the needs of all of our students. Sonic children

making the Administrative Office operate so effectively under may have educational needs requiring specialized services that
very adverse conditions. All of these people working together,      are best provided in another educational setting. A Team recom-

every day, make the Freeman-Centennial Schools an exciting mendation for a program outside of our school may be made.

and fun place to learn and grow. The Norfolk Public Schools belong to the BICO Collaborative,
an educational collaborative. Decisions in regard to how services

Robert P. Smith are delivered for students are made on an individual basis es part

Principal, Freeman Centennial School of a Team evaluation process.

Special Education The Norfolk Parents Advisory Council for children with
special needs has become active. The council has provided after

The special education department of the Norfolk Public school sports programs for the special needs child evening pre-

Schools is responsible for identifying children in need of special sentations on topics relating to the special needs child, and hull-
education services and providing those services in the most ap-      day parties.

w propriate, least restrictive setting. Special education services in
Massachusetts are provided under the guidelines of Chapter 766,     Anyone who would like more information in regard to

the Massachusetts Special Education Regulation. The Norfolk special education services in the Norfolk Public Schools should

Public Schools provides a variety ofservices to our students from contact Linda Balfour or Patricia Connolly at the H. Olive Day
age 3 through grade 6. In order to meet the number of diverse School, 541- 5478.

educational needs of our school community, the special educa-
tion department has grown, Our staff includes early childhood Patricia Connolly

teachers, learning disabilities specialists, speech and language
Special Education Coordinator

1 pathologists, a school psychologist, an occupational therapist and
assistant, a physical therapist, an adaptive physical education Technology

teacher, a vision therapist, special needs aides, a secretary, a spe-

k cial needs coordinator and director.    The Norfolk Public Schools have been actively expanding
their integration of technology into the curriculum at all grade

i The Norfolk schools have accessed grant funds and con-      levels. With the creation of Computer Resource Instructor posi-

timte to access them in order to provide training for teachers in tions for both the I-I. Olive Day and Frcenum/ Centennial Schools,

regard to inclusion and collaborative teaching models. Regular we are offering children and their teachers the opportunity to
and special education staff have had the opportunity to partici-      take full advantage of the software purchased for grade level
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curriculum areas, access to the World Wide Web for information
gathering and sharing of that knowledge in the form of interac-      and the children throughout both our lement

tool

oor
t y

Technology has become an
five multimesjia presentations and printed report, etc. 

C'

elementary schools inNqfolk and we invite you to visit the school website at  '
In addition to expanding our technology usage within the ties,

etcwww.
n.

that have taken placea

or
a

verrthe
completee

gallery
oft aG

school walls, recent Massachusetts, Department of Education pastschool year.

Technology Bond Grant funding has enabled the schools an oP James Lafaveportunity to expand our network out into the community! The
state technology grant, provided to communities that completed

Technology Coordinator l"

a comprehensive Five Year Technology Implementation Plan Suammary

approved by the Department of Education ( Our plan was ap-proved the summer of 1996!), has.given us the funding to pur-      average on

thesMEAPSin
the

Itelementary
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KING PHILIP REGIONALS

ols rnNq
CI OUI.     Respectfulsubmitted

at< hhp '; DISTRICT
of aoai Thomas 1VI. Reis

SUPERINTENDENT' S REPORT Interim Supeninteadent of Schools

Itis with a great deal of pleasure that I submit this report. KING PHILIP- NORTH

This has been an important year for the King Philip Regional
School District as we continue to try and provide a quality edu-     

The King Philip - North School Council is to be com

mended for their efforts inaddressing the following: Professionalsr cation for our children. Our staff, including teachers, adminis-
the s trators, secretaries, custodians, and support personnel, commit development; Review of the FY98 budget; Time on Learning
the G, ;' themselves, daily, to excellence in education. Our student popu-      strategies; Development of a new attendance/tardy policy; R'e-
pero ladon continues to rise and now totals 1, SS7. As enrollments view and update of the student/parent handbook

k add f. rise, our greatest challenge is to provide the students withr the
Special thanks to Oft"ieers Steve Pl m ton, Norfolk Po-The space, staff, and materials necessary to maintain our current ievel

lice Department, Jim Rocket, Plainville Police Department, and
m„  of education. Projected enrollments reflect a 26% increase over

Jeff Smith, Wrentham Police Department, far their continued 0lire next five years. Keeping class size reasonable oontiiiues to=   iefforts to promote drug free schools through their presentationz, be a top priority for parents, teachers, and the adinrriistrahon,      
esio'    of the D.A,R.E. Program to your eighth graders.
r Citi With limited resources and increasing eniollatients,

4

the ,r. 10The addition of a

Freent teacher to btir unified Arts Pro= ihef r  budget continues to be our greatest concern. since the>?duea-  i{
a don Reform Act of 1993, it a ears to me that a dis A ct rs gram has afforded our students the opportunity to get an expo-,PP sdre to both die Spanish and French languages.z   , i cervmg a disproportionately low share of stat undin Thi

pis a-new education funding formulaourraotlYberr•rg de+eloped,    
Spee thanks to KP North' science teachers, Nancywith the League of Women Voters and should thi pass,,  a+dis ,    

t1,444s; ;tact woul

League

receive a substantial increase in state f Inds W1 Cyt;     KoYar, Dred Ivlurtari, Larry Tingley,' and Alan Harris for their 8

t,      ingreased fundin from either state and finer a +` .   outstanding effohs in rtrviSing,,,otrr seventh grade science cur-

i r

g e w s`   over
ricultim ibis a<st sumotet;"

r'    tides, rising enrollments will maCplgydrttulity;nd, itob"   
very difficult. To this end, we contrnu  , to,  t'ir3,W,     ll da

p

Inclusion of special needs students with our regular school'long range forecasts of enrollment There s4 a; o     " ac>!ttil
rogxams eoG ttttes'to develop,through training of both specialview Committee to assess theimpact of these a oilme t rrf;     

nepd flacrdf regular staff ti}embers in a co- teaching model.tends of both space and

ainthe
imp,     

to

d } e

4 '   '  y ,       pn". g t  ,   c Mate s, nrrsored., Net Day':, our school're-We will eoritinue to work closel withY   th h t  t,     ce ved tre ebdt s su ft b p tints and staff to bei theadieu a.,- our needs and to attem t to b
h (

t pgn
s

1

al      ,. oa st b roe"  sf6v,'47 nFA,A a l o owerthese of the three c9mtnunitres, As w all4   ' - L V
to afford our

Csta
dross`

F     + a reputation of;   the h,    toy •s d•    ^  9 ' e e          
r'4e-s ltre W    ,,-

lc'  

Ve  , pecaal' thanks and appre-

1  ' duality of the
i 6public

thre

sy.„.0•   o a    ,,    , t, ! t patOief orts totiht,( rotdbi Woodhams, Bob Calkins,1-- CO''''r ar+' ,''''24'     8S fy' x'
21;„ Ito'

my B raYw' Jey,.,Paul Spencer, Bruce
i r     „     ,    

ti Algot,Runeirnan, Steve otte, RICK Klokrrisn,r       

In closirig, I would like tq take tit      ° o e pfd Y, Ron Mono,   d^ '    DavisVag may sincere apprecratiofi to the t c p   ,       ht ' v

0'    

h'ators, school reoladjttee rneinbei, pare s 0d4 Q Q T QZD A GH SCHOOL
ti ty, for their dedication to the wetl being ofdlo4.11 g; e l,'   4  . 99/ STA ' ISTICS

eve the challenges that the dis•tri"et faops Wi,,  r
y'   
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Undecided 10 4 Endicott College

Total Population 238 Evergreen State University
Total Students Continuing Their Education Fairfield University

192 81. 5 Fitchburg State College
Total Students Four Year Colleges Framingham State College

168 71 Franklin Pierce College

Total Students Two Year Colleges George Mason University
19 8 Georgetown University

CLASS OF 1997 COLLEGES ACCEPTED Gordon College

Harvard University
Appalachian State University Hesser College
Aguinas College Hobart& William Smith College

Arcadia University Indiana University
Assumption College Ithica College
Babson College Jacksonville University
Ball State University James Madison University
Bares College Keene State College
Bennington College Lassell College

Bentley College Lehigh University
Berklee College of Music Lesley College
Boston College Lyndon State College
Boston Conservatory Marist College

Boston University Marshall University
Brandeis University Mary Washington University
Bridgewater State College Marymount University
Brown University Mass Bay C.C.
Bryant College Mass College ofArt
California State University Mass College of Communication
Cape Cod C.C.  Mass College of Pharmacy
Carneige Mellon University Mass Maritime College
Castleton State College Massassoit C.C.
Clark University Merrimack College
Clarkson University Messiah College
Clemson University Miami University
Colby College Mitchell College
Colby Sawyer College Monserrat College of Art
College of Holy Cross Mount Allison University
College of William& Mary Mt. Ida College
Colorado State University N. Carolina University
Columbia University N.E. Inst. of Technology
Comm. College R.T.     New England Conservatory
Cornell University Newbury College
Daniel Webster College Nichols College
Dartmouth College Northeasten University
Delaware Valley College Northwestern University
Drew University Norwich University
Duke University Notre Dame College
Dusquesne University Ohio State University
East Carolina State University Ohio Wesleyan University
Easter Nazarene College Penn State University
Eckerd College Plymouth State College
Edinboro University Providence College
Elmira College

Purdue University
Emanuel College Qunnipiac College
Emerson College R.I. School of Design
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Regis College Syracuse University U. of Rochester

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute Trinity College U. of S. Conn

Rhode Island College Tufts University U. of South Carolina

Roanoke College Tulane University U. of Southern Maine

Robert Wesleyan U. MA Amherst U. of Tampa

Roger Williams College U. MA Boston U. of Tennessee

Russell Sage College U. MA Dartmouth U. of Vermont

Rutgers University U. MA Lowell U. of Virginia

Sacred Heart College U. Maine Farmington U. of RI

Salem State College U. Maine Orono United State Military Academy
Salve Regina University U. of Alaska University of New Hampshire
Sarah Lawrence College U. of Chicago Utica University
Seaton Hall U. of Conn.     Vanderbilt University
Shennandoah College U. of Delaware Villanova University
Sienna College U. of Florida Virginia Tech. Inst.

Simmons College U. of Georgia Wake Forest University
Smith College U. of Hartford Wayne State College

Springfield State College U. of Kansas Wheaton College

St. Anselm College U. of Long Island Wellesley College
St. Joseph College U. of Maine Presquile Wentworth Ins. of Tech.

St. Lawrence College U. of Memphis Wesleyan University

St. Leo College U. of Miami West Virginia Wesleyan

St. Michaels College U. of N. Arizona Western Michigan University

Stanford University U. of N. Colorado Westfield State College

Stonehill College U. of New Haven Wheelock College

Susquehanna University U. of Oregon William Patterson College

State University of NY U. of Rhode Island Williams College

Worcester Poly. Tech.
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TRY-COUNTY REGIONAL dents involved in the Tech Prep program must complete anti
tablished level of academics and technical competencies. 84

VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL dent upon completion of their high school work will be awarde,:
SCHOOL DISTRICT credits according to the articulated agreement. Last year wed

veloped an individual agreement with the Electrical Departmeti

In July 1997 the School Committee reorganized and elected
of the New England Technical Institute,

the following officers: Alan Lovely( Plainville) Chairman, Rob-
ert Heavey( Medway) Vice- Chairman, and Mark LaScola( North

Tri-County along with the Franklin Area Chamber of Com
coerce serves as the co-chairs of the Tri-County School- to- Ca

Attleboro) Secretary.    
reer Partnership. This partnership will share in over$ 762,p

The School Committee conducts its regularly scheduled over three years to serve the career education needs of all ark

meetings on the third Wednesday of each month at 7: 30 P.M. in
students.

the Committee Meeting Room at the school. Sub- committee
Academics:

meetings are scheduled as needed.

The Education Reform Act of 1993 has mandated changeGraduation:      
improvement, and a raising of standards for all public schoolsir

On June 15, 1997, 156 students were graduated in an im Massachusetts. To that end, Tri-County has embraced a nations

pressive afternoon ceremony. Victor Knust Graichen, Chairman
vocational initiative, High Schools That Work, as its procedure

of the Tri-County School Committee, delivered the welcoming vehicle for effecting such goals. As we enter academic year 199?
98, the third year of participation in this program, we ahead

address to more than one thousand guests. Music was provided

by the North Attleboro High School Band.     
see positive results and continue to strive for even higher stag
dards.

Camilla Huston, Director of Pupil Personnel Services, pre-

sented scholarships and awards totaling more than$ 200,000 to This year we have completely rewritten each course et

deserving seniors.       riculum to allow for consistency within the respective discipline'
to reflect our new course sequencing and to match the Stat;'

Pupil Personnel Services:       Curriculum Frameworks. It is our belief that these revisions wit

better prepare our students for the worlds of works and continue

In September 1996, Tri-County welcomed approximately ing education and will result in proficient results on the Massa

794 students to the new school year.The district towns and num-      chusetts Comprehensive Assessment Systems( MCAS) tests.Vi

bei of students are Norfolk 34, Millis 28, Medway 58, Franklin are already enheartened in this regard by our positive perk'
r 164, Medfield 25, North Attleboro 182, Plainville 60, Seekonk mance on this year' s IOWA tests.

68, Sherborn 6, Walpole 69, and Wrentham 60. Also 40 students
were accepted from out-of-district areas.     As we raise our standards and challenge students to peri;

form at higher levels, we need to remember to increase our sup
port to them. This year' s Summer Academy is such an effortThe Pupil Personnel Department continued its evening

program for 96-97. The Guidance Department continued its Peer purpose is to provide invited students an opportunity to fill If

Helpers program to assist with school adjustment and to intro missing shells in the areas of Math, Reading or Writing so tlr

duce Tri.-County to junior high students in the community. The they could better succeed in the next academic year. More initiat
tives will follow.department continued its programs on preparing for college with

the assistance of Dean College Financial Aid Administrators and s'

Admissions Counselors. Tri-County hosted two Career Days for Vocational-Technical Programs:

Grade 8 students and held evening Open Houses for parents,
The vocational programs have made every effort to siniul

Tri.County has established itself as a leader in the Tech late real work experience by providing service to the district

Prep System. This concept has been referred to by National Busi town agencies, civil organizations, and residents. The Auto R

ness and Educational Leaders as one of the most exciting initia- pair, Auto Body and Metal Trade Departments are fully sche
uled for customer work at all times. Work is accepted from des,fives in education. The primary function of the Tech Prep pro
trict residents if such work coincides with the instructional crugram is the combined secondary/ post- secondary program that is

being offered to Tri-County students with Massachusetts Bay riculum. The Auto Repair Program has received A,S. E Mast

Community College, Wentworth Institute of Technology, North-      Certification from the National Automotive Technician Educt

eastern University, Dean College, Middlesex Community Col
tion Foundation.

lege, Aquinas College and Massasoit Community College. Stu-
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ti The Child Care Program provides a creative agenda that cry and recycling of refrigerans. EPA government regulations

i%  foster the wholesome development of the pre-schoolers in a va-      require that HVAC standards remain at the cutting edge of tech-

dt riety of early
childhood settings. High school students work with nology.

dt these youngsters learning first hand the various theories and prac-
lett tices of child development.     The Carpentry Program allows students to becona: C, e, ii,

iar with both rough and finish construction. As students corn

Cosmetology is a program that provides skill in a variety plete this program, they are well on their way to securing con-

is of beauty services, such as hair, scalp, skin and nails. The pro-      struction supervisor licenses.

Co gram prepares the student for the State License in hairdressing.
X,  The Clinic is open to the public during the school year.      Our construction programs have been very busy during

Uu this year with the building of a Senior Center in the Town of
The Culinary Arts shop continues to attract many local Wrentham,

patrons to their student-run restaurant( Gerry' s Place) and bake
shop. Many senior citizen groups from the community visit Tri-     Continuing Education:

County to sample the delicious meals and baked goods that are
sgt prepared by the high school students. The Continuing Education Program offers an Adult Cos-
Sit metology Program during the day. This is a separate program
at Desktop Publishing instructs students in the use of the lat-      that provides 1, 000 hours of instruction. The program runs from

Si est software applications utilized in the Graphic Design Indus-      September to May and follows the high school calendar. Regis-
IT try. Students create and execute various visuals used in advertis-      tration for this program takes place at the end of May each year.

a6,   ing such as: book, package, newsletter and promotional design.      The Evening School Division enrolled approximately 6010 stu-
s

dents for the 1996- 97 school year. Registration for the Evening

The Electronics Technology Program prepares students for Division takes place in September for the Fall Semes+, r and in

entry- level positions in electronics and computer technology. This January for the Winter Session. New programs for the 97- 98
arearea of study is concerned with the principle of operation, de-      school year include Parenting Your Young Child, lnterr-cttio. ial

ine'  sign, and fabrication of various electronics hardware, Students Cooking, Baking( Breads) and Esthetics.
toe who complete the program will possess basic skill in DC, AC,
wit digital, solid state, CAD, and logical troubleshooting techniques.     Athletics:

itt Upon graduation, students will be qualified for various positions
ssr such as electronics assembler, electronics technician, test tech-     The Athletic Program had a very successful year with

i nician, computer and engineering assistant.    strong performances by all the teams. The Fall Season saw the
fa`'     Soccer Team make it to the 2nd round of state tournament, while

Marketing/ computer Information Systems include bank-      the Cross Country Team finished 2nd in the league. Football and
ing, retailing and computer skills for students who have selected Volleyball had fine performances with all teams being well rep-

pew this vocational program. Students master skills in computerized resented on All-Star Teams.

RI accounting, data base management, word processing and spread-
I sheet analysis. Students learn on up- to- date software such as The Winter Season had five basketball teams filling the

lill Microsoft Office 97 and Lotus Smart/Suite.    gym with the Boy' s Varsity Team competing in the State Tour-
thi

nament. The Wrestling Team had several athletes compete in the
ititi4 The Medical Careers Program continues to grow and is All State Wrestling Tournament. The Cheerleading Squad con-

now currently affiliated with three area nursing homes( Medfield,      tinned to cheer on all the teams and performed well at several

Franklin and Wrentham) and two hospitals where students can
competitions.

apply skills on patient care and recreational activities. The Spring Season had two teams play in the State Tour-
ti The Welding/Metal Trades Program has received National narnent, as Baseball and Softball both finished in the top of their

et Certification from the American Welding Society,     
division. Track& Field,had some great performances by the team

R
and individuals.

re The Plumbing and Electrical Programs allow students to
dis;  acquire technical skills while accruing state- mandated hours in

Intramurals continues to grow with Floor Hockey,

ea°-, both practical and theory applications. Once completed, these Weighlifting, Basketball and Golf.

st4 students will be prepared to take the state journeyman examina-
tca tion in their respective trade areas.

l The Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning program
provides students with proper instruction relative to the rrecov-
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Student Activities: HISTORICAL COMMISSION

The Vocational Industrial Clubs ofAmerica( VICA) is of
We had a few donations given our commission and pet.continued interest to students with great success at the local,      

haps the most interesting was a 1909 post card addressed to
state and national competitions. In the area of fundraising, VICA man living in town, calling it` Bingville". We had never heave
once again sponsored numerous events, including a Breakfast Norfolk referred to as` Bingville" before.
with Santa and Breakfast with the Easter Bunny.

Thanks to Arthur Keenan and Stan Collins for their dmThe Distributive Education Clubs of American attended
tions to our display at the Library honoring the veterans, wethe North Atlantic Regional Conference. At this conference stu-      
received many favorable comments on it. By displaying picturesdents had an opportunity to meet other students from the North
of our old town center and hall at Olde Tyme Day we gained tilt'east and participate in various seminars and workshops.      
interest of people willing to join our commission. We certain!)
welcome anyone wishing to learn more about our town to attend'

The National Honor Society sponsors and promotes many
our meetings on the third Tuesday of each month; with the ex..

of the school' s community service activities, both on and off
ception of July and August when we do not meet.

campus. This group coordinated and hosted National Student
Leadership Week events, as well as the school-wide Honors Night

We voted a new board with Mary Power and Thelmaceremonies in June.     
Ravinski as Co-chairpersons and Loretta (Lori) McClellan
secretary. Marcia Johnston remains as our treasurer.Summary:

After many years as a board member Emily JacqueAs we continue to provide for the educational needs of
stepped down to be an associate member. We owe much to he

our students, we wish to thank the District residents for their
input, She reached an age of ninety this year and has been aisupport and cooperation. We intend to maintain in the future the
member since the commission was formed in 1970.

high educational standard that has earned Tri- County that sup-
port in the past.

We are anxiously waiting to be able to move into the no
town hall in 1998. Hopefully, our treasures can be kept in onoRespectfully submitted,     
place, so that researching will be less of a problem in the future.'

Alan Lovely, Chairman
Respectfully submitted,Ronald Janosko, Norfolk

Thelma Ravinski

Mary Power
Lori McClellan

Marcia Johnston

Betsy Pyne
Suzanne Bums

Toni Langlais
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DIRECTOR OF LIBRARIES During 1997 the library began planning for an major addi-
tion/renovation project. The Massachusetts Board of Lihrary

Commissioners awarded a planning grant to Norfolk fon+'lit par-
Ther Norfolk Public Library continues to be a center of pose performing a building needs analysis and building program.

o s community activity. Over 108, 000 books and other materials were This was accomplished through the effort and hard work of the
are borrowed during the year by the 5,623 Norfolk residents who Library Building Study Committee and the consulting firm, Li-

are registered as library patrons. The annual circulation reflects braryManagement Associates.

a net decrease of 6% over 1996 due to the reduction in hoursofg

na operation. Throughout 1997 the Friends of the Library planned many
wc activities. Officers are: Mary Jo Gothorpe, President; Anne
its 2,700 new books were added to the collection, in addition Czarnowski, Vice-President; Maureen Buck, Secretary; and Mary
tilt to 473 video tapes, audio books, compact disks and CD-ROM' s.      Burger, Treasurer. The Friends held a hugely successful mem
III) The library' s total holdings at year-end was 44,433 items.    bership campaign... called FRESH( Friends Rejuvenation Effort
ni Strive Higher)...over 500 library patrons joined the organiza-

et During 1997 the library continued to expand access to elec- tion, As part of their renewal effort, the Friends sponsored a se-
Ironic information through the generosity of several donations.      ries of" Meet- the-Author" nights. In September they held a two-
NOVA and the Friends of the Library donated a Pentium corn- day book sale extravaganza" under the big top". Proceeds from

m puter with CD-ROM tower and software especially for preschool these activities were used to start up a new best-seller lease pro-
age children.      gram that significantly shortens the amount of time patrons must

wait for popular books. Friends continued to sumtret the sum-
During the late spring and summer, the library' s nine pub-      mer reading program and to provide passes to the New England

les'  lic computers were networked in order to bring highspeed Internet Aquarium, Boston Museum of Fine Arts, & the Kennedy Li-
he availability to all workstations. This was made possible through brary Museum. The Friends continue to sponsor" Art carr Fvery-
n a,  the generous donation of a" friend" for the purchase of the nes-      one".-- a rotating collection of prints that patrons may bor.-ow.

essary hardware; the efforts of Jack McFeeley from the Norfolk They also pledged funds toward the building expansion program.
Cable Commission who facilitated the installation of the I-loop;

elk and the help of Jim Lafave, Director ofTechnology for the Nor-     The two elementary school libraries, H. Olive Day and
at folk School District. Staff Librarian, John Spinney coordinatedFreeman-Centennial, continue to be hubs of activity. Funding
ite this project and recruited volunteers to cable the building.    has been restored to H. Olive Day, so that a full-time librarian is

now available to teach library classes and assist teachers. At each
Patrons can log on to the Library' s Homepage from the school library, classes now meet once each week for instruction,

convenience of their homes or offices by typing the followingreference, research, and book selection. Last year students and 1
URL: http:// www.ultranet.com/—npl/. Patrons can read about teachers borrowed 44,381 items from the school libraries. 1, 915
services and programs that the library offers, send e- mail to li-      new books and a- v materials were added to the collections, in-
brary staff, and also reserve books via the ABLE network from eluding books from the" Adopt-a-Book" program and' I'PA`Book
their homes. The Homework Center, now in its fourth year of Fair" donations.

operation, continues to used by students of all ages. It is staffed 1

by children' s librarians and several dedicated volunteers.    Highest commendations are in order to the Board ofTrust- fi f r
ees, Friends of the Library and the entire library staff and volun-

Once again, children' s librarian Sarina Blohm was a" hit"      teers for their commitment and support. These dedicated people
with Norfolk' s preschoolers. A variety of programs was held continue to work tirelessly to make the library a vital and inte- 
each week for children between the ages of two and five. In to- gral part of the Town of Norfolk. 

tk

tal, 151 sessions of pre-school programs were held with atten-
dance for the year of 2,466! During the summer, nearly 400 el- Respectfully submitted,
ementary school children participated in the library' s reading
club" CELEBRATE! READ r.23 different programs were held Robin A. Glasser,

with atotal attendance of 1, 095 children. In addition, Mrs. BlohmDirector of Libraries
presided over the ever-popular" Twilight Tales" for preschoolers.

The Library received a third-year grant from the Children' s
Trust Fund to provide three nine-week sessions of Mom-Tot Lap
Time. This is an interactive program for two year old children

that provides early socialization and language skills, as well as
an early introduction to the library.
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LIBRARY TRUSTEES

The Norfolk Public Library has continued to enlarge its
role as our community' s center of information. Just eight years

ago, the public library' s collection was limited by how many
items could be fit into the library building at 40,000. With the
advent of the ABLE system, borrowers at both the public library
and the two school libraries now have access to millions of items.

With the library' s aggressive installation of Internet service for
patrons, users of the public library now have access to billions
of items of information. The change of scale, from 40,000 to
billions is staggering, and this has all been done in seven years.

It is certain that further advances in information technol-
ogy will require further changes in the ways that the public li-

brary serves Norfolk. Our Director, Robin Glasser, is a recog-
nized authority on library technology and will ensure that the
Norfolk's three libraries stay on the cutting edge of available
technology.

Inevitably, the significant changes in the public library cre-
ated by information technology have changed the building it-
self. What was once our quiet, warm reference and reading area
is now a bustling space filled with a dozen computers and re-
lated equipment. The former card catalog is now an equally busy
center for searches of the electronic collection, A space utiliza-
tion study conducted in the past year by consultants concluded
what many will find obvious: that the public library must ex-
pand if it is to serve our town in the future. In the coming year
the Trustees will make that project our top priority.

Expansion of the public library brings to the fore the place
of the library in our( slowly) emerging town center. The Trust-
ees see the public library as a vital link( along with the new town
offices and our magnificent Town Hill) and the public compo-
nents of what will eventually be a public/private partnership:
Norfolk' s own, long- delayed version of a traditional New En-
gland Town Center. The Trustees look forward to the day when
this becomes a reality.

A library is people more than buildings or books or com-
puters and we are fortunate to have a caring and highly produc-
tive staff, terrific volunteers and our extraordinary Friends of the
Norfolk Public Library. Together, they exemplify the very best
in our community and we are ever grateful for their support.

Respectfully submitted,

Board of Library Trustees:
Frances M. Holman, Chair
Harvey Boulay, Clerk
Kenneth Nelson, Member
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PLANNING BOARD The Board is processing submissions for three Definitive
subdivisions with a total of 69 lots ( Christina Estates off

The Planning Board has now begun, with other Boards
Pondview Road and Massachusetts Avenue containing 57 lots;
Briarwood Estates off Grove Street containing 5 lot:; Cr as l3rcok

and Commissions in Town, to investigate how to initiate and
Pond Estates off Medway Street containing 7 lots). '?"ts Board

implement a growth management program. The Town continues also received three Preliminary Subdivisions and ss processing
to see expansion of single family house development that could

or did grant approval allowing two to proceed for a Definitive
critically impact its capacity to meet the needs of its residents submission, One Preliminary Subdivision submission, Sandy
for education, municipal services and infrastructure. The Board

Knoll Estates located off Miller Street, did not comply with the
will explore, in 1998, growth management practices and pro- Norfolk' s Rules and Regulations providing only a single access
grams with other Town leaders towards long range solutions that road in Norfolk for 33 houses( mostly in Franklin) and was de
continued residential growth will require.      nied. The Board did endorse 18 non- subdivision plans for 42

house lots on public ways, is finalizing or did approve two Site
The Board continued its practice of encouraging potential Plans for commercial development ( Joseph Lorusso - 176

development applicants to preview their projects at an informal Dedham Street) and held three shade tree/ scenic road hearings.
pre-submission review" basis to establish project parameters

that will save time. This practice assisted 11 projects this year The Planning Board has statutory responsibility for town
by identifying critical concept

problems prior to a formal sub planning administration of the Subdivision Control Las if, the Site
mittal and thus streamlining their eventual approval.  Plan Approval and Special Permit granting authority for the town

of Norfolk. The Board operates under the authority of MOL,
Zoning initiatives were drafted in concert with the Zoning Chapter 41, section 81 and Chapter 40A section 9. The Board' s

Bylaw Study committee and gained approval at the fall town Rules and Regulations for the Subdivision of Leal and Site Plan
meeting. In summary these changes

consolidated and coordi-      Approval provides comprehensive guidance to 1: a ties wishing
Hated several conflicting areas in various sections of the bylaws to divide tracts of land, build roadways, establish residential sub-
dealing with buffers between districts and/or uses, amended

the divisions or,develop business or commercial propert. w,,. Listed
recent zoning relating to Wireless Communication uses, added below are the specific actions taken by the Planning Board in i

two new bylaws dealing with" clear cutting" of trees during new 1997.  r
construction near public ways and included a provision for af-
fordable housing in Norfolk.   We wish to thank all these other Town Boards, Commit- 4

tees, Commissions and Departments for their invaluable written
In 1997 the Highway Department and the Board jointly comments that shape our Board' s decisions and approvals. Spe-    G

prepared an inventory of unaccepted town roads that, if finally cial thanks is extended to Lois Boucher, our Planning Adminis-
accepted, would increase the state' s reimbursement for their trator. Lois provides continuity, enthusiasm and energy which is
maintenance. This effort involved over six months of researchvalued by the individual Board members, consultants and appli-
and engineering documentation. It did, however, result in the cants alike. The Regional Planning Services Office offers the
Town approval of over 4 miles of existing but unaccepted roads Board professional planning and mapping support which has been
that will enable the Town to receive increased state funding forinvaluable in this year' s planning and decisions process.
its roadway maintenance and improvement programs. I

We regret that Elizabeth Maitland chose not to run for a t

The Planning Board hosted its fourth annual
informational second term but are ecstatic that Elizabeth agreed to support the

forum on October 29th to provide town officials an opportunity Board as an Associate Member through 1997. We are very sorry
to present the status of major activities occurring within theirto report that a former Board Member and active member of the       ' w

respective boards, committees and commissions. Planning Board Open Space Committee, Austen Smithery passed away in April
Chairman Arthur Spruch acted as moderator for presentationsAusten was a leader on the Board. His contributions will live on
by the School Committee on the H. Olive Day School addition,      as the completed Open Space Plan for Norfolk is implemented w

the Recreation Commission on the new ball fields facility on and as his formulation of Board policy and procedures are uti-
Pond Street, the Council on Aging on the status of a facility,      lined. The current Board Members are Arthur Spruch, Chair-
the Board of Selectmen on the new Town Hall, the Conservation man; Steven McClain, Vice Chairman; Charles Clahasey, Clerk;
Commission on an open space opportunity off Marshall Street,      Andrea Langhauser, Robert Nicodemus and Associate Member
the Regional Planning Services Office( RPSO) and the Planning Elizabeth Maitland.

Board on zoning, planning and growth management. The pre-
sentation of the proposed new elementary school addition by Respectfully submitted,

the School Committee and the topic of growth management pre-
sented by the Planning Board and RPSO were actively

discussed Norfolk Planning Board

by the citizenry in attendance.
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ACTIVITY OF THE PLANNING BOARD- 1997

Type of Activity No. of Plans No. of Loh

Definitive Subdivision Plans Submitted in 1997 3

Pending/under review 3 6y

Modified Definitive Plans 1

Preliminary Subdivision Plans Submitted in 1997 3

Approved in 1997 1 I

Disapproved in 1997 1

Pending/under review 1

Non-Subdivision Plans Endorsed( 81- P)     18 42

Lots Released in Subdivisions 0

Special Permit Applications Submitted 1

Intoccia Development- Open Space

Preservation Subdivision

Site Plans Submitted in 1997 2

Approved in 1997 2

Pending/under review 1

Pre- submission sessions held 11

Shade/Tree Scenic Roads Act Hearings Conducted 3
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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS ZONING BYLAW

STUDY COMMITTEE

oh The Zoning Board ofAppeals consists of 5 Full Members
with 5 year staggered terms, and 2 Associate Members with 1 The Zoning Bylaw Study Committee was appointed in June
year terms, The Board' s quasi- judicial authority is both conferred of 1997 to draft and review zoning articles for the Fall 1997
and limited by State statute and the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws.      Town Meeting.

0
The Board has very little discretion in granting Special Permits
and Variances, as decisions must be rendered by consideration The Committee has seven members:: onsisting of appointed

of the criteria for granting in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter representatives by the Planning Board, Board of Selectmen( 2),
40A, as amended, and the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws. In addition Board of Health, Zoning Board ofAppeals, Conservation Com-

It to being the permit granting authority
for Special Permits and mission and the Building Commissioner and Town Counsel( ex

S Variances, the Board has the authority to hear Appeals of the officio/non-voting). The Committee' s primary responsibilities

Building Inspector' s decisions, 
Addendums, Comprehensive have been to review and amend existing bylaws and proposed

Permits, and Repetitive Petitions. The Board of Appeals does zoning articles and to draft new bylaws.
42 not draft zoning bylaws nor do they enforce them.

In 1997 the Zoning Bylaw Study Committee sponsored

During the 1997 calendar year, the Board received 11 ap-      fifteen ( 15) zoning articles which included the creation of an
plications for hearings. The Board rendered 6 Special Permit affordable housing provision for residential districts and pro-
decisions, which included 2 residential additions, 1 family apart-      hibiting same in business and commercial districts, reorganiza-
ment, 2 business use, and I off-premise sign

special permits.      tion of the requirements for landscape buffers between Corn-
The Board also heard and rendered 2 Variance extensions for a mercial-Residential properties in all districts, creation of a tree
residential hit. The Board is seeing more applications for water-      preservation zone at frontage of residential lots, changes to the
shed and wetland/floodplain special permits as

development parking requirements for sporting events and amendments to the
encroaches more and more on Norfolk' s water recharge resources.      wiring communication bylaw enacted at the 1996 Fall Town

Meeting and 1997 Annual Town Meeting.
In addition to their jurisdictional duties involving hearing

and rendering decisions in an expeditious and
impartial manner,     During 1997 the Committee reviewed new zoning bylaws

the Board Members also serve as communication
liaisons to other submitted from other Boards and Commissions for technical

Town Boards, Departments, Committees, and
Commissions.      conformity, clarity, and enforceability. This zoning review work

Members also attend zoning seminars and research
court deci-      included issues of residential lot geometry, adoption of a new

sions pertaining to current zoning issues as well as keeping map for the Zone II of the Gold Street well and watershed pro-
abreast of any revisions to the zoning bylaws and M.G.L. Chap-      tection districts.

ter 40A. Board members also attend court proceedings as wit-
nesses on behalf of the Town. Meetings and hearings are gener-  Respectfully submitted,

ally conducted on the second Wednesday of the month with spe-
cial sessions scheduled as needed. All meetings are duly posted Robert E. Nicodemus, Chairman

at the Town Hall at least 48 hours in advance and
conducted in Board of Selectmen representative);

accordance with the Board' s Rules and Regulations and with Brian Wolfe, Vice Chairman

the Open Meeting Law.      
Zoning Board of Appeals representative);

Sarah P. Dewey, Clerk

We wish to express our sincere appreciation to all of the Conservation Commission representative);

is Town Boards and Departments for their cooperation
and input Gerald B. Hughes, Building Commissioner;

to our many hearings, especially the Planning
Board and the Steven G. McClain

Conservation Commission. Special thanks from the entire Board Planning Board representative);

are extended to Paul D. Maggioni, our Town Counsel, for his Glendon G. Coulter

guidance and support.
Board of Selectmen representative);

Lois L. Boucher

Respectfully Submitted, 
Board of Health representative);

Paul D. Maggioni( Town Counsel

Bruce A. Simpson, Chairman
ex officio and non-voting member).
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PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

PERMANENT BUILDING RECREATION DEPARTMENT  ~'
COMMITTEE

The Norfolk Recreation Department is managed by fiv
The Permanent Building Committee( PBC) had a busy year elected commissioners. The daily management is performed bl

moving forward with the new Town Hall and Police Station the Director of Recreation and the Assistant Director.
project, initiating the new recreation fields and center project,
developing a proposal for an addition to the H. Olive Day School.     The Recreation Department is self-supporting, by use oft

revolving fund. Fees are collected to participate in our programs
Throughout the year, the PBC worked closely with Mello which in turn pay our instructors, buy supplies, offer some free'

Construction, Inc., Taunton, Massachusetts, and Chris Riddle of programs and community services.

Kuhn-Riddle, the project architects, to complete the new 21, 000
square feet Town Hall and Police Station. Throughout the early The Recreation Department offered over 150 program
part of the year, the PBC continued to work in a consortium which close to 2,000 people participated in, from toddlers t
mode with the Town Hall/ Police Station Steering Committee and adults. As a community service concerts were held on the Town
the Board of Selectmen, and with Chris Riddle of Kuhn- Riddle,      Hill. The department continued its highly successful sumroef'
the project architects, to develop the construction documents for program at the Freeman Centennial School. The department had
the August bid process for the construction of the new 21, 000 its personnel there mornings and afternoons offering a variety of

activities for the 50- 75 children who participated daily in thesquare feet Town Hall and Police Station. Though missing the
program. The department was pleased to offer this as a free pro.August completion deadline, by year' s end, construction on the

3. 6 million project was well advanced for a spring 1998 comple-      gram.

tion.

As usual its been a very busy year for the department. The
The PBC worked closely with Santiago A. Rozas of Todd Town finally received the$ 960,000 from the state that has beet

allocated for the development of the Pond St. complex. The Per.Lee- Clark-Rozas Associates, Boston to develop a design pro-
posal for an addition to the H. Olive Day School. The proposal manent Building Committee has been assigned the responsibil,'
for an eight-classroom addition was approved at the Special Town ity of overseeing the development of the project. The permit pro-
Meeting

ro.

Meeting in November, 1997.   cess has just began with the Recreation Department working with
PBC and all of the necessary boards to option the needed per-

During the year, the PBC selected Ben Gary of Moriece&      mits.

Gary, Charlestown, Massachusetts, as the landscape architects
for the new Recreation Fields. The PBC worked closely with the This year the department as always is looking to expand

i architects to develop construction documents for an expected on its current programs and hopefully begin construction on the
construction start on the project by early summer, 1998.      Pond St. Recreation Complex the town so desperately needs.

Respectfully Submitted, Respectfully submitted,

Robert P Lowndes, Chair Geno Orsogna, Chair i

Ernest Alix( Resigned)  Barbara Gillis, Sec.
Winsor F. Bowden Kurt Czarnowski
Lawrence.Cheevers Tom Terpstra

David Jenner Debbie DeBello
Paul R. DiChiara
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PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING As always, the agency also participated in a variety of trans-

COUNCIL (MAPC)
portation related projects. One of the major efforts this year in-

volved working on the Transportation Summit meeting that was
titheldin Springfield. This effort was organized to support the re-

b1 The Metropolitan Area Planning Council( MAPC) is the authorization of ISTEA and help assure that federal traitspt rt.
regional planning agency representing 101 cities and towns in tion funding for New England is not diminished. MAPC cue I-
the metropolitan Boston area. Created by an act of the Legisla-      pleted a three-year Pavement Management system proje,' t th; rt

1"  lure in 1963, it serves as a forum for state and local officials and involved the inspection of all federal- aid eligible roadways

r provides technical planning assistance and service delivery to throughout the entire MAPC region. A report on the over 3, 000

a its member communities. MAPC works with cities and town miles of road that were inspected was submitted to the Massa-

through eight subregional organizations whose members are chusetts Highway Department.

appointed by chief elected officials and planning boards. The
a`  Council provides the subregions with financial, planning and A new project that was organized last year was the Metro-
4 administrative support, and offers technical aid on selected spe-      politan Greenspace Initiative. Over 65 environmental and his-

a cial projects. MAPC is a designated Economic Development toric preservation organizations have indicated their interest in
gel District of the federal Economic Development Administration participating in this effort that MAPC is currently staffing. As
ad and as one of 14 members of the Metropolitan Planning Organi-      part of this project the agency has produced a map that illus-
of zation( MPO), has oversight responsibility for the region' s fed-      trates the development growth in the greater Boston area from
he erally funded transportation program.   1970 to 1991. The accompanying data documents the res,tilts of
a urban sprawl that has occurred showing a 15% growth in land

MAPC completed another successful year of working with development with only a 5% growth in population. M APC staff

its communities, state agencies, various non-profit groups, uni-      has also been working with graduate students at the Harvard
e versifies, businesses, special interest coalitions, state and fed-      Graduate School of Design on a report outlining the potential

eral legislators, and other regional planning agencies. The agency for open space protection as the region continues to grow. Dur-
F held at least 15 regularly scheduled meetings each month, eight ing the past year the agency increased its associatim, with the
l'   of which were in the different subregions. These meetings plus Boston Harbor Islands National Recreation Area planning prt, ject
a special workshops, seminars, focus groups, and conferences with the expectation that the agency will become one of the
111'  linked together the hundreds of issues and individuals who are groups officially involved in the establishment of this new fed-
r;  part of the Boston area' s and the nation' s planning scene. It was eral/ state facility.

this network that provided the energy, vision and focus for
MAPC' s activities in the region.       MAPC produced a number of publications during 1997.

d This past year the agency published its first yearly calendar with 1
1e After years of concern about the role of local governments each month displaying maps containing different dctnographic

in state transportation planning and funding decisions, 1997 saw data of interest to communities in the region and their residents.

a landmark achievement in the formation of a new Boston area The Data Center also published a report, Top Employers, which j
MPO. The reorganization was the outcome of federally supported listed by community the number of employees per establish-    
mediation, with MAPC serving as a key negotiator for a strop-      meat in the region. Other recent projects include a Title 5 com-   

1

ger state/ local partnership. MPO voting members now
include pliance computer software application for Ashland and

seven cities and towns, along with seven state and regional agen-      Hopkinton, economic forecasting for several agencies, school

cies, including MAPC. The municipal and regional
members of enrollment forecasts for several communities, and updates to the ti

the MPO are responsible for programming about $ 40 million community profile series. The Data Center, working with Harvard g

per year in local road and bridge projects, about one- third of the University and the University of Massachusetts Boston, also
total funds available for the metropolitan region. MAPC works completed a collaborative project known as The Massachusetts

with communities to develop a list of local projects to be pro-      Electronic Atlas. This atlas provides access via the Internet to

grammed for funding.    
information on the 351 cities and towns in the state. All the in- 
formation can be downloaded.

In September, the first Transportation Improvement Pro-
gram was adopted by the new MPO. The TIP also included$ 10 The GIS Lab completed numerous projects for both indi-
million for" Enhancement projects", and$ 3 million for Trans-      vidual communities and for the region as a whole. Staff worked
portation Demand Management( T    ) projects.DM 7o' ects. As a regional with Watertown on developing a tree inventory for the commit-

planning agency MAPC' s role is in both the
Enhancement and nity. They also completed a wireless communication siting study

a" TDM programs is to solicit proposals and prescreen them for for one of the subregions, an open space update for another, and

funding eligibility.
a comprehensive regional zoning report for yet another. GIS staff
conducted a number of workshops on parcel data automation

acted as an information resource for municipalities inter i

77ested
in beginning or expanding their GIS programs.



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

In addition to playing a major role on a number of regional
boards and commissions, the staff also applied for and received

grants to investigate shared services in one of the subregions

and also to help communities deal with the issue of utility de-
regulation. MAPC continued to participate with the South

Weymouth Naval Air Station reuse planning project. One MAPC
staff member was contracted to work part time for the Town of

Rockland on planning issues related to the base closure and re-
use.

In 1997,the agency also completed a project that focuses
on opportunities for bolstering the shoreline seafood processing
and distribution industries in the Commonwealth, including an
analysis of the importance of the industry to affected coastal
communities in Massachusetts.

MAPC updated its Overall Economic Development Pro-

gram for 1997, analyzing the regional economy and economic
development needs, and revising the list of projects eligible for
federal funds through the Economic Development Administra-

tion( EDA). The agency administered a Community Adjustment
Planning Grant provided by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development to examine community responses to
defense industry downsizing and evaluate defense dependencies
ofsmall and mid-sized municipalities. The project included sev-

eral focus groups and a regional forum. A final report on strate-

gies to adjust and diversify local economies in response to re-
duced defense spending will be completed in early 1998.

Respectfully submitted,

David Soule, Director
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BOARD OF HEALTH
Wehadan unusual

RESOURCES

occurrence at the Board of Health,

somebody resigned.After 13 years of dedicated service Dr.Albert
G. Andersen tendered his resignation. Al was responsible for

The single biggest item ofbusiness at our meetings during introducing many regulations to protect the public health of the
1997 was consideration of

requests for variances from Title 5 Norfolk residents. We thank Al for his dedication, interes ani
and local sanitary regulations.

A total of 14 variance hearings hard work for the citizens of Norfolk and he is sorely missed.
were conducted, usually as the result of failed septic systems The Board was very fortunate in having Cheryl Dunnington ap-
that could not be rebuilt in compliance with the current sanitary pointed by the Selectmen and the Board of Health members to
codes because of lot size, ledge, or high ground water issues. In replace Al until the May, 1998 election.

each case the Board and its engineer worked with the applicant' s
engineer to develop a plan that, while not strictly in compliance, Permits and Licenses issued by the Board of Health in
was environmentally acceptable. 1997:

During 1997 the Board revised its own septic regulations Percolation Testing
64

to make them more compatible
with Title 5. The Board also re-      Septic System Permits:

vised its massage regulations and issued the first masseuse li-     Commercial
l

51
cense in Norfolk. Residential

12

Component2
Replacement

The Board continued in its efforts to reduce
contamina- rm 1. 0 Applications( Review for Home Improvement)   110

lion of ground water and of the Stop River from leaking sewage Site-plan Review Plans
2

i2
from DOC facilities and to ensure potable

water to the residents Well.Permits
3

living near the sewer line. The Board joined the Selectmen in Sub- Division Review

142
support of plans to abandon the old sewer line in favor of a force Variance Hearings( Title 5& local)   

25

main along Main Street, Highland Lake Drive and Campbell good Establishment Permits
d0

Street. By year' s end, plans for the new sewer line had been Milk and Cream Licenses

developed with construction to start in the Spring. The Board Tobacco Product Permits

also notified the Water Commissioners and DOC that it endorsed Refuse Hauler Permits
4

the expenditure of state funds to cover the cost ofsupplying town Septic System Installer' s Permits
48

water to all the residents of the Highland Lake area, not just Septic Removal Permits
19

those whose wells tested positive for coliform bacteria during General Permits
4

1996.      Masseuse Permits
1

Voters at annual Town Meeting approved a state-
funded Respectfully submitted,

septic management program. Grant money was used to purchase
1 a computer and software

that will allow the Board to track septic Board of Health

problems and prioritize$ 200,000 in loans for septic system up-
grades.

f Reconstruction of the septic system at the Pine Knoll hous-
e ing complex at Marshall and Pond Streets occupied the Board
iand its engineer during much of 1997. An improperly installed

system had failed, and the design of a new system that complied
with Title 5 and BOH regulations dragged on during the Spring
and Summer while leachate break-outs created a major public
health nuisance. Acceptable plans were finally developed and
approved and the contract to install a new system was awarded
in the Fall,
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HUMAN RESOURCES

COUNCIL ON AGING

The Council on Aging is made up of 11 members appointed relief program, fuel assistance, transportation, congregate mead:
by the Board of Selectmen and an undesignated number of asso-      home delivered meals, community education, legal assistana
elates, who are appointed by the Council on Aging. The Council tax assistance, newsletter, recreation and social events, to non
is responsible for identifying the needs of approximately 800 seniors fuel assistance and general information and a consa,
Norfolk Citizens who are 60 years and over and to give informa-      tium program on spiritual well-being was held in Norwood,
tion, to take action, or to refer the needs to the appropriate agen-
cies,    The Council on Aging would like to thank all of the Vol

unteers who provided 4, 026 hours of transportation, 275 hon
The Council employs an Executive Director who works for the home delivered meals, 175 hours for shopping assistatxt

from an office in Town Hall three mornings a week and 2 days and another 1, 155 of volunteer hours for reassurance calhnl'
from the Federated Church Senior Center.     clinic assistance, Board members, Friends of the Council oa

Aging, Friendly visitor for a total of 6,631 hours.
This year we received several grants, a Formula grant from

the Executive Office of Elder Affairs for extra hours and mile-    The Council on Aging would like to acknowledge Harvey
age for our two Outreach Workers, Christine Shaw and Virginia.      Boulay and Robert Nicodemus for help in the preparation of out
Homer, sending delegates to the MCOA convention and the pur-      Grant, the Board of Health and Walpole Visiting Nurses for Spon:
chase of a television. A consortium grant of informational lee-      soring health clinics, the Highway Department, Fire & Police'
tures at Caritas Southwood Hospital on legal issues, financial Departments, Federated Church Missions, the Students at K?
planning, caring for elders at home& surviving caretaking. An-      North Jr. High & High School, HESSCO ( Health and Social
other consortium grant for a Home Maintenance Resource Co-      Services Consortium, Inc.), Executive Office of Elder Affairs
ordinator to assist Elderly with home maintenance at a reduced and all who helped through the year.

cost, We applied to the Department of Housing& Community
Development Block Program for a Senior Center but it was not The Council on Aging meets on the third Monday of each
funded. Plans are to try again next year month at the Norfolk Library at 9: 30 a.m. All are welcome and

invited to attend.

Programs and services provided by the Council on Aging
are: General information, referral to other agencies, outreach Respectfully submitted,
program, caregiver support, food shopping assistance, health
screenings, fitness programs, intergenerational programs, tax Council on Aging
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HUMAN RESOURCES

WALPOLE AREA VISITING NURSE
Communicable Disease: Prevention and control of corn-

ASSOCIATION, INC.     
municable disease through casefinding and education and

provision of follow up care consistent with public health
practice.

1 The Walpole Area VNA experienced little growth in over-     

public Health: Promotion of good health awarent°ss o'
t all visits during the calendar year 1997. Approximately 95, 000

the prevention:of serious illness. Periodic cholesterol, hy
n visits will be made by year end. pertension and diabetes screenings are held at the clinics
k'  providesignificantand in the community. The annual flu clinics were held inThe Balanced Budget Act of 1997 will

challenges to the resourcefulness and adaptability of the staff in October and November.The pneumonia vaccine was also

gl 1998. A shift to an
Interim Payment System will impact patient offered this year.

III care. Under this plan, the agency will be paid a capitated rate per
The town of Norfolk Public Health statistics for 1997 area'  episode based on costs in 1993. Since our costs were very low in

it that year and they are the basis of 75% of our interim rate, we as follows:

Di will likely be paid much less than other agencies who had high

Visitscostsand high utilization in the base year. It will be very diffi-      Service

cult to continue" business as usual" as we focus on appropriate

Home Visits/ Health Maintenance
57

qcare with fewer visits. The agency will be proactive in lobbying
ur the federal legislators to change the methodology for achieving Maternal/Child Health Visits

13

123
n•.  Medicare savings.

Office Visits

e

1
Communicable Disease Follow-Up

p The agency has been making serious efforts to reduce costs Senior Citizen Clinics

1241
122

181.   in anticipation of the change in reimbursement. In July, we dis-      Flu Vaccine
12

in continued walk in office hours. We notified all existing
office Pneumonia Vaccine

patients and gave them schedules of area clinics. This switch

Respectfully submitted,
has resulted in an increase in patients seen at clinics.

ch

nd The Walpole Area VNA is accredited by the Community
Walpole Area VNA

Health Accreditation Program and is a Medicare and Medicaid
Certified Agency.

The Walpole Area VNA continues to provide programs in
4 health promotion to all age groups in addition to traditional home

health services. The four major components of the Health Pro-
motion Program are:

Health Maintenance for the Elderly: Promotion of good
health and maximum functioning for allresidents over 60
years of age. Elderly residents who are homebound and
have multiple chronic illnesses or conditions but do not j

qualify for skilled care in the Home health Program are i.
seen on a periodic basis by a nurse at home. The goal of
the program is to assess changes in physical condition,
prevent complications and prevent unnecessary hospital-
izations. Ambulatory residents are seen for physical as-
sessment and health counseling at the senior citizen clin-
ics held at the Federated Church on the Third Wednesday
of every month.

Maternal/Child Health: Promotion of the health and sta-
bility of the family during the periods of reproductive
maturation, pregnancy, childbirth, the postpartum periods
and the child rearing years. Services are provided by a
maternal/ child health nurse specialist and a lactation con-
sultant through home visits.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

MAY COUNSELING CENTER, INC, SELF HELP INCORPORATED

May Counseling Center( formerly Cutler Center) and its
During the program year ending September 30, 1997, Selfparent organization, The May Institute, Inc., are nonprofit be-      

Help, Inc., received a total funding of approximately$ 10,5W',havioral/ mental health healthcare agencies that provide a con-      

and provided direct services to 16, 251 limited income house•'tinuum of behavioral education, rehabilitation and mental health holds in the area.
programs to children, adolescents and adults who experience

psychiatric disorders and developmental disabilities. May Coun-     
In the town ofNORFOLK, SHI provided services totalin1''seling Center provides a full range of empirically validated mental      $ 53, 099 to 48 households during program year 1997.health, substance abuse, vocational rehabilitation and education

services to children, adolescents and adults with a staff of fully The total funding of$ 10,525,610 does not tell the real value'licensed social workers, psychologists, psychiatrist and clinical

of human services delivered to the area as a whole. Self Help'snurse specialists. May Counseling Center has been providing funding enabled us to mobilize an additional$ 1, 189,088 of other,quality outpatient mental health services to the Neponset Valley
community resources such as, volunteers, donations of space!community( under the name of Cutler Center) for over 38 years
and private donations in the form of goods and services. There.;and has developed a prominent reputation as a community re-      

fore, the gross value of Self Help, Inc., during the past program;source through several linkages which have been created to pro-      year was$ 11, 714,698.
vide consultation to community agencies, town advisory boards,
local United Way agencies, primary care physicians, schools and
courts. Fostering outreach into the community continues to be a

In addition, Self Help currently employs 255 individuals,
many of whom are of limited income, minorities, and who re•core component of May Counseling Center' s overall philoso-      side in our service area.

phy and care.

We feel that October 1, 1996 through September 30, 19911Specialty programs and services of May Counseling Cen
was a successful program year for us because we were able toter include:      

assist as many limited income individuals and/or families as we 4
did, in spite of the challenges with which we were faced, such asIntake& Emergency Services with 24-hour live
the elimination and/or down- sizing of programs and the decreaseson-call coverage

in funding we experienced.Psychiatric Services
Family& Children' s Services
Adult Services We thank all the volunteers, the Boards of Selectmen and
Continuing Care their representatives to our Board of Directors, representatives

of the limited income sector, and representatives of the privateNeuropsychological Services
sector, for helping to make Fiscal Year 1997 a success.Individual& Group Counseling Services

Women' s Integrated Services Endeavor( WISE)
Gym Program Respectfully submitted,
Free Community Workshops
Anxiety Disorders and Eating Disorders Program Norma Wang

Administrative Assistant

HIRE Enterprises, a program of May Counseling Center,
provides vocational rehabilitation to adults with developmental,
psychiatric and physical disabilities in the South Norfolk County
area. Programs offered at HIRE include diagnostic evaluations;
skills training; work adjustment training and counseling; shel-
tered employment; transitional employment; job placement.

May Counseling Cem.:e wishes to thank the citizens and
town officials of Norfolk for their continued financial assistance.
Your funding helps us to meet the needs of those residents who
would otherwise not be able to receive the treatment and sup-
port they need to remain or return to productive lives.

Respectfully submitted,

May Counseling Center
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HUMAN RESOURCES

NORFOLK COUNTY MOSQUITO CONTROL PROJECT
E

eli'

hfi The operational Project Program integrates all proven tech-     Adultiiciding: The suppression of flying adult mosquitoes
4'   nologies into a system of mosquito control that is rational, safe,      becomes necessary when they are numerous, annoying, or threat-

effective and economically feasible. All mosquito eggs need stag-      ening to residents. All fogging is done in response to adult sur-

pant water to hatch and to sustain larval growth.       veillance which includes logging of citizen complaints.

li

Source Reduction Work: Our primary efforts are con-  Adulticide fogging( 1/ 2oz./ acre) from trucks:

centrated on the drainage of shallow, standing, stagnant water,  Total gallons: 2.875 736 acres

a and the maintenance of existing flow systems which contribute
is to mosquito breeding sources.  Surveillance: In an effort to more fully implement an In-

tegrated Pest Management( IPM) approach, the Project has ex-

e, Drainage ditches hand cleaned:   4,765 feet panded data collection and surveillance. Surveys, inspections,

Brush obstructions cut:    2,010 feet and monitoring in support of our program include locating and
r'       •     Drainage reconstructed by wide-track backhoe:  mapping larval breeding areas. Locations of nuisance papula-

405 feet tions of adult mosquitoes are also identified through the suiveil-

Culverts cleaned: 46 culverts lance program.

s,

Larviciding: Treatment ofmosquito larvae during aquatic Total man hours in town:    347 hours

development is the next most effective control effort. The Project

I has begun to rely more on briquet applications, which provides
The Project received 66 calls from residents for iaforma-

1a more site specific, sustained type of control for the mosquito tion and assistance. For more information on the Project please

a 4 larvae.     access our Website at http://home.sprynet.com/ sprynet/tdescham

s G     •  Larvicide with briquets:      Total briquets: 215 0. 47

el acres

Larvicide with mistblower:  Total gallons: 41. 5 41. 5 Respectfully submitted,
acres

I` John J. Smith, Superintendent

i
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HUMAN RESOURCES

HOUSING AUTHORITY

The Norfolk Housing Authority continues in its search for
donated land in order to pursue its goal to provide more afford-
able housing for those people living or working in the Town of
Norfolk.

At present the Department of Housing and Community
Development is short of funds for the building of new housing,
so it is up to individual housing authorities to use their initiative.

We have at present 64 units of housing for the elderly and
there does not seem to be the crushing need for this type of age
group that there was 25 years ago when Hillcrest Village was
constructed.

Our greatest need is for more housing for the younger
people in town. Our first concern, if and when money becomes
available again, is to complete 4 more units at Pine Knoll. These
units were incorporated in our original plans but were cut out
due to budgetconstraints at that time.

Our waiting list for elderly is very short, so we encourage
anyone over 60 who is in need of a safe and clean apartment at a

rent they can afford to ask for an application. Although our list
for our 2 and 3- bedroom family units is extremely long, we do
not wish to discourage anyone from applying.

A call to 508- 528- 4800 for information or a request for an

application will be handled promptly.

Respectful) submitted,

Norfolk Housing Authority
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NATURAL RESOURCES

WATER DEPARTMENT CONSERVATION COMMISSION

WATER SERVICE INFORMATION The Conservation Commission consists of a seven-mem-

ber board appointed by the Board of Selectmen. The primary
1996 1997 responsibility of the Commission is to protect the Town' s wet-

Miles of water main in service 54.86 54.86 land resources, which include not only swamps, but other wet-

Total water services
16. 30 16. 82 land areas, bodies of water, and floodplain, via the administra-

Number of services per mile of tion of the Wetlands Protection Act and the Town of Norfolk

water main
29. 71 30.66 Wetland Protection Bylaw.Additionally, the Commission admin-

Total gallons pumped 144,772,500 166,991, 500 isters the Rivers Protection Act, passed in August, 1996 to regu-

Total gallons purchased 419,700 383,904 late land use activities within a wetland resource area known as

Average gallons pumped
the " riverfront area," comprising land abutting all perennial

per day 396,637 457,511 streams and rivers.

Average annual gallons used

per service
89,074 99, 510 In addition to state- mandated increases in the responsi-

Average gallons used per
bilities of the Commission, rapid development in the Town, pri-

service per day 244 273 madly in the form of housing, as well as Title Vrequired instal-
Total Water Bill and

lotion of new septic systems have boosted the Commission' s

Betterment Revenue      $ 594,694.60 667, 697.70 workload. During the 1997 year, the Conservation Commission
held 29 public hearings, a significant increase over the 18 held

In 1997 the total gallons pumped increased due to the ex-      the previous year. These included 24 Notices of Intent applica-

tremely dry conditions in the summer.  
tions and 5 for Requests for Determinations of Applicability.

The process with the Massachusetts Department of Envi-     During the hearing process, which occurs at the

1 ronmental Protection( DEP) continues for the Master Plan pro-      Commission' s regular monthly meetings, the Commission con-

xjections to bring a new well on line.    
siders input from the applicant, interested abutters, and other

P'   Town boards and officials. A site inspection is conducted for

The Highland Lake Project was completed in early 1997 every application, and ongoing site visits are an integral part of
g

h, and we have recovered the costs from the Commonwealth of monitoring every project to assure it is in compliance with the
Massachusetts, Department of Corrections in April.   Commission' s Order of Conditions, which is issued following

t1 the public hearing, if the project meets the performance stan-
it

In the fall of 1997, money was appropriated to replace 2+      dards of the Wetland Protection Act. During 1997, the Commis-

miles of deteriorating water main.
sion issued 20 Orders of Conditions, and conducted mare than

if
50 site inspections. These site visits pertained to projects ango-

The Board of Water Commissioners is dedicated to the ing from previous years, new projects, and importantly, pre- hear-
delivery of potable water in sufficient quantity and quality to ing site visits which serve to facilitate the public hearing pro-       ,_
meet the needs of our residents now and into the future.      cess.     

The Commissioners wish to thank the staff of the depart-    During the year, the Commission undertook a lengthy re-

pent, headed by Superintendent James A. Martin III,Adminis-
view of the Norfolk Wetland Protection Regulations, which cul-

ative Secretary Marilyn A. Ghioni, Maintenance Operator Ri-      
minated in the approval of the updated Regulations at a public

T;

chard A. Watson, Collector Gail E. Bernardo and Part- time Main-      hearing in December.    

enance Colleen Johnston, who oversee the daily operationsof
The Commission also participated in hearings and meet-       

F

Ale department. The Commissioners wish to congratulate i

Markene Burton on his retirement. He will be sorely missed.      ings regarding the development of in-town and a neighboring 1`.

These employees are dedicated and tireless in the efforts to en-      
town' s proposed municipal wells.       

Sure the smooth overall operation of the Norfolk Water Depart-
fxment.    

The Commission continued its activity in preserving, main-
taming, and enhancing the parcels of open space it manages. For

Respectfully submitted,
example, via Eagle Scout projects, the parking area and trails in F

the Campbell Town Forest were enhanced, and a foot bridge
is'  was constructed and installed at the outlet of Town Pond. Fol- ti Board of Water Commissioners lowing up on a workshop on vernal pools coordinated with the

Massachusetts Audubon Society at Stony Brook the previous t

z
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year, a town-wide vernal pool identification and certification
program was begun. To date, 15 vernal pools have been identi-
fied, and 8 are pending certification by the Mass. Division of
Fisheries and Wildlife. The continued identification and certifi-
cation of vernal pools remains a major goal of the Commission
in 1998.

Another goal is to acquire land to be maintained as open
space, and to plan for the protection and use of the Town' s natu-
ral resources. A prime candidate for acquisition is Lind Farm, a
predominantly wooded 62-acre site between North and Marshall
Streets which features an existing trail system. Currently, the
Commission manages 170 acres of land in Norfolk, including
the Harold Campbell Forest, Town Pond, City Mills Pond, and
the Kunde Conservation Forest behind the H. Olive Day School.
In 1997, the Commission received a generous donation of land
on Lake Shore Path.

The Commission receives valuable input from other Town

boards and officials, both at the review level of a project, and

when the project is underway. We wish to thank these boards
and committees for their assistance, especially the Planning
Board, the Building Department, the Board of Health, the Water
Department, and the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Respectfully submitted,

Conservation Commission
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TREASURER/ COLLECTOR

The Treasurer/Collector' s office is staffed by three full time In addition to the many tax related duties and responsibili-
hemployees. In addition to the Treasurer/Collector, there is an ties, the office is responsible for receiving moneys from the
Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Collector. Town' s various departments, processing of payment checks for

Town expenditures, maintaining and reconciling over 30 bank
Tax related duties and responsibilities focus on the billing accounts, investing Town funds, borrowing short and long term

apd collecting of real estate, personal property and motor ve-      funds, and handling payroll for over 270 Town Employees.

bide excise taxes. Over 17,000 tax bills were mailed out result-
in

tmg
in over$ 10. 1 million dollar in revenues. Other tax related Respectfully submitted,

f esponsibilities include the processing of municipal lien certifi-
ates, tax refunds and the collection of delinquent taxes through David B. Okun, Treasurer/Collector

tax title takings and deputy collector services.

REPORT OF THE TREASURER/COLLECTOR FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 1997

Real Estate Demands&   Motor Vehicle
Tax Interest Fees Excise Tax Interest Fees

998 1, 530. 16 0.00 0.00 1997 614,793, 73 887. 48       $ 10,485.75

997 9,061, 312.22 13, 481.23 2, 364.01 1996 166,033. 33 602. 14 9,548.79

X996 88,014.47 6,731. 06 5, 528. 80 1995 11, 138.49 148. 17 1, 961. 95

4995 2,259.93 226.76 94.52 1994 455.75 50.08 726.00

02 504.82 0.00 0.00 1993 294.39 40.82 529.00

991 576. 66 196. 11 0.00 1992 47.50 19. 56 121. 00

Total      $ 9, 154, 198. 26       $ 20,635. 16 7, 987. 33 1991 310.88 122.00 313.00

F " 1990 141. 35 107. 17 222.00
11x'    Water Committed 1989 0.00 3. 48 100.50

Betterments Interest Fees 1988 72.50 49.33 63.00

997 Apportioned     $ 72,972. 13      $ 12, 110.61       $ 0.00 1987 57.50 62.62 189. 00

k997 Paid in Adv.       87,027.43 542.48 156.00 1986 72.50 14.79 48. 61

4996 13. 43 9. 67 0.00 Total 793,417.92 2, 107.64       $ 24,308. 60

160,012. 99      $ 12, 662.76    $ 156.00

Grand Totals Collected:

Personal Property Municipal Lien Certificates:      $ 23,275.00

Tax Interest Fees Water Betterments:       160,012.99

9,,97 144,918.32 71. 18 357. 17 All Taxes:     10, 116,086.40

1996 324.67 19. 76 310.33 All Interest and Fees:      68, 615.93

5 0.25 0.00 0.00

tal 145, 243.24 90.94 667.50

97'Water Liens $ 812.97

812.97

In Lieu of

Taxes

997 7, 644.26

Municipal Lien

Certificates

931 @   $ 25 each       $ 23, 275. 00
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ADVISORY BOARD ing Warrants. After negotiating significant improvements inose
of the Articles and being persuaded that is was preferable to en•

The Advisory Board consists of nine members appointed act an imperfect version of another rather than to have nothing
by the Moderator for three-year terms. No member may be ac-      on the books on that subject, the Advisory Board recommender
tive in any other Town position, elected or appointed, while serv-      approval of all the Zoning Articles and all were approved by the
ing on the Board. Town Meeting votes.

The Board' s mandate is to recommend to Town Meeting The Advisory Board received and intends to act on a num
balanced Operating and Capital Budgets equitably apportioned ber of suggestions for improvement offered during and after On
among Departments, Boards, Commissions, needs and opportu-      and Fall Town Meetings.

nitie', and to make well reasoned recommendations about the

non- financial questions on the Warrants. Also, the Board man-     One suggestion was that the Capital requests and the We
rant Articles proposing significant one- time expenditures be list4ages a small Reserve Fund appropriated by Town Meeting to

cover unanticipated necessary expenses of any Department which together in the Recommendations booklet,

cannot wait until the following Town Meeting.
Another suggestion was that when explaining their Ru

For the Spring and Fall of 1997 Town Meetings, the Advi-      ommendations and Motions, the Advisory Board should mea
sory Board considered 110 Warrant Articles and recommended tion minority opinions, if any.
that 96 of these be approved and the others Indefinitely Post-
poned. Town Meeting votes supported virtually all our Recom It was observed that certain expenses have been chroni
mendations.     Cally under-budgeted in the past, the Snow and Ice Remove

Budget being the best example. The suggestion was that sun'
Highlights of the financial decisions taken by the Spring needs be budgeted more fittingly in the future.

and Fall Town Meetings were.

A fourth suggestion was that it would be well if every Tow
15, 500,000 Operating and Water Budget Department, Board, Commission and Committee would havS
2,200.000 Override for School expansion present during every Session of every Town Meeting at leasto

900,000 for Water Main Replacements representative able to respond to questions from the floor about
220,000 for Landfill Closure matters within their jurisdiction.

156,000 Override for Schools Operations
183, 000 for nine Capital projects Respectfully submitted,
130, 151 Capital for replacement Ambulance
50,000 Override for Senior Center design Advisory Board in 1997

listed in order of length of service)       t

The Advisory Board' s objective was to fund all the abso-  Marc Waldman, Past Chairman

lutely necessary requirements without drawing down t! a Stabi-  Graham Sterling, Chairman 1

lization Fund and without incurring new Debts beyond those for Norman Gentry, Vice Chairman l

which there are assured and dedicated revenue streams suffi-  Edward Cannon, Vice Chairman fl

cientto pay debt service expenses. We are pleased to report that Joyce Terrio

all essential requirements were funded within these constraints.  Arthur Warren

Glenn Beernink, Vice Chairman 1;

Twenty-one Zoning Articles accounted for most of the re-  Catherine Elder

maining substantive questions on the Spring and Fall Town Meet-  James Ward

88



FINANCES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE/TOWN ACCOUNTANT

The following general purpose financial statements have
been prepared and audited in comformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and present fairly the financial position of
the Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts, at June 30, 1997.

I would like to thank my staff, Lorraine H. Foley, Assis-
tant Town Accountant/ Employee Benefits Coordinator, and Mary
Noris, Data Processing/Accounts Payable Clerk. The staff con-
tinues to do a remarkable job. Their continued help and support
allows for a smooth and efficient operation.

Deborah Robbins, the former Assistant Assessor for the
Town was appointed Chief Assessor this past year. I know she
will continue to be an asset to the Finance Department and to the
community.

I would like to thank the Treasurer/Collector and Assess-
ing Department' s for their hard work, dedication and coopera-
tion, I am also grateful for the continuing cooperation and sup-
pu;: from all Town departments.

Respectfully submitted,

Susan L. Gagner

Director of Finance/Town Accountant

TOWN OF NORFOLK,
MASSACHUSETTS

GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT ON GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To The Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Norfolk,  

Massachusetts '

I have audited the accompanying general purpose financial
statements of the Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts as of and for the

year ended June 30,   1997,  as listed in the Table of Contents.    These

general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the
Town of Norfolk Massachusetts'  

management.  My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements
based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards.    

Those standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material

misstatement.   An audit includes

examining,  on a test basis,  evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general purpose financial

statements.    An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management,  as well as evaluating the

overall general purpose financial statement presentation.    
i believe

that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.
In as much as the Commonwealth of Massachusetts does not require

the capitalization of fixed assets,  
the Town has not maintained

complete historical cost records of its general

sfixedeasassets.
general

Accordingly,  except for the enterprise fund,  a

fixed assets,  required by generally accepted accounting principles,
is not included in the financial statements.

As discussed in Note 4,  the Town records pension expense for the
retired employees on the pay- as- you- go method in accordance with the
General Laws of the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts.    These practices

are not in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
As described in none id to the

financial statements,  the Town

does not accumulate the dollar amount of vacation and sick leave
earned by its employees during theear and accumulated at year end.
Generally accepted accounting principles require that such amounts,
if material,  be recorded as a liability in the general purpose
financial statements.

91



FINANCES

Board of Selectmen,  Norfolk,  Massachusetts
November 14,  1997

Independent Auditor' s Report  ( continued)

In my opinion,  except for the effect on the general purpose
financial statements the matters described in paragraphs 3,  4,  and 5,
have,  the general purpose financial statements referred to above
present fairly,  in all material respects,  the financial position of
the Town of Norfo.,.k,  Massachusetts,  as of June 30,  1997,  and the

results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund
types and nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  The Reconciliationof Treasurer' s Cash,  and Schedule of Taxes for the Year Ended June30,  1997 on pages 25 and 26,  is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the the basic financial
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statementsand,  in my opinion,  is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

John J.  O' Brien C. P. A.
November 14,  1997
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT ON compLIANCE.
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts

I have audited the general purpose financial statements of the
Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts,  as of and for the year ended June 30,

1997,  and have issued my report thereon dated November 14,  1997.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards,   and Government Auditing Standards,  issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require

that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

Compliance with laws,  regulations,  contracts,  and grants

applicable to Norfolk,  Massachusetts,  is the responsibility of the

Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts'  management.    As part of obtaining

reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
statements are free of material misstatement,  I performed tests of

the Town' s compliance with certain
provisions of laws,  regulations,

contracts and grants.    However,  the objective of my audit of the
general purpose financial statements was not to provide an opinion on
the overall compliance with such provisions.    Accordingly,  I do not

express such an opinion.

is The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information of the audit
committee and the management of the Town of Norfolk Massachusetts.
However this report is a matter of public record and its distribution
is not limited.

John J.  O' Brien C. P. A.
November 14 ,   1997
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INDEPENDENT AVDITO2' S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE
AS D ON AN AUD OF GENE' • L  • U" • OS FINANCIAL S ATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Honorrble Board of Selectmen
Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts

I have audited the general purpose financial statements of the
Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts,  as of and for the year ended June 30,
1997,  and have issued my report thereon dated November 14 ,   1997.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards,  and Government Auditing Standards,   issued by the
Comptroller General of the •United States.  Those standards require
that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material.  misstatement.

The management of Norfolk,  Massachusetts is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure.     In
fulfilling this responsibility,  estimates and judgments by management
are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs ofinternal control structure policies and procedures.    The objectives
of an internal control structure are to provide management withreasonable,  but not absolute,  assurance that assets are safeguardedagainst loss from unauthorized use or disposition,  and that the
transactions are executed in accordance with management' s
authorization and are recorded properly to permit the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accountingprinciples.    

Because of inherent limitations in any internal controlstructure,  

errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not bedetected.    Also,  
projection of any evaluation of the structure to

future periods is subject to risk that procedures may becomeinadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness
of design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate.

In planning and performing my audit of the general purposefinancial statements of the Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts,   for theyear ended June 30, 1997,   I obtained an understanding of the internalcontrol structure.  With respect to the internal control structure,  I
obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies andprocedures and whether they have been placed in operation,   and I

assessed control risk in order to determine my auditing proceduresfor the purpose of expressing my opinion on thefinancial statements and not to onnonal purpose
i

internalcontrol structure.  Accordingly,  irdonot
aexpresson

such

anon
e

opinion.
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Board of Selectmen,  Norfolk,  Massachusetts

November 14 ,   1997

jeport on Internal Accounting Controls  ( continued)

My consideration of the internal control structure would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure
that might be material weaknesses under the standards established by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.    A material

weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or
more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to
a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in
amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.    I noted no matters involving

the internal control structure and its operation that I considered to
be a material weakness as defined above.

However,   I noted certain matters involving the internal control
structure and its operation that I have reported to the management of
the Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts,   in a separate letter dated

November 14,   1997.

This report is intended for the information of the audit
committee and the management of the Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts.

However,  this report is a matter of public record and its
distribution is not limited.

3ohn 3.  O' Brien C. P. A.
November 14,   1997

95



FINANCES

N

5
M h N   .-

5 Y y

ii'h    '       M
e      ani" m

0   !       p o r iii VZn 8 Y n r§

m1N
in fi(y N d

Q

i    N

a

N
N

Wt::   ,

triso so
h

r id KN

h

bN
p '       N M ad n N

N
N N

y

0,   
N 1i

o
414. 

N k 1 N 1
N r

1° 1 vf 1 4§ R R a9 1 

w 11 U e. 4"   + 
p a

i       !N da -

N

iu :
NM- 

1ff N

W r,

4 1 QQ{

a  $   ' dMl
W

N N

N1 ,

rN
N N N l

Z
N

N N

1     ,       wsk i 1
IR      .     

1 1IL44 0

allr lip   „   
i

5 ,   o_ t8 M I z IA

14M411
2 M

01C7z i z
thilllziitLi 11 1     - 11

g sh i
Jr

96 I.



FINANCES

ON OF NORFOLK, MASSACHUSETTS
Op$ g1JED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, TRANFERS, EXPENDITURES AND CHANCES N FUND TYPES

w lel. GOVERNMENTAL FIND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED J JNE 30, 1997

GOVERNMENTAL. FUND TYPES FIDUCIARY TOTALS
FUND TYPE MEMOR/V111' I ONLY)

SPECIAL CAPITAL EXPENDABLE
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS TRUST 1997 1996

REVENUES:

Properly Taxes
9,308,270 9,308,270 38, 946,322

I Merlpvemmental Revenue 2,998,395 909,648 960,000 4, 866,043 3, 701, 369

Llamas, Fees and Permits 314,730 314, 730 300,914

Westmont interest 146,469 1, 204 30,495 178, 188 221, 699

t Excise Texas
778,902 778,902 711, 025

User Charges 167,551 566,251 532 734, 334 705,614

Other
160,748 10,352 7,762 178. 862 84,678

Total Revenue 13,873,065    $ 1, 487,455      $ 980,000       $ 38,789       $ 16, 359,309       $ 14, 671, 621

i

I

V cypENDfrURES:

Education and Libraries 7,778,868 609,529 57,332 200 8,445,729 7,984,049

General Government 888,030 156,249 129, 118 532 1, 173, 929 1, 203,953

PIcWcsks 967, 109 461, 119 357,614 1, 785,842 2,106,202

Protection of Person end Property 1, 999,687 71, 388 280,500 2,351, 555 1, 894,445

De4tHumanServlcesService
251, 764 251, 764 219,944

Sats and County Assessments 330,982 330,982 301, 883

837,978 837,976 768,200

Reoreadon 47,070 48,234 93,304 92,919

Penson end Insurance 981, 532 961, 532 934,069

Capita? Expenditure 1, 236,659 1, 236,659 0

1 Total Expenditures 14, 082,798    $ 1, 344,519    $ 2,061, 223 732       $ 17,489,272       $ 15,485,664

Excesb( deficiency) of Revenue
9 Over Expenditures 209,733)       142,936     ( 1, 101, 223)       38,057 1, 129,983) 814,043)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

e

li

Transfer( To) From Other Funds 15,565)       ( 59,082)       61, O11U 7,343 6,314)  41. 717

issuance of Bonds
0 213,000

Proceeds Bond Anticipation Notes 47,865 2,885,857 2,933,722 783,000

Repayment 0f Temporary Debt 65,000)      61' 000)    -_....   _  146,000) 457,0(X1)

Total Other Financing Sauces( Uses)      52,700)      ($ 59,092)    $ 2,885,857 7,343 2,781, 408 582,717

9 Excess( deficiency) of Revenues Over
Exptlnc$tures and Other Financing Sources 282,433) 83,844 4,784834 45,40X1 1, 651. 445 231, 326)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1, 331 A50 352,306 354,341 544,589 2,582,866 2,813.992

Fund Balance at End of Year 1, 089,017      $ 436, 150    $ 2,138,975      $ 589,98 51,234, 111 2,582,668

e The accompanying notes to financial statements are en in eraal part of this statement.
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TOWN OF NORFOLK, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, TRANSFERS, AND EXPENDITURESBUDGET AND ACTUAL BUDGET BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

Variance Totals
Favorable Memorandum Only)

REVENUES:  
Budget Actual  ( Unfavorable)      1997 19961

Property Taxes 9,437,426     $ 9,373,830

r

Intergovernmental Revenue 2,844,025 2,996,395 1$52,370,     $
2396,39530      $ 2,657,

220Licenses, Fees and Permits 268,621 314,730 46,109 314,730 300,

9142,
300,94

Investment Interest 155,370 146,469 8,901 146,469 4Excise Taxes 189,044
User Charges

700,000 778,902 78,902 778,902 711, 025
Other

165,515 167,551 2,036 167,551 160,908160,749 160,749 160,749 70,394
Total Revenue

13,570,957    $ 13,938,626
r"

367,669    $ 13,938,626    $ 13,080,442

EXPENDITURES:

Education and Libraries 7; 996,113     $ 7,790,233880      $7, 790,233      $ 7,259,931General Government
924,284 884,547 39,737 884,547 810,609Public Works

1, 053,105 983,846Protection of Person andProperty69,259 983,846 1, 003,374
Human 2,001, 016 1, 966,310 34,706 1, 966,310 1, 840,668
State andServicesty Assessments

257,005 251, 979 5,026 251, 979 210,618DebtatServiced286,478 330,982 44,504) 330,982 301, 883
Recreation 811, 603 725,177 86,426 725,177 865,178
Pension and Insurance 50,622 47,252 3,370 47,2521, 000,396 960, 116 36,973

40,280. 960,116 9300675
Total Expenditures

14, 380,622    $ 13,940,442 440, 180    $ 13,940,442    $ 13,259,909
Excess( deficiency) of
Revenues over Expenditures 809,665)  1, 816) 807,8491 816 67179,467)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):

Transfer( To) From Other Funds 170,902 170,902
170,902Debt Net of Repayment 75, 

135

85,
000

Other AvaNabie Funds

898) 
37,135)    

37, 135)  85,00Q675,898.   
675,898) 0

Total Other Financing
Sources( Uses)     

675,898)       $ 133,767 310,995

X809,665       $ 133,767
0

Excess ( deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Sources Over 0
Expenditures and Other Uses 0

131, 951 131, 951 131, 951 131, 528

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF NORFOLK, MASSACHUSETTS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
pROPflIETARY

JUNEAD
NON- EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

YEAR ENDED

Proprietary Non-

Fund Type Expendable Totals

Water Trust Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Fund 1997 1996

1 OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges br services 761, 377 761, 377 746,013

Other Income

Total Operating Revenues 761, 377 761, 377 746,013

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries& Wages 143, 164 143, 164 127,264

Maintenance& Operations 109,368 109,368 257,455

Materials and Supplies 9,031 9,031 4,815

Depredation 155,450. 155,450 161, 381

Indirect and Admin. Costs 49,796 49,796 46,810

Total Operating Expenses 466,809 466,809 597,525

Operating Income 294,568 294,568 148,488

NON- OPERATING REVENUE( EXPENSES):

Investment Income 39,724 519 40,243 19,954

Insurance reimbursement 188 188

State grant- Portion Expensed 22.E 22,338

Prior Year Ad istment on Fixed Assets 39,495 39,495

Interest Expense 109,300)      109,300) 97,680)

Net non- operating revenues(expenses)      7,555)       519
ry^ (

7, 036)   77.726)

Operating transfers from other funds 6,868 8,868

Operating transfers to other funds
554)      554)   41, 717)

Net operating transfers 6,868 554)     6,314 41, 717)

Net Income(Loss)   293,681 35) 293,846 29,045

Depredation at Other Contributions 3,546 3, 446

Increase In Retained Earnings 297,427 297,392 29'045

Retained Earnings/ Fund Balance:

Beginning of year 1, 050,871 2,535 1, 053,406 1, 024.

361
End df Year 1, 348,298 2,500 1, 350,798 1,   , 408

The accompanying notes to Anancial statements are en Interval part of this statement.

t
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TOWN OF NORFOLK, MASSACHUSETTS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1997

Proprietary Non—       Totals
Fund Type Expendable

Water Trust Memorandum Only)      I
Enterprise Fund 1997 1996 I

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net Income
293,881 35)    293, 846Adjustments to reconcile net 29,045

income to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Depreciation 155,450 155, 450Operating Transfers From Other funds 6,868)      6,868)     

161, 381
Changes In assets and liabilities:

Increase)Decrease In Accounts Receivable 0

Increase(Decrease) In accounts payable
17, 08)     17, 08)

Increase( Decrease) In Other Liabilities
17, 108)     

17, 110 7420
0) 748)

Net cash provided( used) operating activities 408, 425 35)     408,390 190,320

Cash flows from Investing activities:   

Purchases of property& equipment 257,126)
257,126)    310,7551

Net cash provided(used) Investing activities 257,126)    0
5)

257,126)    310,755)

Cash flows from financing activities:

New borrowings:
Long—term

0Short—term
442,440

0 397,000
Debt reduction:    442,440 103,281
Long—term

115,000)    134,Short—term
413,510)   

413,510)  428,550)

Net cash provided(used) financing acti' ties 86,070)    0 86,070)      62,269)
Net Increase( decrease) In cash 65,229 35)      65, 194 182,704) ';.;

Cash at the Beginning of the Year 862,934 2,535 865,469 1048173
Gash at the End of the Year

4--

928, 183 2,500 930,663
m 865,469

Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest Paid

109,300
109, 300 97,680

The accompanying notes to financial statementsn s are an Inker raIpart of this statement,

lI
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FINANCES

TOWN OF NORFOLK,  MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,   1997

1)    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies and financial reporting practices for
municipalities in Massachusetts are prescribed by the Uniform
Municipal Accounting System  ( UMAS)  promulgated by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Revenue.  The

significant accounting policies followed by the Town are as
follows:

a)    Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Norfolk,  Massachusetts  ( the  " Town")  reporting entityconsists of all significant funds,  account groups,  agencies,boards,  commissions,  and authorities over which the Town
exercises oversight responsibility except for General FixedAssets.  Oversight responsibility was determined on the basis offinancial inter- dependence,  

selection of a governing authoritydesignation of management,  ability to significantly influenceoperations,  
accountability for fiscal matters and scope ofpublic service.

b)    Fund Accounting

Financial transactions of the Town are recorded in the followingfunds or account groups:

1)    

The General Fund reflects the financial transactions
related to general government activities which are not
otherwise accounted for in another fund.

Included within the General Fund are the unreserved fund
balance and reserve for abatement and exemption surplus:

The unreserved fund balance is the amount by whichunrestricted cash,  
accounts receivable and other assetsexceed liabilities and reserves.

2)    

Special Revenue Funds account for proceeds of specificrevenue  'sources  ( other than special assessments,'  expendabletrusts or major capital projects)  that are legallyrestricted to expenditures for specific purposes.    These

sources include gifts and grants from outside sources whichmush:  be expended in' accordance with the provisions .of thegrants,  

and funds related to specific activities of theTown•    

These funds are available to fund future operationsas prescribed by the Town.
3)    

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of
capital facilities financed in whole or in part by longterm debt.  

Capital facilities financed through tax leviesare reflected as expenditures in the General Fund Statementof Revenues,  Transfers and Expenditures.
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1)    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  ( Continued)

4)     The Proprietary fund or Water Enterprise fund is accounted
for using the economic resources focus;  the accounting ob-
jectives are determination of net income,  financial posi-

tion and cash flows.  All assets and liabilities associated

with a proprietary fund' s activities are included on its
balance sheet.   Proprietary fund equity is segregated into
contributed capital and retained earnings.

5)     The Trust and Agency Funds account for money and securities
received and held by the Town as trustee or custodian for
individuals,  private organizations and other governmental

agencies.

Trust funds are classified as expendable or nonexpendable
depending on whether the principal portion of the fund
balance may be expended,  or whether only investment income
may be used.

6)     The General Long Term Debt Obligation Group of Accounts
Note 5)   includes the liabilities for long term debt.    The

balance payable on long term debt is offset by resources to
be provided through taxation in future years for the
retirement of unmatured bonds.

c)      Accounting for Revenues

Revenues in the governmental fund types  ( General Fund,

Special Revenue Funds,  and Capital Projects Funds)  are

accounted for using a modified accrual basis whereby the
receipts during the July 1 to August 31 period that are
allocable to the preceding fiscal year are reflected as
revenue for that year.

d)     Accounting for Expenditures

Disbursements for material and supply inventories are
considered expenditures at the time of payment and are not
deferred And amortized.    Interest cost is recognized when

due and is not accrued over time.    The repayment of long
term debt principalis recorded as an expenditure of the
General Fund.    The Town' s policy is to recognize vacation
and sick pay in the accounting period the payments are
made.    These amounts Are not accrued at the end of the
fiscal year.

e)     Inve- tments n Mar e es

Investments in marketable securities are stated at cost.
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1)    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  ( Continued)

f)    Accounting for Fixed Assets

Through June 30,  1997 the Department of Revenue did not
require the recording of fixed assets in the generalledger.    Accordingly,  except for the enterprise fund,the Tow;:  

does not recognize general fund fixed assets in an
asset account in the Town' s general ledger at the time ofacquisition,  but expenses them when purchased.

g)    Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The Town must establish its property tax rate each year so
that the resulting property tax levy will comply with the
limits required by Proposition 2 1/ 2 and also constitutethat amount which will equal the sum of  (a)  the aggregateof all annual appropriations for expenditures,  state andcounty assessments,  and transfers,  plus  ( b)  provision forprior fiscal year' s deficits,  if any,  less  ( c)  the

aggregate of all nonproperty tax revenues and transfers
projected to be received by the Town,  including availablefunds.

The Town' s budgets for all departments and operations ofthe Town,  
are prepared by the different department heads,and presented to the Finance committee.    The Finance

Committee then presents its recommendations on the budgetat the Town Meeting.    Original and supplemental
appropriations are also acted upon by Town Meeting Vote.

h)    budgetary  -  GA a Reaorti,na ReconcnU' o

Accounting principles applied for
data on a budgetary basis differ

fromthoseoses
ousedf

vtoopresent 1financial statements in conformityto
p GAAP) .  

generally acceptedaccounting principles GAAP A reconciliation ofbudgetary- basis to GAAP- basis results is presented below:
As Reported On a Budgetary Basis

Revenuers Expenditures
13, 938, 626    $ 13, 940, 442

To Record Revenue on a Modified
Accrual Basis of Accounting
To Record 1996 Encumbrances and

65, 561)

Continuing Appropriations Paidin 1997

To .Eliminate 1997 Encumbrances 574, 757

and Continued Appropriations
432, 401)

As Reported on a GAAP Basis
13, 873, 065    $ 14, 082, 798
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1)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  ( Continued)

h)  Budgetary  -  GAAP Reporting Reconciliation  (Continued)

Massachusetts law does not require preparation of a budget
for grants accounted for in the' Special. Revenue Funds.
Since such grants are not budgeted,  a budgetary comparison

with actual results of operations is not presented.

i)    Real and Personal Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values as of
each January 1st and are billed in quarterly installments.
By law,  all taxable property in the Commonwealth must be
assessed at 100%  of fair cash value.    Taxes due and unpaid

after the respective due dates are subject to interest and
penalties.    The Town has an ultimate right to foreclose on
property for which taxes have not been paid.    Property

taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year
of levy.    Property tax revenues are recorded in accordance
with the modified accrual basis of accounting described in
Note 1  ( c) .

A statewide limitation statute known as  " Proposition 2 1/ 2"

limits the property tax levy to an amount equal to 2 1/ 2%
of the value of all taxable property in the Town.    A,

secondary limitation is that no levy in a fiscal year may
exceed the preceding year' s allowable tax levy by more
than 2 1/ 2%,  plus taxes levied on certain property newly
lmitatatiionsecantaXberolls.

overriddencertain
by a Town- wide

refetaxing
rendum

limi

vote.

j)  Total Columns on Combined Statements

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned
memorandum only"  to indicate that they are presented only

to facilitate analysis.    Data in these columns do not
present financial, position,  

results of operations,  or

changes in cash flows in conformity .with generally accepted
accounting, principles.    

Neither is such data comparable to a
consolidation.    Interfund eliminations have not been made in
the aggregation of this data.       •

k)  Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contin-
gent 'assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ

from those estimates.
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2)     DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS

The Town' s assets include cash and temporary investments that
are available for use by all funds.     In addition,   operating cash
and investments are separately held by various funds of the
Town.    Each fund type' s portion of cash and temporary
investments is presented on the combined balance sheet under
Guvernmentai Fund Types"  as cash and temporary investments.

a)  Deposits

At year end,  the carrying amount of the Town' s deposits of
100, 815 differed from bank balances totaling  $154, 088

because of outstanding checks and other normal reconciling
items.  The Town' s total deposits in financial institutions
at year end were  $100, 815,  of which  $100, 800 was covered by
Federal depository insurance.

b)   Investments

State statutes authorize the Town to invest public funds in
term deposits or certificates of deposit,   in trust
companies,  national banks,  savings banks or banking
companies,  or in obligations issued or unconditionally
guaranteed by the United States Government or any agency
thereof and having a maturity of less than one year.    The

statutes also authorize the Town to invest in repurchase
agreements and in participation units in a combined
investment fund.

Funds that are the result of a grant,  gift or trust must be
invested in accordance with the terms of such grant,  gift or
trust.    Trust funds can be placed in interest- bearing
accounts at national banks Or at savings,  trust or FDIC
banking companies which are incorporated under the laws of
the Commonwealth.    Funds can also be invested in
participation units in a combined investment fund,   or in -
bonds,  notes or securities which are legal investments for
savings banks.

The Town' s investments are categorized below to give' an
indication of the level of risk assumed by the Town' at year
end.    Category 1 includes investments that are insured or
registered or for which the securities held by the Town or
its agent are in the Town' s name.    Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the broker' s or dealer' s trust
department or agent in the Town' s name,    Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for whichthe
securities are held by the broker' or dealer,  or by its trust
department or agent,  but not in the Town' s name.
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b)   
Investments  (

Continued)

Carrying Amount Market

Value

Money
Market and u

Certificates of      $  

500, 000    $ 4, 395, 111  $ 0    $ 4, 895, 111      $ 4, 895, 111

Deposit

0    $ 4, 885, 111.      $ 4, 895, 111.

Total Investment    $  
500, 000    $ 4, 385, 111 j

3) e R      _  I     •    T-      TEP S RD

plant and equipment of the enterprise fund is stated
at historical cost.
property,   

cost.  A summary of
changes in property,  

plant

equipment for the water department for the year ended June 30,
1997 ,   is as follows.      Net

bookNetbook value

Retired Deprec.    3value 6/  0/ 97

Asset 7/ 1/ 96 Additions

6_  ____

455, 258

i Land 297, 550    $  157 , 708      $   
3, 552

455, 258
307 , 834

163, 223
78,

7343
7, 242, 952

Buildings

6 903 382 655, 216 256, 942322,
922

17, 4248,441Valve350,817 23, 693 171, 082

5

Valves 7, 180
Wells 178, 262 281, 915

Standpipes 289, 053
7,

1381  ,18 281, 915
Equipment 164, 094

45, 607 6, 414 18, 875 715, 515

Meters
695, 197

11, 000
231 5, 155 51, 966

Meters 46, 352 21867 4712, 0 9

Hydrants 477, 379 20, 836 6, 930
3,

1240 19,
21.5

Vehicles 14, 059 276 0, 935
Furn  &  Fixt 0 20759

451, 164  $ 155, 450  $ 10, 034, 184

Totals 9, 723, 979    $  916, 819      $   

Depreciation is calculated on these assets using a straightlives.

line method with the following
Life

Assets_

Mains.

50 years
Valves,100 years standpipes,  

service laterals

buildings and hydrants.

30 years

Wells,

Equipment.

25 years
Building

improvements®

20 years
Meters,

15 years

6 years

Vehicles.
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4)     RETIREMENT PLANS

Teachers,  certain administrative personnel and other
professional employees of the Town' s school departments
individually participate in a contributory retirement plan
administered by Massachusetts Teacher' s Retirement Board.
The Town does not contribute to this plan.

Substantially all other Town employees participate in the
Norfolk County Retirement System.    The Town' s payroll for
employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30,  1997
was approximately  $3, 163, 067 which was 49. 3%  of the total Town
payroll.    Contributions to provide benefits under the System are
made by the Town under the  " pay- as- you- go"  method by annually
contributing the amount determined by the State Division of
Public Employee Retirement Administration  ( PERA) .    The

contribution is calculated as the amount necessary to provide
for the following year' s retirement benefits.    The active Town
employees contribute 5%,  7%,  or 8%  ( depending upon the date of
employment)  of their regular compensation,  as defined.    The

Town also contributes the amount necessary for the System' s
administrative expenses.   The Town' s actual contribution was

462, 526 ' for 1997,  which represented 14. 6%  of annual covered
payroll.

Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are
uniform from system to system.    The system provides for
retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80%  of a

member' s highest three year average annual rate of regular
compensation.    Benefit payments are based upon a member' s age,
length of creditable service,  level of compensation and groupclassification.  Members become vested after 10 years of
creditable service.   •A superannuation retirement allowance may
be received Upon the completion of 20 years of Service or upon
reaching the age of 55 within 10 years of service.    Normal
retirement for most employees occurs at age 65  ( for certain
hazardous duty and public safety positions,  normal retirement is
at age 55) ,
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0)   •
A retirement

t p a s Continueda

A retirement
allowance consists of two parts:    

an annuity nd

pension.    A member' s
atconstitutetotal

ethetannuitY'•
ion and a portiThe

on

1

of the interest they generate
differential

between the total
retirement benefit of the annuity

Y

i

approximately

the pension.    The average retirement benefit is

currently
is

85%  to 90%  pension and 10%
is a

The  " Pension Benefit
Obligation1°      tbenefits dad ustedufor

measure of the present value of pension
the effects of projected salary increases and step- rate
benefits,  

estimated to be payable in the future as a
result of

4users

rnemployee service to date.    The measure is intendednd
tonhelp

assess the funding status of the System on asgoingicot assets to
basis,   assess progress made in accumulating ntemployee

pay
benefits when due and make comparisons among public

retirement systems and
employers.    The sistemedoestnot make

separate measurements
e s.

assets andpen

for individual employ

pension benefit obligation was computed for the NorfolkThe as part of an actuarial
County

Retirement System as a
whole,  

as93.    

Sofninicctu
valuation performed as of January

1,       
a rate

t

actuarial assumptions used in the
andation

futureinclude
assets( of 8•

6a0
of return on .

investment presentprojected salary
increases of

year compounded annually,   (
b) 

ttributable to inflation,  
including

a year compounded annualiy
longevity,   and  ( c)  no post retirement benefit increases.

Total unfunded
pension obligations

for the System,  as a whole

was  $ 124 , 503 , 177 at January 1,  1997.  as follows:

pension Benefit Obligation  -
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving
benefits and terminated employees not

1 yet receiving
benefits

181, 231, 437

Current Employees  -       
91, 344,561Accumulatedemployee

contributions

including
allocated

investment earning

42, 004, 327 i
Employer  -  

Financed vested

6g, C9323

Employer

923

Financed nonvested

68, 693«-

Total Pension Benefit Obligation
383, 2' 74, 248

Net Assets
Available for Benefits; 258771, 071

u

At Market Value

Unfunded Pension
Benefit Obligation

124, 503, 177

he Town
represented 2. 45 of total 1

The contribution
made

ab
l participating

entitiea«

contributions made by
available

year historical trend information is not currentlyTen

for this Retirement System.
109

1



FINANCES

TOWN OF NORFOLK,  MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,   1997

5)    General Long Term Debt and Interest Group of Accounts
The Town' s outstanding long term debt as of June 30,   1997
is composed of:

Balance
Bank of

Outstanding
Boston/  Date of Date Interest at June 30,
Purpose Issue Matures Rate 1997

Water Mains:
Noon Hill 01/ 15/ 93 2013 4. 75%- 7. 25%      $ 1, 094, 000
Pond Street Various Var 4. 05%- 7. 25%       224, 000
Dedham Street 02/ 01/ 96 2009 4. 05%- 5. 00%       194 , 000
Leland Street 02/ 01/ 96 2009 4. 05%- 5. 00% 73, 000
Harlow Street 02/ 01/ 96 2009 4. 05%- 5. 00% 79, 000

Total Enterprise Fund 1, 664, 000

School Debt:

Land Purchase 01/ 15/ 93 2011 4 . 75%- 7. 25%       324, 000
School Roof 01/ 15/ 93 2011 4. 75%- 7. 25%       200, 000
Construction Various Var 4. 05%- 7 . 25%  5, 325, 000

Other:

Ctr.  Drainage 02/ 01/ 96 2009 4. 05$- 5. 00%       642, 000

Total General Long Term Debt Account Group 6, 491, 000

Total Long- Term Debt 8, 155, 000

Inside Debt Limit
524, 000

Outside Debt Limit
7, 631, 000

Debt service on the above,  for future years,  consists ofthe followings

For The Year
EndingJune30,'  Principal Interest Totals

1998 555, 000    $      440, 950
1999 550 000

995, 950

2000 550, 000
411, 175 961, 175

2001384,800 934 , 800
550, 000 358, 650 908, 6502002 550, 000 331, 650 881, 650Thereafter 5, 400, 000 1, 729, 950 7, 129, 950

8, 155, 000    $  3, 657, 175 11, 812, 175
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5)    
GENERAL LONG TE'    DEBT AND INTEREST GROUP OF AC OUNTS
Continued)

a)   Legal Debt Limit

Chapter 44,  Section 10,  of the Massachusetts General Laws
permits the issuance of bonds up to 5%  of the equalized

valuation,  plus an additional amount which wouldof

bring the

total up to but less than 10%  with the Approval
e

Emergency Finance
Board.    For example at June 30,  1997,

imatelthe
total statutoay

against which  $8, 155,

000debt
limit of the nofathes

pdebt was

59, 683 , 100,  aga

outstanding
applicable to such limit.    The following is a

computation of the legal debt margin as of June 30,  1997:

i

Inside
outside

TotalDebtLimit
Debt Limit

Assessed Value 596, 831, 000

Basis for Tax Rate)

I Equalized Assessed 596, 831, 000

Value

Debt Limit 5%  of 59®683, 1aa

Equalized Value 29, 841, 550
29, 841, 550

55, 00a

Less Debt outstanding
524, 000 7, 631, 000 8, 1_

5,

000

5z8, 1aa

Total Legal Debt Margin  $29, 317, 550 222` 2l0_r_0
21o, 55a 51,___528, 10_

6)    LOANS AUTHORIZED AND ANS 1 ;. I 1 i  !       -MED

authorized and loans authorized and unissued consist ofLoans auth

the following at June 30,   1997»

Authorized

Fiscal Year s
z

riesue
Authod And Unid

Purpose of Loan
Authorized ni

sue

35p, a00
0

TWn Hall/ Police sta
Various

435,

0000
19, 500

Equipment
Various

288, 000
240, 

135950
School construction

Various .
219,

Landfill Closure
Various 21_____   

40, 643

3, 292, 800
300, 278

Totals
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7)     NOTES PAYABLE  -  SHORT TERM

The Town has Bond and State Aid Anticipation Notes
at June 30,   1997 per the following schedule.

Bank/    Date of Date of Interest Balance

Purpose Issue Maturity Rate 6/ 30/ 97

Fleet Bank/

Twn Hall-   Various Various 3 . 94%-

Police Sta.      FY 1997 FY 1998 4 . 28%    2, 350, 000

BankBoston/

Landfill 6/ 18/ 97 11/ 24/ 97 3 . 94%.  179, 157

Storage Tanks 6/ 18/ 97 11/ 24/ 97 3 . 94%  135, 000

Freeman Cent.   6/ 18/ 97 11/ 24/ 97 4 . 19%     47, 865

Fire Truck 10/ 29/ 96 7/ 02/ 97 4. 10%  280, 500

Total Notes Payable 2, 992, 522

Debt service is all due within the next fiscal year,
ended June 30,   1998.

8)    1998 BUDGET

The Town anticipates a fiscal 1998 operating and capital
budget totaling  $15, 838, 407,  which will be financed from the
following sources:

1998 Tax Levies,  State Grants,

Departmental Receipts,  etc. 14, 407, 154

Free Cash 202, 680

Other Available Funds 1, 228, 573

Total 15, 838, 407

In addition,  the Town has carried forward encumbrances of
470, 299 from 1997 and prior years for projects authorized by

the Town Meeting but not yet completed.

9)    COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are several cases pending in courts where the Town of
Norfolk is a defendant.    In the opinion of Town Counsel,  there
is no other pending litigation likely to result,  either '

individually or in aggregate,   in final judgments against the the
Town that would materially affect its financial statements.
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1
STEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 4 ,  the

Town provides postretirement health care and life insurance
benefits,   in accordance

ttasor
lonforhe

af .er

Town' s full- timemployees whoretirefromtheTown
attaining age 55 with at least 10 years of service.  Currently,

32

fretirees
are ndolifedinsurancerement

premiumsnforts. theThe
retirees.  The

55%  of medical and
Town recognizes the cost of providing these benefits using the
pay- as- you- go- by method which expenses the premiums in the year
they are paid.  

The cost incurred in Fiscal 1997   ( net of retiree

contributions)  was  $ 38, 345.

11)  133110T FUND BALANCE

The deficit of  $37 , 633 in the Highway Fund
und

isntthe
s iresult9of,

of

a timing difference,  The town expended

but is not reimbursed by the State until FY 1998.

12)  LANDFILL CLOSURE

In August,   1993 theGovernmental
stiuoanzar

in

its capacityas the
nddetngrgitionfor state

and local governments,   
issued Statement No.  18,  Accounting for

Municipal Waste Landfill Closureandfor
e Careare Costs.

Statement No.   18,  which became effective
r

ended June 30,   
199overnmentalestablishes

unitaaccounting operaterorohaveg
requirements for g general

operated solid waste
landfills.  The accompanying

purpose financial statements reflect

costsninbaccordanceon
owith the
r

landfill closure and postclosure
requirements of Statement No.  18 as d1scussed further below.

In accordance with regulations promulgatedPrytthtian,  the Town
the

Massachusetts Department of Environmentaleco accepting

is required to  "cap"  its landfill,  which stopped p in
wastehin ars.  

aThemonitor

estimatedecurrentll
for a

costs
associatedwiththis

thirty year eneral long- term debt
process which are recordedGonetructon  ("capping")

group include approximate
costs of  $364 , 974 ,   less Bond Anticipation

notes of  $179, 157 and

postclosure monitoring costs
of  $500, 000.

Costs associated with the  "capping"  
will be paid through the

issuance of long- term debt.    
Postclosure costs will be funded

through future
appropriations of tax revenues.

iffeThe
ent actual the

costs to complete these components may be
results of inflation,  

deflation,  effects of public bidding laws

and/ or changes in technology or applicable laws and regulations.
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13)   DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The town offers its
employees a deferred compensation plan  ( thePlan)  

created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section457.    The Plan,  available to all Town employees,  permits themto defer a portion of their salary until future years.     Thedeferred compensation is not available to employees untiltermination,  
retirement death or unforeseeable emergency.The Town funds all amounts of compensation deferred under thePlan,  at the diection of the covered employee.    Assets wereheld through investments in the Town' s name in six investmentfunds including four variable return funds,  the bond fund andthe cash management fund plus a  " 457 Guaranteed Fund, "  managedby the 2CMA Retirement Trust and ten investment funds and lifeinsurance fund by the Copeland Company and reported at a marketvalue of  $  967, 876.

All amounts of
compensation deferred under the Plans,  allproperty rights purchased, with those amounts,  and all incomeattributable to those amounts,  

property and rights of the Townsubject only to the claims of the Town' s general creditors.Participants'  
rights under the Plan are equal to those of

general creditors of the Town in an amount equal to the fairmarket value of the deferred account for each participant.
The Town has no liability for losses under the Plan but doeshave the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinaryprudent investor;    

The Town believes that it is Unlikely thatit will use the assets to satisfy the claims of generalcreditors in. the future.
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TOWN OF NORFOLK,  MASSACHUSETTS

GENERAL FUND,   SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS AND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF TREASURER' S CASH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,   1997

Summary of Transactions:

Balance,  July 1,   1996 3, 252, 878

Receipts 19, 953, 699

Disbursements 18, 210, 651

Balance June 30,   1997 4, 995, 926

Composition of Balance on June 30,  1997,  by Bank:

Cash on Deposit! Noninterest Bearing

Cash on Deposit: Interest Bearing
People' s Savings 113, 113

BankBoston 1, 250, 585

Fleet Bank 1, 437, 855

Boston Safe And Trust 1, 032, 809

Citizen' s Bank 100, 015

Mass,  Municipal Depository. Trust 1, 061, 549

Total Non- Trust Fund Cash 4, 995, 926

Presentation of Cash,  by Fund:

General Fund 1, 467, 107

Special Revenue Fund 461, 681

Capital Projects Fund 2, 138, 975

Enterprise Fund 928, 163

Tbtal
4, 995, 926

See tndependant Auditors Report.
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TOOTFNMENTA1. FINANCIAL. SYSTEM
TORI! OF NOFItLk,

2/ 10/ 98 10: 30: 45
Expenditure Glideline 5i5207- VO4. 40 TARE

IFUF1. OF DETAIL 1. 0 THFU 3. 0 FOF THE FEFIDDISI JUL 01, 1996 THFOUSH 0U0 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT OTO POSTE) ACT 710 FUSTED REMAINING

FEVISF.O ENCUM6EFEE AND IN FFUCFSS AND IN FFOCF.SS 6ALANCE FCT

01 C.CHEFAI. FUN['

5114   $ 00080000

1100 SALAFIES 1. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 100 •- -.-

1010 EXPENSES 154. 00 0. 00 0. 00 52. 49 101. 51 34 ---

4011 EXFENSFS E140.  1, 064. 93 0. 00 0. 00 1, 064. 93 0. 00   ! CO •-  - ----

RIM: MODERATOR 1, 219. 93 0. 00 1. 00 1, 118. 42 101. 51 91

1. 112 SIIICINI.1I
r 94, 278. 93 3/ 8. 07 9?

1100 SALAFIES 94, 657. 00 0. 00 24, 797. 71

3130 AUDIT N7 96 TN 9, 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00.       9, 800. 00 0. 00 100

4011 EXPENSES ENC.  1, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 500. 00 0. 00 100 ---•^ --

4026 UNPAID BILLS OF PRIOR YEARS 3, 317. 63 0. 00 0. 00 2, 637. 63 680. 00 79 -

4200 OFFICE SUFFLIES, Fl16LTCATIONS 3, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 209. 13 3, 365. 24 365. 24-  112 --• ""-- -- 1

4201 PRINTING AND ADVERTISING 3, 636. 00 0. 00 926, 53 3, 523. 51 112. 49 96

4203 WIFNENT FEFATF I MAINT.      600. 00 0. 00 170. 78 1, 012. 16 412. 16-  168 Itll

4204 COPY MACHINE EXPENSES 3, 000. 00 0. 00 890. 04-      1, 698. 00 1, 902, 00 56

4206 FLAGS 300. 00 0. 00 181, 50 181. 50 11%. 50 60

1 4214 DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 1, 360. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 341. 13 18, 07 90 -----__

4215 TELF.FHONE 3, 200. 00 0. 00 864. 51 2, 747. 11 452. 89 85 -

4219 PHYSICIAN 1, 500. 00 0. 00 485. 50 1, 067. 50 432. 50 71

4225 F09146E 2, 495. 00 0. 00 461. 55 2, 027. 05 467. 95 81 ----"

4239 TRAVEL, NEETINBS 3 011E9 1, 540. 00 0. 00 155. 4! 1, 651. 56 111. 56-  107

4290 TONS HAL1. MAINT. E CLEANING 2, 160. 00 0. 00 622. 82 2, 089. 95 70. 05 96 --

4000 FUEL AND UTILITIES 5, 651. 00 0. 00 1, 335. 00 6, 175. 95 524. 95- 109

7200 OUT OF STATE TFAVEL 700. 00 0. 00 0, 00 700. 00 0. 00 100 -.

1922 CONM. FD.- ECONOMIC DEV. CONM. 3, 029. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 000. 00 29. 00 99   ---_-._

7023 COMM. FD- OFEN SPACE FLAN. CDN.  727. 01 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 727. 01 0

8520 NOV 94 ART 33 FY95 ADA AENOV 11, 435. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 11, 4) 5. 00 0

8558 TOMN HILL TMF. 024 94 ATM 6, 839. 98 0. 00 0. 00 6, 839. 25 0. 73 99 --

8566 COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 66- 94 3, 100. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 100. 00 0. 00 100

8571 FOTIEF FFOFEFTY PAINT/ IISFOS 2, 303. 29 0. 00 0. 00 2, 303. 21 0, 00 100 ---

0716 ART6 ATN95 RABIES INNOCOLATI 3, 894. 70 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 894. 70 0

8717 AFT7 ATN95 FEAS. STUDY FOLIC 10, 000. 00 0, 00 0, 00 6, 000. 00 4, 000. 01 60 -

8728 A8112 TM95 TANK REMOVAL 150 000: 00 0. 00 0, 00 129, 117. 81 20, 882. 19 86    -.-

TOTAL: SELECTMEN 329, 745. 61 0. 00 30, 312. 40 286, 157. 57 411, 588. 04 86 -- - - -

5131 ADVISORY BOARD 0. 00 100
0. 00 3, 405. 05 3, 405. 03

1100 5ALAFIFS 31   .
037       -•-

4 695. 00 0. 00 2, 711. 12 4, 374. 12 120. 80 4

4010 EXPENSES 0. 00 20. 00 0. 00 100       - ._

4011 EXPENSES ENC. X87 20. 00 0. 00
600. 00 1, 620. 00 0. 00 100

9900 RESERVE FUND 1, 609. 26-   0, 00 1,

TOTAL: ADVISOFY FOAFD 6, 510. 77 0. 00 4, 506. 39 6, 389, 99 121. 38 18  •

5135 ACCOUNTANT

1100 97 577. 00 0, 00.      24, 744: 25 97,. 75. 6' 9 1.: 11

SAI. AFTES

4200 OFFICE SUPPLIES, PIJBLIFATIONS 1500, 00 0. 00 375, 94 1, 258. 33 241. 67 03

4209 F UIFMF.NT FEFAIF I MAINT.   7, 214, 00 0. 00 96. 00 7344. 59 30. 59 400
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GOVERNMENTAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM
TUNA or RpaF--,2710/ 98 10: 30: 45 Ex endit; re G: idelir,e 11'+ i'

F
LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 THRU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIOD( S)  JUL 01, 1996 THROUGH JUN 30, 1997

GL520F 4' 04, 4p TW

ANNUAL.  ACT QUI FOSTER ACT Off, FOSTET+   FENAINIUG
REVISED ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND TN PROCESS BALANCE PCT 1

01 GENERAL FUND

5135 ACCOUNTANT
4215 TELEPHONE 900. 00 0. 00 173. 27 759. 14 140. 06 Cl ---_-..-4239 TRAVEL, MEETTNGS . 1 DUES 66t. 00 0. 00 247. 51 873. 51 212. 51-  132TOTAL: ACCOUNTANT 107, 857., 00 0. 00 25, 636. 97 107, 711. 26 140. 74 99 •.-__..._-,

5011 ASS9SORS
1100 SALAFTES 75, 287. 95 0, 00 20010. 30 75, 207. 95 0. 00 1002735 REVALUATION 96 TM 14, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 970. 00 1, 970. 00 02, 030, 00 14 -4010 EXFENSES 9, 748. 80 0, 00 1, 362. 00 9, 735. 88 1. 2. 92 99 --8577,  ASSESSOR COMP/ TAX PACK 96TH 10, 000. 00 0. 00 417. 05 10, 000. 00 0. 00 100 --   _.__.TOTAL: ASSESSOFS 109, 036. 75 0. 00 24, 559. 43 96, 993. 83 12, 042, 92 88      ---

5115 TREASURER

1100 SAIAFIES 116, 439. 00 0. 00 29, 076. 71 116, 211. 91 227. 09 993070 BANKING SERVICE 3, 162. 00 0. 00 1, 018. 19 2, 655. 30 506. 70 83    ....... ..4011 CXFENSES ENC. 4, 225. 82 0. 00 0. 00 2, 947. 00 1, 270. 02 69   •__..._4200 OFFICE SUPPLUES, PUBLI: AIIONS 3, 000. 00 0. 00 379. 67 2, 110. 62 809, 38 704203 EQUTFNENT FEFAIF I MAINT.   2, 364. 00 0. 00 379. 45 423. 95 1, 940, 05 17 •    "4205 COMPUTER SERVICES 24, 845. 00 0. 00 6, 294. 14 21, 715. 35 3, 129. 65 87 -•4215 TELEPHONE 2, 500. 00 0. 00 655, 10 1, 970. 30 529. 70 70   -_...-4225 POSTAGE 7, 000. 00 0, 00 0, 823. 22 3, 753, 70 3, 246. 30 534239 TFAVEL, MEFTINGS d PLIES 1, 115. 00 0. 00 38. 50 829. 08 205. 12 74 --TOTAL: TREASURER 164, 650. 82 0. 00 39, 664, 98 152, 618. 01 12, 032. 81 92

5151 TOWN COUNSEL
3090 LEGAL FEES 19, 002. 60 0. 00 5, 511. 46 10, 377. 753890 LEGAL RETAINER 15, 000. 00

624. 05

961       _...TOTAL: 

TOWNLEGA
mom

RETAIN
t 0, 00 3, 750. 00 13, 750. 00 1, 250. 00 91     -•-••-34, 002, 60 0. 00 9, 261. 46 32, 127. 75 1, 074. 85 94 _--..-_.,.-

5152 PERSONNEL BOARD
1100 801: AFIES 2, 234. 00 0. 0 580. 00 2, 060. 96 173. 04 92 --1101 SALARIES ENC.   74. 88 0. 00 0. 00 74. 88 0. 00 1004010 EXPENSES 400. 00 0. 00 13, 97 74. 97 325. 03 18 -TOTAL: PERSONNEL BOARD 2, 708. 88 0. 00 601. 97 2, 210. 81 498. 07 81

5158 TAX TITLE FOFECLOSUFE
4011 EXFENSES EMC.       17, 928. 53 0. 00 2, 646. 00 10, 297, 39 7, 631, 14 57TOTAL: TAX TITLE FORECLOSURE 17, 928, 53 0. 00 2, 646. 00 10, 297, 39 7, 631. 14 57

51G1 TOWN CLERK
1100 SA(. AFIES 47, 521, 00 0. 00 11, 407, 3E 42 329, 07

106.

10
9t      --..-•

4010 EXPENSES 2, 346. 00 0. 00
TOTAL.: TOMN CLF.FM 1, 151, 54 2, 139. 90 206. 10 9l      --._.44, 867. 00 0. 00 12, 558, 90 44, 468. 97 398. 03 99   -

5162 ELECTION:
1100 SALAFIES 3, 075. 00 0. 00 1, 023,, s 5 2, 014. 08 180, 97 94 ---------
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i 40IH
10144 OF ' lP, IPl_v, y,

tt ' 6;
v10/ 18

10AL
30NANCIAL. G' t5TEM

Expen0ihre CLiOeline 01. 520E- VO4, 40 WE 1

2iI0/ 99 10: 30: 45
MIL or 0E1ATl 1. 0 THRU 3, 0 FOR THE PERI00151 301. 00, 1996.   THROUGH JUN 10, 1937

ANNUAL.   -      ACT QED + OSTEO ACT YTP F05TEE'   FEMAIN,TR.G

REVISED ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND TN PROCESS 381.ASCE      ? CT

vt
BEHERAL FUND

167
FLECTIONS 97 _  ----

4010 EXFENSES 3, 875. 00 0. 00 1, 646. 54 3, 970. 92 4. 40

w ' 4011 EXPENSES FNC.  2, 825. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 683. 04 141, 96 14

4027 SFECIAL ELECTION EXFENSE 3, 500. 00 0. 00 1, 912, 72 1, 912. 72 1, 507. 28 54  - --

10TA1: ELECTIONS
13, 275. 00 0. 00 4, 582. 91 01, 360. 76 1, 914. 7.4 85

51E3 VOTEF FE6TSTFATI0i4

1100 SALUTES 4, 315. 00 0. 00 4, 113. 78 4, 243. 22 71, 78 10 ._

4010 EXPENSES 2, 250. 00 0. 00 151. 00 151. 00 2, 019. 00 6

4011 EXFENSES ENC.  1, 400. 00 0. 00 0. 00 610. 00 790, 00 41 --

MK: VOTER REGISTRATION 7, 965. 00 0. 00 4, 264. 78 5 5, 004. 22 2, 3E0, 78 62

5111 CONSF.FVATION COMMISSION
1100 SA1AFIF.S 10, 343. 00 0. 00 2, 774. 69 10, 323. 02 19. 78 19

102i WETLANDS PROTECTION EXP.     8, 342. 60 0. 00 3, 374. 60 4, 161. 52 4, 179, 08 49

4010 EXFENSES 3, 092. 00 0. 00 1, 498. 26 1, 866. 84 1, 225. 16 F 0 --

0012 CONSERVATION FUND 57, 134. 24 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 57, 134. 24 0

10101: CSNSEFVATIDN COMMISSION 78, 911. 84 0. 00 7, 637. 55 16, 353. 30 62, 558. 46 20

TIPS PLANNING BOARD

1100 S41. 001ES 32, 434. 00 0. 00 8, 953. 01 31, 741. 22 692, 78 17 -

038 TRI- TOWN PLANNER 033/ 93 ATM 28, 947. 33 0. 00 16, 047. 39 17, 047. 39 11, 099. 34 58 "

1060 ENGINEEFIN6 SEFVICES 6,000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 39, 96 S, 9F0, 04

1061 ENGINEERING ENC.     12, 276. 87 0. 00 711. 40 1, 638. 66 10, 638. 21 103
0. 00 2, 370. 71 4, 062. 74 963. 76

4010 EXFENSES 5, 026. 041 0. 00 104'   _...._. -

4011 EXPENSES ENCUMBERED 1, 179. 28 0. 00 0. 00 1, 179. 28!  

TOTAL: FLANNING FOAFD   .   85, 863. 48 0. 00 28, 032. 51 55, 701, 25 10, 154. 23    , .    _-_

5176 ZONING/ APPEALS BOARD
1100 SALAFIES 17, 299. 00 0. 00 4, 252. 35 15, 503. 15 1, 709. 05 7

9. 37 1, 185. 13 387. 87 7
0. 00
245

4010 EXPENSES 1, 573, 00
0. 00 332. 45 0. 00 100 ..-.     .

4011 EXFENSES ENC.    332, 45 0. 00
10. 0"    09

TOTAL: ZONING/ APPEALS BOARD 19, 204. 45 0. 00 4, 501. 72     . 17, 107. 53 2, d

5187 F.NGINFF.FING SEFVTCES a6,449, 5849,.O, T    t

162. 50 190. 303060 ENGINEEFING SEFVICES 6, 088. 58 0. 00 5, 837. 08
0 9

3061 ENGINEERING ENC. .    1, 000. 00 0. 00
919, 50 7, 439. 88 448•' n 94 _...._  -

TOTAL.; EN6INEEFING SEFVICES 7, 888. 58 0. 00 5, 919. 58

5189 PERMANENT BUILDING COMM. 6E 0. 61 7, 022 2, 05 71 ot

5

4010 EXPENSES

1100 SAL0R1F.S 4, 670. 00 0. 00 96D.
1H

550. 00 0. 00 15. 02 15, 02
1

8` 28 FEC ATH FENCE AFT 17 ATM95 633. 50 0, 110 0. 00 0. 00 6:   0 0

8589 SCHOOL BLDG NEEDS ARr.NTECI96 10, 000. 00 0: 00 2, 250. 00 8, 100. 00 1, 900. 0 0,

TOTAL; FFFMANENT FDILOIN,G COMM,    15, 853. 50 0. 00 3, 233. 24 16, 77' 5. 63       ", 0' 7  ,    a7

193 8100/ LIABILITY INSURANCE
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GOVE6HY,ENTAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM
TONI, PF HOlrp11d2/ 10/ 98 10: 30: 45 Expenditure Gdideline GL520R- VO4. 40 PARE oLEVEL, OF DETAIL 1, 0 THFU 3. 0 FDF THE FF.FIDOISI JUL 01, 1996 THOUGH JUN 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT RTD POSTED ACT VI0 FOSTED REMAINING
FEVISE0 ENCUNFEFED ANO IN FFOCE85 ANO IN FFOCESS 6ALANCF.       FCT

01 GENEFAI. FOUr'

5193 BLDG/ LIABILITY INSURANCE
7400 EU1L01NG/ LTAFILITY INSUFANCE 154, 230, 00 0. 00 9, 030. 28 118, 258. 03 35, 971, 97 76 ----
TOTAL: BLDG/ LIABILITY INSURANCE 154, 230. 00 0. 00 9, 030. 28 118, 2558. 03 35, 371. 97 76 -------

5115 TOWN FEFOFTS
3430 FEINTING 5, 225. 00 0. 00 4, 823. 35 4, 823. 35 401, 65 92 •••
TOTAL: TOWN REPORTS 5, 225. 00 0. 00 4, 923. 35 4, 823. 35 401. 65 92 --••-.....

5210 POLICE

1100 1A1,AFIES 903, 774. 00 0. 00 217, 579, 39 893, 528. 75 10, 245. 25 90 --------
1101 SALARIES ENC.       16, 038. 21 0. 00 946. 40 11, 819. 44 4, 218. 77 73 ••-••.•-.-4010 EXFENSES 71, 691. 00 0. 00 22, 672. 11 61, 980. 13 1, 810. 87 97 -,.,_.....
4011 EXPENSES ENC. 2, 655, 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 419. 45 235. 55 914900 FUEL ANT UTILITIES 16, 000. 00 0. 00 6, 039. 06 15, 952. 73 47. 27 99    ••••-9582 POLICE COPY MACHINE 96TM 5, 500. 00 0. 00 609. 65 5, 499. 95 0. 05 99 -8584 10LICE FOFTAELE FA0108 96TM 7, 200. 00 0. 00 0. 00 7, 200. 00 0. 00 100 ----------8595 POLICE CRUISER 50, 692. 00 0. 00 455. 00 50, 690. 00 2. 00 990701 AFT 6 ATM 95 FOI. ICE- COMFUTEF 4, 997, 00 0. 00 4, 997. 00 4, 977. 00 0. 00 100 ----!-----8707 ART6 ATM95 POLICE- WEAPONS/ EA 393. 05 0. 00 0. 00 393. 05 0. 00 100 --------  '8715 AR16 AT1495 HEFATITIS INMOCUI. 1, 030. 00 0. 00 0. 00 330. 00 700. 00 32 ••-TOTAL: POLICE 11079, 970. 26 0. 00 253, 197. 61 1, 062, 710. 50 17, 259. 76 98 ---------

5220 FIRE
1100 SALARIES 271, 386. 00 0. 00 68, 626. 09 264, 720. 29 6, 665. 71 97 •-  s
4010 EXPENSES 25, 204. 88 0. 00 5, 249. 72 24, 758. 99 445. 89 994011 EXFENSES ENC. 4, 748. 00 0. 00 0. 00 4, 709, 32 38. 58 99 '---------4900 FEEL AND UTILITIES 2, 500. 00 0. 00 562,

035
2, 795. 95 295. 95-  11!8576 FIFE COMMUNICATION SYS 96TM 100, 000. 00 0. 00 927. 29 98, 178. 28 1, 821. 72 90 ---••-••---8579 FIRE PROTECTIVE WASHER 96TM 3, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 500. 00 0. 00 100 Y8588 FIFE CHIEFS VEHICLE 96 TN 26, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 26, 000. 00 0, 00 1008603 LADDER TRUCK/ FIRE SIM AUG96 390, 500. 00 0, 00 0. 00 380, 500. 00 0. 00 100 •--••-••---0712 AFT6 ATM95 FIFE- FAY EXHAUST       . 6, 000. 00 0, 00 0, 00 .  0. 00 6, 000. 00 0TOTAL: FIRE 919, 838. 88 0. 00 75, 365, 13 805, 162. 83 14, 676, 05 98 ---------

5231 ANTULANCE SF.FVICF.
1100 SALA66TES 66, 621. 00 0. 00 19, 194, 73 64, 060. 35 1, 760, 65 97 -•3120 TRAINING AND TUITION 16, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 16, 000. 00 0, 00 100      -.4010 EXPENSES 5, 535. 75 0. 00 1, 602. 44 5, 438. 37 97, 38 98     -.._4011 EXPENSES ENC. 75. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0, 00 75. 00 .    0TOTAL.: AMEULANCE SETVICE 80, 231. 75 0. 00 20, 877, 17 86, 298, 72 1, 933, 03 91 -   --•

5241 BUILDING DEPARTMENT
1100 SALUTES 112, 147, 00 0. 00 28, 207. 31 100, 886, 02 3, 260. 98 914010 EXPENSES 2, 457, 00 0. 00 794. 05       . 2, 146, 64 310. 36 874800 FUEL. AND UTILITIES 2, 000. 00 0. 00 2, 114Y25 2, 234. 25 2 iTOTAL: BUILDING DEPARTMENT 116 604, 00

37. 09-  III
D. OD 31, 316. 41 113, 266. 91 3, 337. 09 97       ..-.-
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1` t 00041! NF.I! IAL FINANCIAL S' STE
jr or f! olrnLt, t.

1 2110! 78 10: 30: 45 Expeniiture Giiieline G1570 801. 40 636E 5

OIL or DETAIL 1. 0 TM 3. 0 FOG THE FEFTOOISI JUL 01, 1996 TOUGH JUN 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT 910 POSTED ACT YTO POSTED PENAT' ITNG

FF.VISEO EI! CUMFEFED AHD IN FFOCESS AHO IN MUSS EALANCE EN

01 GF.NEFAL ruro

5244 WEIGHTS AND MEASURES

11100 SALAFTES 500. 00 0. 00 500. 00 500, 00 0. 0E 100 -- - •   •

1 1010 EXPENSES 31. 00 0. 00 31. 00 31, 00 0, 00 I00 - --• -".-

10TAL; WEIGHTS AND NF.ASUFES 531. 00 0. 00 531. 00 531. 00 0. 00 100

i5271 CIVIL DEFENSE

I1100 SAI.AFIES 570. 00 0. 00 570. 00 570, 00 0. 00 100 - -.-  •-•

1010 EXPENSES 1, 870. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 068. 95 801. 05 57 -

1
TOTAL: CIVIL DEFENSE 2, 440. 00 0. 00 570. 00 1, 638. 95 801. 05 f7 -

1 5292 ANIMAL INSPECTOR

1100 SALAFIES 1, 656. 00 0. 00 414. 00 1, 656. 00 0. 00 100  ---    --

1010 EXPENSES 64. 00 0. 00 60, 00 60. 00 4. 00 93

TOTAL: ANIMAL. TNSFECTOF 1, 720. 00 0. 00 474. 00 1, 716. 00 4. 00 99

1 5293 ANIMAL CONTROL

1100 SALUTES 11, 341. 00 0. 00 3, 225. 25 11, 341. 00 0. 00 100 -

4010 EXPENSES 1, 500. 00 0. 00 197. 00 1, 533. 77 31. 77-  102 ••- -. --

4800 FUEL AND UTILITIES 679. 00 0. 00 251. 49 418. 62.  260. 38 61 --

TOTAL: ANIMAL CONTROL 13, 520. 00 0. 00 3, 673. 74 13, 293. 39 226. 61 98 ------"--

5294 SHADE TFEE DEFAFTMENI

1010 EXPENSES 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 0

TOTAL; SHADE TREE DEPARTMENT 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 0

5235 TFEE NAFOEN

1100 SALAFIES 750. 00 0. 00 625. 00 625, 00 125, 00 03

4010 EXPENSES 23, 237. 00 0. 00 14, 004. 70 73, 237, 00 0. 00 100 -   -....

TOTAL: TFEE NAFOEN. 23, 987. 00 0. 00 14, 629. 70 23, 862. 00 125. 00 99

5298 FIRE/ POLICE DISPATCHER r .  _ _

1100 801401E0 J47, 202. 00 0. 00 37, 668. 06 141, 311. 92 5, 970. 00

1010 EXPENSES 4, 900. 00 0. 00 2, 030. 28 4, 223. 73 676. 27 86

4011 EXPENSES ENC.     63. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0, 00 63. 00 0

I0IAL: FIRE/ POLICE DISPATCHER 152, 245. 00 0. 00 39, 699. 14 145, 535. 65 6, 709. 35 95 --..-•----

5299 FIFE/ FOLICE STATION
4010 EXPENSES 29, 235. 00 0. 00 8, 648. 81 26, 980. 91 2, 254. 0'!    92  -..__._-
4011 EXPENSES ENC. 1, 360. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 286, 42 71. 58

4800 FUEL AND UTILITIES 24, 500. 00 0. 00 4, 623. 95 20, 088. 57 4, 411. 49 81    -..

1801 FUEL/ UTILITIES ENC.  1, 925. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 693. 25 231. 75 8'

8578 F/ F STATION CEILING TILES 96 3, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0, 00 3, 500. 00 0

0, 00 0. 00 13, 000. 00 0
8581 P/ F STATION DICTAPHONE 36TH 13, 000. 00 0. 00

i
TOTAL: FIFE/ POLICE STATION 73, 520. 00 0. 00 13, 272. 76 50, 049. 15 23, 470. 85 t1

S? 00 EDUCATION
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FINANCES

GOVEFMKF.NTAL FII4AHCIAI. SYSTEM TOOL! or 1.. 41-1167

2/ 10/ 99 10: 30: 45 Expenditgre Gqideline 6L520R- 1) 04, 40 , qrc

LEVE1. OF DETATO. 1. 0 THFU 3, 0  - FUF THE FE61O0( S)  JUL 01, 1996 THFOUGH JUN 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT OTD ? OSTEO ACT ? TO POSTED REMAINING

FEVISED ENCUMFEFED AND IN MOMS AND IN FFOCF.SS FALANCE FCT

01 GENE6AL FU11D

5300 EOUCATION

4011 FY 93 SCHOOL E) 1CUMEE6ED 12., 126. 74 0. 00 1, 315. 00 9, 934. 39 2, 192. 35 01 ------

40124012 FY 94 SCHOOL ENCUMSEREO 0, 711. 47 0. 00 0. 00 1, 731. 47 0. 00 100

4013 FY 95 SCHOOL [ ECUMEEFED 3, 477. 89 0. 00 0. 00 3, 477. 88 0. 00 100 --•---..--

4014 SCHOOL EHCUM9ERED 1996 156, 110. 20 0. 00 5, 476. 73 136, 566. 52 19, 543. 69 87      ---

8563 SCHOOL WINDOWS 844 94 ATM 6, 586. 36 0. 00 0. 00 6, 506. 36 0. 00 100 ----...--._.

8599 WINDOWS MAC8RTOE/ GR 4 1M96 84, 546. 00 0. 00 3, 031. 00 7, 236. 45 77, 309. 55 8

8601 CAFFET 06 5 / 9196 15, 047. 00 0. 00 0. 00 15, 047. 00 0. 00 100 •••--••- •-

8721 188115 A1M95 ROOF/ PLAYGRO/ MIN 67, 743. 67 0. 00 772. 00 67, 743, 53 0. 14 99 -------

TOTAIs EDUCATION 347, 369. 32 0. 00 10, 594. 73 248, 323. 60 99, 045. 72 71 --•--•----

530;   KING PHILIP REGIONAL

4010 EXFENSES 2, 312, 466. 00 0. 00 578, 116. 50 2, 312, 466. 00 0. 00 100 ------ --

8718 ART6 ATM96 K., P, CAPITAL PLAN 36, 356. 00 0. 00 0. 00 36, 356. 00 0. 00 100 -•--•- --

TOTAL; KING FHTI. IF 6EGTO1IAl.    2, 348, 022. 00 0. 00 578, 116. 50 2, 348, 822. 00 0. 00 100 ----  - .

5303 TOI- COUNTY REGIONAL

4010 EXPENSES 150, 336, 00 0. 00 25, 230. 00 150, 336. 00 0, 00 100 -    ........

TOTAL: TRI- COUNTY REOIONAL 150, 336, 00 0. 00 25, 230. 00 150, 336. 00 0. 00 100 --•••-----

5420 HIGHWAY GEFA6TMENT

1100 SALUTES 351, 599. 00 0. 00 96, 091. 36 346, 019. 35 5, 579. 65 98 •---

3060 ENGINEERING SERVICES 10, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 071, 70 6, 128. 51 3, 871. 49 61      --

3073 PAGING 816 VICES 220. 00 0. 00 50. 85 203. 40 16. 60 92 .....-.:•......

4011 EXPENSES ENC,       13, 048. 00 0. 00 0. 00 9, 314. 93 3, 733. 07 71 ---••-

4202 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 20, 085. 00 0. 00 3, 697. 53 20, 075. 68 9. 32 99 •-----.....

4204 COPY MACHINE EXPENSES 1, 050. 00 0. 00 0, 00 832. 50 217. 50 79 =    --

4207 6108, ADVEITTSING, FOSTAGF.  1, 650, 00 0. 00 840. 10 1, 266, 26 383. 74 76 -

4215 TELEPHONE 2, 150. 00 0. 00 797. 89 2, 366. 52 216, 52-  010 •-•---- -• 1

42.16 NATE;   500. 00 0. 00 338. 31 523. 31 23. 31-  104 -•--- -. -

4220 SPECIAL PROJECTS 58, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 58, 000. 00 0

4223 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1, 030. 00 0, 00 500. 31 1, 029. 2.8 0. 72 99 ..- --

4238 STREET 518N5 3, 000. 00 0. 00 20. 98-       3, 058. 56 58, 56-  101 -

4239 TFOVEL, MEETINGS 4 OUES 300. 00 0. 00 0. 00 366. 12 66. 12-  122 ----•-----

4241 UNIFORM CLEANING 3, 000. 00 0. 00 474. 63 2, 127. 34 872. 66 70 .-

4244 ST6FET LIMING 5, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 599. 00 99. 00'   101

4245 CATCH BASIN CLEANING 7, 500. 00 0. 00 1, 386. 45 7, 499, 45 0, 55 99 -----.--

4248 60AD EFTAT6S AND MAINTENANCE 45, 320. 00 0, 00 2, 491, 74 44, 935, 46 384. 54 99  --•-

4249 POLICE DETAILS 2, 080, 00 0. 00 208, 00-       2, 600. 00 520. 00- 125

4251 F6OFESSIONAL LICENCES 240. 00 0. 00 55. 00 215. 00 25. 00 89

4252 GUARD RAIL REPAIR 2, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 000, 00 0

4253 VEHICLE INSFECTIONS 200. 00 0. 00 62, 50 112. 50 167. 50 40 ----

4254 COMPUTER EXPENSE 996. 00 0. 00 575. 14 893. 86 2. 14 99 --------..
4255 60( 10, 6EFAT6/ MA1NTENANCE 600. 00 0. 00 620. 00 716. 20 116. 20-  113 -

4256 TRAFFIC CONTROL MAINTENANCE 1, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 163, 14 t, 336. 86 10

4289 ENTICING MAINTENANCE 9, 270. 00 0. 00 1, 536. 92 7, 596. 34 1, 673, 66  _ 01 -------
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FINANCES

tn11i OF 10:. r0l s, x

10/ 480 10: 30:30: 45

OOVERH94HCtAI
SYSTEM

Exienditar•e Gaidetine GL5204• V' 04. 4( : Al,F

1p

LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 THRU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIODIS)  JUL 01, 1996 THROUGH JUN 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT OTD FUSEE(' ACT YTI' 1O6TED F . 00101NG

REVISED ENCUNaERED ANO IN PROCESS AND IH PROCESS MANCE PCT

01 GENERAL FUND

5420 HIGHWAY DETA618F.N•T
0513 HAY DUNE 1FUCUS/ 2 TW96 134, 634, 28 0. 00 0. 00 134, 634. 28 0. 00 100 --    --

10181: HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
675, 452. 28 0. 00 110, 236. 51 598, 276. 99 77, 175. 29 99

1; 421 HIGHWAY GAFRDE

4400 FUEL. AND UTILITIES 31, 319. 00 0. 00 592. 20 30, 144. 18 1, 173. 82 96 "-, -.-.-_

4801 FUEL/ UTILITIES ENC.     305. 84 0. 00 0. 00 305. 84 0. 00 100

IOTAL: IIIGHWAY FA6AGF. 31 623. 84 0. 00 592. 20 30, 450, 02 1, 173. 82 96 -

5423 SNOW A110 ICE CONTROL

10 EXFENSE.G 95, 850. 36 0, 00 36, 167. 74 122, 254, 49 26, 404. 13-  127 --       -.. H

OVAL: SNOW AND ICE CONTROL 95, 050. 36 0. 00 36, 167. 74 122, 254. 49 26, 404, 13-  127 1'

5424 6EC6EATION FIELD WO6k 0 100

1100 SALAFTES 2, 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 800. 00 4,

00.00 100 ---- ---  --.

4010 EXPENSES 593. 00 0. 00 0. 00 593. 00

TOTAL: 6EC6EATION FIELD WO6K 3, 393. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 393. 00 0. 00 100 -•-•-------

5431 TRANSFER STATION

1100 5R1A6IES 85, 061. 00 0. 00 25, 974. 31 79, 597. 84 5, 463. 16 11 ---
j:

3430 PRINTING 1, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 600. 00 1, 831. 95 831. 95•  191 -

4011 EXFENSES ENC.    367. 00 0. 00 0. 00 366. 51 0, 49 97       . -

4203 VEHICLE REPAIR 8 MAINTENANCE 7, 986. 00 0. 00 1, 940. 50 6, 590. 34 1, 395.
66 02

4715 TELEFHONE/ TS 770, 00 0. 00 189. 58 812. 30 42. 30-  10      -  -

4221 RECYCLING COSTS/ TS 6, 140. 00 0. 00 1, 674. 50 6, 239. 20 99. 20-  101

4222 T6ASH 6EMOVAl. FEES/ TS 58, 800. 00 0. 00 15 420. 54 49, 396. 07 9, 403. 93 84   -

4224 FACILITY MAINTENANCE 3, 183. 00 0. 00 X351. 40 1, 622. 35 1, 560, 65 50     .-

5 515. 00 0. 00 0. 00 595. 10 00. 10-  115   -       ,

422..   FOSTAGE 419. 95 220. 15 tis -.-.'

1 4241 UNIFORMS'  640. 00 0. 00 140. 01

539. 94 1, 323. 71 35. 71 107   -

4242 GEN. UFE6A1IN6 METE0IALS/ TS 1, 288. 00
0. 00 2, 732, 04 4, 923,.

00
71

3, 084. 41 51

4247 STICKERS A DECALS/ TS 8, 000. 00
0. 00 80. 75 6, 930. 71 254. 29 96 ---

4800 FUEL AND UTILITIES 7, 085. 00
0. 00 29. 41 204. 35 12

480t FUEL/ UTILITIES ENC,     233. 76 0. 00

8339 LANDFILL CLOS LTOA3- 10/ 91ATM 105, 357. 00 0. 00 16, 826. 93 88, 340. 36 17, 016, 64 81

TOTAL: TRANSFER STATION 206 425. 76 0. 00 67, 372. 42 248, 911. 69 37, 514. 07 36  -

5417 LANDFILL 76. 93       ' 1, 737, 24 26, 01' ' t,    ' 7

3065 F.H6INF.F.6ING/ LANDFILL 35, 750. 00 0. 00 a

1066 LEACHATE REMOVAL/ LANDFILL 17, 220. 00 0. 00 17 908. 94 33, 165. 76 15, 945. 76-  1
11

i593.84 fy, 214. b4 2,44. 36    '+`

1 401AL: LANDFILL 59, 535. 00
DEFT' S 9, 535. 00 0, 00

59, 535. OD 41. 00 10, 569. 51 49, 173, 64 10, 361. 36 01 : a-,-

5440 SEWERAGE 220, 00 2, 09fi, 04 q

1= 7110 GOITDWASTE DISFOSAL 2, 300. 00 0. 00 2. 0. 00

x, 7fi0, 00
0. 0';2 100

0. 00 0. 00
770. 00

1 TA CHARLES RIVER NTR POLL ASSES 5, 070. 00 0. 00 2, 990. 020       ",990. 00 2, 000. 00 rA _....

TOTALs SEWAGE
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FINANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM
2x' 10/ 99 10: 30: 45 TOWN OF 40? Ff,xpenethre Guieeline

GL` 20G- VO4, 4010LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 TNRU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIOD( S1 JUL 01, 1996 THROUGH JUN 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT QTD FOSTER ACT YTP FOSTEG REMAINING
REVISED ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCT

01 GENERAL FUND

5491 CTNETECY
1100 SALAMI.     18, 621. 00 0. 00 1, 395. 75 18, 619. 99 1. 01 99 --2736 VETERANS GRAVE RESTORATION 430. 02 0. 00 0. 004010 EXFEHBF,S 0. 00 430. 02 03, 220. 00 0. 00 695. 79 3, 041. 72 178, 28 94 ---.------4011 EXPENSES ENC.    86. 00 0. 00 0. 00 86. 00 0. 00 1008585 CEMETERY MOWERS - 2 96TM 22, 455. 85 0. 00 124. 40 22, 455. 85 0. 00 100 -     -.-TOTAL: CEMETERY 44, 812. 87 0. 00 2, 215. 94 44, 203, 56 609. 31 98

5492 CUSTODIAN OF VETERANS GRAVES
1100 SALARIES 300. 00 0. 00 300. 00 300. 00 0. 00 100 ---------4010 EXPENSES 919. 00 0. 00 539. 78 919. 008350 VETERANS MEMORIAL 96 TM 36 918, 00 0. 00 100

137. 00
0. 00 17, 301. 26 36, 702. 48 215. 52 99 .........___..TOTAL: CUSTODIAN OF VETERANS GRAVES 38, 137. 00 0. 00 17, 301. 26 37, 921. 48 215. 52 99       -

5495 STFEEI LIGHTING
4810 STREET LIGHTING 27, 220. 00 0. 00 8, 321. 11 26, 653. 65 566. 35 97 -TOTAL: STREET LIGHTING 27, 220. 00 0. 00 8, 321. 11 26, 653, 65 566. 35 97 --•••-•---
5510 EOM OF HEALTH
1100 SALARIES1100 EXPENSESLRI32,596.

0030
0. 00 9, 235. 20 36, 257. 00 16: 00 99 -..   .--.--

4010 ED OF ELTH LASER INTER 96TM
0. 00 11, 658. 73 32, 595, 89 0. 11 998516L; FPAF OF HEALTH

600. 00 0, 00 586. 95 586. 95 13. 05 3769, 469, 00 0. 00 21, 480. 88 69, 439. 84 29. 16 99
5520 STICIAI. FROGRANS
3180 HUMAN SERVICES FROGFANS 6, 650. 00.    0. 00TOTAL: SPECIAL PROGRAMS 0. 00 6, 650. 00 0. 00 100 ,.-6, 650, 00 0. 00 0. 00 6, 650. 00 0. 00 100 -------
5541 COUNCIL ON AGING
1100 SALARIES

48, 676. 00 0. 00 12, 373. 48 46, 798. 32 1, 877, 68 96 -
2700 FACILITIES RENTAL 3, 000. 00 0. 002710 TRANSFORTpTIOM F.XFEN5F.  750. 00 2, 906, 25 93. 75 96 ---
2710 SERVICE TATIOPROGRAM XF

00/ 93TM
2, 500, 00 0. 00

10, 000. 00 0. 00
765.

761 2, 398. 23 101.

7700 95 .._...   ...
4010 f.XFENSE5 5, 909. 91 8, 63: x, 91 1, 360. 09 86
010L: COUNCIL

FXFINSES

AGING
3, 370. 00 0. 00 1, 052. 29 3, 464, 6410267, 546, 00 0. 00 20, 851. 44 64, 207. 35 3, 338. 65 95

5543 VETERAN' S SERVICES
1100 SALARIES

2, 954. 00 0. 000 AARI738.48 2, 630. 11 323, 89 89
4010 EXPENSESEXPESES SEHEIITS

146. 00 0. 00 0. 00 58. 13500. 00 0. 00 0, 00 ,   0. 00
0`. 00 30

TOTAL: VETERAN' S SERVICES 3, 600. 00
0.00911

70 0
738. 48 2, 688. 24 911. 76 74

5610   (. I8PAPY
1100 SALARIES

04000 EXPENSES 00 43, 116. 98 156, 617. 4(   26. 54 99
4010 EXP1 SEP UTILITIES

77, 560. 11 0. 00 19, 632. 81'      71 600. 079, 699, 00 0, 00 1, 771. 16 9,, 641. 29 7775 .. 3131
1

99
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FINANCES

71111

arr; $ VERNMENTAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM TO40 Or 403rTI. C,

I0rli22, I0/ 98 10: 30: 45
Expendittr•e Otideline 0l.520E- 104, 40 101' F

LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 THRU 3. 0 FOR THE ? ERIODIS)  JUL 01, 1996 THROUGH JUN 30, 1997

AH: IUAI.  ACT OTP FOSTEP ACT YTP x08110 REUAPNI!! 0

REVISED ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS MANN       ? CT

4

01 GENERAL FUND

1041: LTIRARY 249, 903. 11 0. 00 64, 520. 95 243, 059. 16 43, 35 39 -- --- .  1u
i

5670 RECREATION

X 1100 SALARIES 35, 050. 00 0. 00 9, 647.. 84 31, 725. 23 3, 1)' 4. 77 10 .-_..__.

4010 EXPENSES 15, 444. 17 0. 00 3, 284. 53 14, 585. 45 850. 72 94 -------   i

HMI RECREATION 50, 494. 17 0. 00 12, 927. 37 46, 310. 68 4, 183. 49 91

5691 HISTORICAL COMMISSION

4d10 FXFENSES 323. 00 0. 00 276. 11 206. 11 36. 83 OF ---  ---

1I01AL: HISTORICAL COMMISSION 323. 00 0. 00 276. 11 206. 11 36, 89 8R -•------

5692 MEMORIAL PAY

4010 EXPENSES 525. 00 0. 00 473. 00 473, 00 52. 00 90   -----  -

MODAL: MEMORIAL DAY 525. 00 0. 00 473. 00 473. 00 52. 00 90 ----- --  
I

X5710 MATURING DEFT

2;:

9010 60ND REGISTRATION FEE 1, 000. 00 0. 00 172. 00 1, 013. 00 13. 00•   101 ..

9159 TOWN HILL DEBT 50, 000. 00 0. 00 50, 000. 00 50, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9160 TEMFORARY INTEREST 3, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 950. 00 1, 950. 00 1, 050. 00 6"

19110 CERTIFICATION NOTES/ BONDS 300. 00 0. 00 640. 00 745. 00 445. 00-  248

9451 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ROOF DEFT 15, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 15, 000. 00 0. 00 100   -.

9152 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ROOF INT. 11, 970. 00 0, 00 0. 00 11, 970. 00 0. 00 100  -

I 9453 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LAND DEFT 24, 000. 00 u, 00 0. 00 24, 000. 00 0. 00 100  ...-___ _.       4
09454 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LAND INT. 19, 383. 00 0. 00 0. 00 19, 383. 00 0. 00 100      --

9455 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL FLGG. DERT 327, 000. 00 0, 00 0. 00 327, 000. 00 0. 00 104

9456 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 80LG. INT.      306, 699. 00 0. 00 0. 00 306, 699. 00 0. 00 100 -..   _-

19465 PAY SCHOOL APPITJONAL DEFT 16, 000, 00 0. 00 0. 00 16, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9466 DAY SCHOOL ADDITIONAL INT.  9, 722. 00 0. 00 0, 00 9, 722. 00 0. 00 100

9467 LANOFILI. CLOSE DEFT 31, 000. 00 0. 00 31, 000. 00 31, 000. 00 0. 00 100

h 9468 LANDFILL CLOSE INTEREST 22, 920. 00 0. 00 22, 754. 97 22, 754. 97 165. 03 99

19473 F/ C CAFITAL TENF INTEREST 35, 000. 00 0, 00 35, 000. 00 35, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9474 TOWN HALL/ DRAIN/ CAP INTEREST 6, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 365. 00 1, 365. 00 4, 635. 00 2..

9475 TOWN HALL TEMP DEET 30, 750. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 30, 750. 00 0

2- 9476 DRAINAGE DEBT 58, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 58, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9477 DRAINAGE INTEREST 31, 980. 00 0. 00 0. 00 31, 980. 00 0. 00 100

9482 STORAGE TANK TEMP DEBT 15, 000, 00 0. 00 15, 000. 00 15, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9483 STORAGE TONY TEMP INTERES 9, 000, 00 0. 00 4, 309, 04 4, 389, 04 4, 610. 16 48

TOTAL: MATURING DEBT 1, 023, 724. 00 0. 00 162, 271. 01 982, 971. 01 40, 757. 01 90  -__- -. -

ti

ND

x, 57;' 0 RATER DEBT

1141 HIGHLAND I. AkE TENF PE6 T 19, 390, 00 0, 00 '   . 19, 990. 00 19, 990. 00 O. Ou fap      _ -.

9142 HIGHLAND LAKE TEMP INTEREST 37, 620, 00 0, 00 13, 357. 11 13, 357. 11 24, 207. 83 11 -

9162 IU CHLAND LAE TEMFOFARY DEFT 19 909. 50 0, 00 0. 00 1, 140. 00 18, 849.` 0 5

9457 NOON HILL DEBT 71, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 71, 000. 00 0. 00  . 100

9458 NOON. HILL INTEREST 65 396. Qp 0, 00 0. 00 65, 397. 00 1, 00 IOC      .  ---

13 000. 00 0. 00 0, 00 13, 000. 00 0. 00 100 ...   -

9483 POND STREET DEBT r

1
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FINANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FINANCIAL. SYSTEM
TONT or 001rg11

2/ 10/ 98 10: 30: 45 Expenditure G• aideline 015204- VO4. 40 Par-,ELEVE1. OE DETAIL 1. 0 THRO 3. 0 FOR THE FERMIS)  JUL 01, 1996 THROUGH JU1! 30, 1997

ANNUAL ACT QED POSTED ACT YTU POSTED REMAINING
REVISED ENCUMBERED AND IN FROCESS AND IN FROCESS EALAHCE ITT

01 GENERAL ruNt,

5720 WATER DEBT
9464 FOND STREET INTEREST 12, 201. 00 0. 00 0. 00 12, 201. 00 0. 00 100 -••---
9469 DEDHAN STREET DEBT 30, 000, 00 0. 00 7, 531. 00 22, 531. 00 7, 469. 00 75
94? 0 DEDHAM STREET INTEREST 17, 806. 35 0. 00 246. 96 9, 774. 46 8, 031. 09 54 --
9479 LITCHFIELO/ HARLON DEBT 16, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0, 000. 00 8, 000. 00 50 ---•-
9479 LITCHFILED/ HARL. OW INTEREST 3, 967. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 167. 00 0. 00 100      --
9480 LELAND DEBT 10, 039. 21 0. 00 0. 00 6, 000. 00 4, 039, 21 59 -- --
9481 LELAND INTEREST 3, 607. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 607. 00 0. 00 100 ---------
1485 POND ST ADDITIONAL DEBT 2, 000. 00 0. 00 0, 00 2, 000, 00 0. 00 100 --------
1486 FOND ST ADDITIONAL. INTEREST 997. 00 0. 00 0, 00 996. 50 0. 50 99 --------
TOTAL: MATER DEBT 323, 613. 06 0. 00 41, 125. 07 252, 961. 07 70, 651. 99 70 --•----

5830 COUNTY ASSESSMENTS/ CHARGES
6000 COUNTY TAX 45, 846, 00 0. 00 22, 923. 07 45, 846, 15 0. 15•  100 •---•--...-
TOTAL: COUNTY ASSESSMENTS/ CHARGES 45, 846, 00 0. 00 22, 923. 07 45, 846. 15 0. 15-  100 -•-•----••

5835 CHERRY SHEET CHARGES
6120 MOTOR VEHICLE EXC. TAX FILLS 0. 00 0, 00 1, 900. 00-   0. 00 0. 00 0
6121 MOSQUITO CONTROL 16, 192. 00 0. 00 3, 485, 00 15, 629. 00 563. 00 96

122 NET. AIR FO1LUT1GM CONTROL 2, 210. 00 0. 00 552. 50 2, 210. 00 0, 00 100 -•••---.--•-
6123 MET, AREA PLANNING COUNCIL 1, 977. 00 0. 00 494. 25 1, 977. 00 0. 00 100 ---------
6124 N. B. T. A. ASSESSMENT 217, 613. 00 0. 00 54, 111. 25 217, 321. 00 292. 00 99 ---••---•-6126 SCHOOL CHOICE ASSESSMENT 0. 00 0, 00 14, 368. 00 45, 359. 00 45, 359. 00•• 9999 41
612/   NON RENEWAL EXCISE TAX 2, 640. 00 0. 00 2, 640. 00 2, 640, 00 0, 00 100
TOTAL: CHERRY SHEET CHARGES 240, 632. 00 0. 00 73, 671. 00 285, 136. 00 44, 504. 00-  118 --•---    - 1

5913 ENFLOYF: E BENEFITS
1710 MEDICAL INSURANCE 250, 348. 51 0. 00 62, 220. 81 250, 340. 51 0. 00 1001 720 LIFE INSURANCE 7, 529. 00 0. 00 1, 700. 25 6, 774. 51 754. 49 8?1730 LONGEVITY 44, 450. 00 0. 00 0. 00 44, 410. 80 39. 20 991735 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 3, 500, 00 0. 00 826. 59 3, 214. 71 285, 29 911736 MEDICARE.    55, 000. 00 0. 00 17, 674. 21 54, 231. 18 768. 02 98 ---------1740 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 44, 555. 01 0. 00 6, 401. 67 41, 767. 59 2, 787. 42 931750 STATE/ COUNTY RETIREMENT 464, 976. 00 0. 00 0. 00 462, 526. 40 2, 449. 60 99 •--•-•-----8730 ART 2/ 3 IN 96 COMPSCH/ RECLAS 10, 00 0. 00 0, 00 0, 00 10. 00 0TOTAL; EMFLOYEE FERMIS 870, 368. 52 0. 00 88, 823. 53 863, 273. 70 7, 094. 02 99 --•----••-.

3390 TRANSFERS
5908 RORI; MANS CONE CLAIMS 0. 00 0, 00 35, 971. 97 35, 971. 97 35, 971. 97. 9999 11
9990 TRANSFER OUT 0, 00 0, 00 106, 487. 08 106, 487. 09 106, 487. 08- 9999 1
TOTAL: TRANSFERS 0, 00 0. 00 142, 459, 05 142, 459, 05 142, 459, 05 9999 - w-••---..-- u

TOTAL.: GENERAL FUND 10, 640, 289. 92 0, 00 2, 205, 710, 98,  10, 209, 262, 01 431, 027. 91 95    -..._
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IFINANCES
RI' AOt' EF! IHEHTAL FINANCIAL- SYSTEM I0R1 OF 10' 4014, I.

OE vloo8 10030: 45 Expenditar Oqi4e1Tne 0L570P 004. 4111. 0,,1_   II

uoEI. 1F DETAIL 1. 0 THFU 3. 0 FOF THE FEFIOD( 8)  JUL 01, 1996 THFOUDH JUN 30, 1397

ANNUAL ACT QTD POTTED OCT YTD ? OSTEO 2ENAINI! I8

REVISED ENCUMEEFED AND IN FROCESS AND IN FFOCESS 6ALANCE Ft. 1

r,    
RATER ENTEFFFTSE FUND

450 WATER DEPARTMENT

1100 SALARIES 149, 478, 00 0. 00 38, 884. 07 143, 164. 00 6, 314. 00 75 -.    -

2030 PURCHASE OF WATER 7, 900. 00 0. 00 840. 85 1, 843. 58 6, 006, 4'    21  -

3020 ACQUIFEF FFOTECTION 25, 724. 50 0. 00 11, 745. 92 24, 974. 50 750. 00 17    -- -

1026 ACQUIFER DELIN. 815 905TH 600. 00 0. 00 0. 00 600. 00 0. 00 100

7060 ENGINEERING SERVICES 25, 652. 00 0. 00 337. 70 301. 90-     25, 9.53. 90 I

3061 ENGINEERING ENC.      1, 080. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 080. 00 0. 00 100

1075 SOURCE DELINIATIOH 119•- 10/ 91 30, 000. 00 0, 00 0. 00 0, 00 30, 000. 00 0

i 3^. 22 NEW WELL EXPLORATION 06- 92 19, 325. 25 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 19, 325. 25 0

9229 TEST WELL WORK 116/ 93ATH 165. 74 0. 00 0. 00 165. 74

3^ 24 NTR TEST WELL ART S STM 1/ 95 437. 21 0. 00 0. 00 437. 21 0. 00 100

4M0 EXFENSES 70, 315. 00 0. 00 1, 435. 73 40, 090. 43 30, 224. 57 57 .._..--

40!!   EXPENSES ENC.    428. 54 0. 00 0. 00 428. 54 0. 00 100 ----

4026 MAID FILLS FROM FFIOF YRS.  214, 32 0. 00 0. 00 214, 32 0, 00 100

4050 INDIRECT COSTS 60, 391. 00 0. 00 1, 394. 43 49, 735. 05 10, 545. 15 9'       -

4300 FROOJECIS ( FUDGET)    61, 500. 00 0. 00 10, 131, 70 10, 131, 70 51, 360. 10 If -

4800 FUEL AND UTILITIES 34, 925. 00 0, 00 3, 866. 53 13, 769. 48 21, 155, 52 T   --

4901 FUEL/ UTILITIES ENC.   1, 517. 63 0. 00 0. 00 1, 517, 43 0, 00 110 ... ..........

1200 OUT OF STATE TRAVEL 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 0

A336 FOND STREET NNE 23- 91 ( LID) 6, 565. 00 0, 00 0. 00 6, 565. 00 0, 00 1011 - -

8560 SPRUCE RO. PUMP ST, 434 94ATM    ' 139, 890. 32 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 139, 810. 32 0

0' 61 SCHOOL ST. NATEF MAINN35 94TM 36, 000. 00 0, 00 0. 00 0. 00 36, 000. 00 0

8562 LELAND RD MAIN EST. N36 94TM 10, 258. 83 0. 00 0. 00 10, 258. 83 0. 00 100 .      ._ ..

8567 MAIN ST. MATEF MAIN 138 94ATM 735. 80 0. 00 0. 00 73'. 80 0, 00 100 "    _   .

i0' 8568 ART 36 ST4 NOV 94 DEDHAM NNE 4, 800. 12 0. 00 0. 00 1, 797, 52-      6, 597, 64 37

0572 ART 38 STM NOV 94 LITCHFIELD 8, 875. 04 0, 00 0. 00 8, 544. 80 330. 24 14. -

0600 H' LAND LK A116- 11/ 95( 627000)      457, 933. 33,    0. 00 465, 222. 59-     18, 204. 26-    476, 137. 51 3

0722 AFT18 TM95 LANDFUFC Nil SFY 145, 000. 00 0, 00 157, 708. 00-      13, 188, 00•    158, 188. 00 4

0723 A0T19 T895 NEM SOURCE/ ENO/ AP 7, 154. 32 0. 00 995. 49 6, 572. 35 581. 97 41 .

724 AFT21 9195 MILL FVF ENG/ F. S.       31, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0, 00 31, 000. 00 0

8731 WTR LAND ACQUTS ART38 STM96 3, 238. 44 0, 00 0. 00 1, 238. 44 0. 00 100 - -

TOTAL NATE; DF.FAFTHEMT 1, 3,41, 106, 39 0. 00 553, 238. 17-    240, 6686. 57 1, 050, 419.;+ 7 21  -

5460 WATER DEPT DEPRECIATION EXP
rr

1111 1111

9720 FUILDINOS 0. 00 0. 00 3, 552. 00 3 55. 00 3, 552 00•   
111

7711 MAINS 0. 00 0. 00 78, 734. 00 78, 734. 00 78, 734, 00 114

i 1732 VALVES 0, 00 0. 00 8, 441. 00 0, 441. 00 8, 441. 00 1191      .-,__... 00rt

9733 STAND PIPES 0, 00 0. 00 7, 130, 00 7, 138. 00 7,'. 38. 00 1111 1011

7734 WELLS 0, 00 0. 00 7, 180. 00 7, 180, 00 7, 18( t 00. 1149   -
1

n 9740 EQUIPMENT 0, 00 0. 00 00, 108. 00 10, 100. 00 10, 109. 00- 49`11

1, 3751 SEFViGE LATERALS 0. 00 0. 00 18, 875, 00 18, 875. 00 18, 875. 00- 740'    
111

3752 METERS 0. 00 0. 00 5, 155, 00 5, 155. 00 5, ivr 1P   , 44a i1S1

1780 HYDRANTS 0. 00 0, 00 12, 067, 00 12, 067, 00 12, 06',, 00  ' 1; 41 11

3 3, 1.' 4. 10 9 9' x' 1 t u t

9770 VEHICLES 0. 00 0. 00 3, 124. 00 124. 80 1'
0,. 

9990 110

9771 FURNITURE 8` FIXTURES 0. 00 0, 00 270, 00 76, 00

TOTAL WATER DEPT DEPRECIATION EXP 0. 00 0. 00 155, 450. 00 155, 450, 00 155, 450. 00 3391 0111
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GOUETNNENTAI. FINANCIA1. MIEN
TOHN OI' WINI.

2110/ 90 10: 30: 45 Expendihre Guideline GL520R- 004, 40
LEVEL. OF DETAIL 1. 0 TNFU 3. 0 FUF THE FIJIANS)  JUL 01, 1996 . TNFOUGN JUN 30, 1997

ANIMAL ACT qTU POSTED ACT ? TO POSTED TENA! NIUG
FEVISLO ENCUNEEFF.D AND IN FROCESS AND 1N FFOCESS PILAW ECT

75 HATEF EI! TEFFFICE FANO

5155 REVOLVING FUNDS
4031 IIIfIILAND LAIC STATE iEINF 450, 024. 00 0. 00 449, 572. 23 449, 572. 23 451. 77 99 -----
TOTAL; REVOLVING 11.1005 450, 024. 00 0. 00 449, 572. 23 449, 572. 23 451. 77 93

5359 STECIAI. FEVOLV1NG FUND

22033   (' FOSS CONNECTION CONTFOL FF0 4, 550. 00 0. 00 2, 340. 00 2, 610. 00 1, 940. 00 57     —
TU1A1.: SPECIAL REVOLVING FUND 4, 550. 00 0. 00 2, 340, 00 2, 610. 00 1, 940. 00 57

TOTAL: NATEF ENTEFFFISE FUND 1, 795, 600. 39 0. 00 54, 124. 06 098, 310. 75 097, 361. 64 50  -••---   •
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BOARD OF ASSESSORS
Bqf

1997 was a very busy year for the Board ofAssessors, as it Assistant Assessor since 1992, was appointed as Chief Assessor

was a recertification year. The triennial certification is state man-      in July, 1997. Ms. Robbins is a tireless dedicated asset to the

dated and provides an accurate picture of value within the corn-      office, the community and to the Mass. Assessors Association,

munity. Sales data from the preceding year is analyzed, neigh-      of which she is an education committee member.

borhoods are reviewed and then the Board of Assessors, the of-
fice staff and Vision Appraisal Technologies, the Assessor' s ap-     The Board of Assessors also wishes to extend its appre-

praisal company, formulate new values as indicated by the analy-      dation to Senior Clerks, Kathleen Mullineaux and Joan Dooley,

sis. The State reviewed the data and certified the new values by and Data Collector Arthur H. Marshall for their knowledge, abili-

November, 1997.  
ties and service to the public. As we begin another year, the Board
of Assessors and its staff will continue to make the office more

The Board of Assessors is grateful to the Chief Assessor,      efficient. The Board and its staff will continue to serve the com-

the office staff and the support staff of Vision Appraisal Tech-      munity in a professional manner,

nologies for such a monumental task completed in such a timely
manner.       

Respectfully submitted,

Mr. John Robbins was re- elected to the Board of Asses-  
Donna L. Putt, Chairman

sots in May, 1997. Mrs. Donna L. Putt was elected Chairman
Fred L. Pjischner, Clerk

with Mr. Fred Pfischner serving as Clerk. Ms. Deborah Robbins,  
John Robbins

For the year ending December 31, 1996

TOTAL AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED:    16, 568, 365.54
Total appropriations to be raised by taxation

Total appropriations to be taken from available funds
544,621. 86

Total educational offsets
15, 593 00

Fiscal 1998

County Assessments:     49.780.00

County Tax
49,780.00

State Assessments:

Motor Vehicle Excise Bills 2,640.00

Mass Bay Transportation 213, 674,00

Air Pollution Control Dist.  2,363•00

Met Area Planning Council 2,027,E

Mosquito Control Project 19, 012,00
239,716.

00Totalli0,0i/0 00

Overlay of Current Year
S16, 568,365.54

Total Amount to be raised

Estimated Receipts and other Revenue Sources:
1998 Fiscal Year Receipts as
certified on Cherry Sheet 3, 343,371. 00

Motor Vehicle& Trailer Ext,     778,902.00

Licenses& Permits 141, 547.00

Fines& Forfeits 55, 147.00

Penalties& Interest on

taxes& excise
58,610.00

Charges for service- water
0-
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Other Charges for Services 0-
Charges for Services-
Trash Disposal 167,550.00
Fees 14,957.00
Rentals 0-

Other Departmental Revenue 44 469.00
Investment Income 146,469.00
In Lieu of Tax Payments 8,404.00
Refunds& Reimbursements 0-

Total
4,759,426.00

Amount to be taken from available funds
for particular purpose and to reduce
the Tax Rate 0-

Total Estimated Receipts and Available
Funds

6,504,954. 11

Net amount to be raised by Taxation on Property 10,063,411. 43

TOTAL RECEIPTS FROM ALL SOURCES 16,568, 365.54

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENTS AND ABATEMENTS

Total

Exemptions
Total Granted
Exemptions Clause TotalNo. of Total Granted 37A, 17D, 18 AbatementsYear Dwellings Valuation Veterans 41A& 41C Processed

1997 2,704 594,221, 800 57 20 161996 2, 659 537,368, 800 61 20 291995 2,631***     507,492,700 59 26 481994 2,726 542,210,900 57 35 471993 2,619 540, 134, 100 57 331992 2,548 529,677,990 57
72

33 701991 2,424 519,317,777 61 31 481990 2,382 602, 174,559 63 351989 2,350 590,617,491 66
49

42 841988 2,320***     574,200,821
1987 2,948

32
291, 144,028 65 38 24

DUE TO REVALUAIION FOR FY1989, NO ABATEMENTS HAD BEEN PROCESSED PRIOR TO PRINTING:
DECREASE OF DWELLINGS DUE TO RE-CLASSIFICATION OF VACANT LAND.

Total Valuation:

Real Estate 620,511, 600.00
Personal Property 9,633, 136.00

Total
630, 144,736.00

Fiscal Year 1998 Tax Rate per Thousand:
Total:     

15. 97

130

IP



FINANCES

MOTOR VEHICLE ASSESSMENT AND ABATEMENTS

Motor Vehicle

No. of Excise Total Total Comm.

Excise Tax Money Abatements Amount Value of

Years Bills Committed Processed Abated Vehicles

1997 8,655 839,485. 12 602 40,891. 41 33, 579,400

1996 8, 688 776, 163.48 433 37,027.65 31, 046,520

1995 8,775 750,292.63 598 40, 166.77 30,0x1, 720

1994 8,458 697, 827. 98 602 35, 306.92 27, 913, 119

1993 8, 394 617,048. 77 569 34,041. 43 24,683, 951

1992 8, 012 549, 355. 76 356 20,873. 14 24,721, 360

1991 7, 951 598, 036.22 350 14,729.43 25, 321, 045

1990 7,883 556, 948.20 452 23,444.40 24,928,263

1989 7, 731 510,692.49 468 20,655. 27 22, 140, 224

1988 7, 124 531, 365. 38 475 18, 517.42 22,309,750

1987 7,053 442,792.20 727 35, 160.38 21, 143, 510
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TOWN MEETING WARRANT

Norfolk, ss.

To either Constable in the Town of Norfolk, in said County:

GREETINGS:

You are required in the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to notify and
warn the inhabitants of Norfolk, qualified to vote in Town affairs, residing in Precincts
1, 2, and 3, to assemble in the designated polling places in the Norfolk Public School,
MacBride Auditorium, 70 Boardman Street, Norfolk, Massachusetts, on Tuesday, the
5th day of May, 1998, at 7: 00 a. m., for the election of town officers under ARTICLE

1, of the annual town meeting; and thence to meet at 7: 30 p. m. on Tuesday, May 26,
1998, at the King Philip High School. 201 Franklin Street. Wrentham., MA 02093, for
the adjourned business session of the annual town meeting, then and there to act on
the following articles commencing with Article 2; viz:

ARTICLE 1 Submitted by Town Clerk
To choose by ballot the following officers: viz, one Moderator for a one year term; one
Selectman for a three year term; one Assessor for a three year term; one Board of
Health member for a three year term; one Board of Health member to complete a one
year unexpired term;  one Library Trustee for a three year term;  one Water

Commissioner for a three year term; two Planning Board members for a three year
term;  two Recreation Commissioners for a three year term;  one Norfolk School

Committee member for a three year term; one Housing Authority member for a five
year term; and two Constables for a, three year term.

ARTICLE 2 Submitted by Personnel Board
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Personnel Bylaw by changing the
classification schedule as recommended; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 3 Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to fix the salary and compensation of all elected officers
of the Town as provided for by Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 41, Section

108; and to authorize any board or committee to employ its members for additional
salary or compensation, and to fix the salary or compensation thereof•, and further to
see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from any
available source of funds, borrow or bond, to defray the departmental and incidental
expenses of the Town not otherwise provided for, for the fiscal year commencing on
July 1, 1998; or take any other action relative thereto.  ( Budget)

ARTICLE 4 Submitted by Water Commissioners
To see what sum of money the Town will vote to transfer from Water Department
revenue to fund the Water Department, maintenance, and operating expenses; or take
any other action relative thereto.
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ARTICLE 5
Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available
source of funds, borrow or bond pursuant to any applicable statute to fund capital and
other expense items; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 6
Submitted by Conservation Commission

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, borrow or bond, or transfer from
any available source of funds, or borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum of

money for the purpose of purchasing for conservation purposes, by eminent domain
or negotiated purchase, or otherwise a parcel of land off Marshall Street in Norfolk,
identified on Assessors'  Map 19,   Block 69,  Lots 55 and 59,  consisting of
approximately 62 acres more or less, together with all flowage and other rights and
easements, currently owned by the Estate of Ernest V. and Esther M. Lind; that said
land be conveyed to the Town of Norfolk under the provisions of Massachusetts
General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 8c, and as it may hereafter be amended, and otherMassachusetts

statutes relating to conservation, to be managed and controlled by theConservation Commission of Norfolk,  and that the Conservation Commission be
authorized to file on behalf of Norfolk any and all applications deemed necessary for
grants and/ or reimbursements from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts deemed
necessary under the Self-Help Act (Chapter 132A, Section 11) and/ or any others in
any way connected with the scope of this Article, and that the Town of Norfolk and
the Conservation Commission be authorized to enter into all agreements and execute
any and all instruments as may be necessary on behalf of the Town of Norfolk to
affect said purchase; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 7
Submitted by Cemetery Commission

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available
source of funds or borrow pursuant to any applicable statute a sum of money to install
electrical service to the Veteran' s Monument at the Norfolk Cemetery, to install a
podium at the Veteran' s Monument, to install fencing around the Veteran' s Section,
and to provide for engineering services therefore; or to take any other action relativethereto.

ARTICLE 8
Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds
a sum of money for legal and other consulting services, including costs incidental
thereto, associated with the negotiation of Norfolk' s cable television franchise license;or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 9
Submitted by Planning Board and Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available
source of funds or borrow pursuant to any applicable state statute, a sum of money
to hire a consultant to assist the Town in Growth Management Planning or take anyother action relative thereto.
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ARTICLE 10 Submitted by Water Commissioners
To see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow pursuant to
any applicable statute, or transfer from Water Department revenue for a proposed new
water tank siting location, study and report; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 11 Submitted by Water Commissioners

To see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow pui suant to
any applicable statute, or transfer from Water Department revenue for Engineering
Services for the first phase for a new source approval in compliance with D. E. P.
procedures; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 12 Submitted by Petition

To see if the Town will vote to amend Norfolk Bylaws Article VII, Land Use and
Resource Protection, by adding a new Section III, entitled " Overhead Wires and Poles"
in accordance with General Laws Chapter 166 Section 22D requiring utilities to
remove poles and overhead wires and associated overhead structures which are
located upon, along or across any public way or ways within all or part of the Town
of Norfolk, or take any other action in relation thereto.

ARTICLE 13 Submitted by Petition
To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to the Annotated Laws of Massachusetts,
Chapter 166, Sections 22D through 25, to instruct the Utility Companies ( Electric,
Telephone and Cable) to bury their wires underground through town center.  This area
is defined on Map 14 and includes sections of Main St., Union St., and Rockwood Rd.

The cost of this project will be paid by all utility users, as a percentage of their utility
bills.

ARTICLE 14 Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will choose any committee, or to hear or act on the report of any
committee, towh officer, or to instruct any committee or town officer; or take any
other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 15 Submitted by Highway Superintendent

To See if the Town will vote to accept and authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter
into contracts for the expenditure of Chapter 90 funds allocated by the

Commonwealth for the construction, reconstruction, or improvements of public roads
and other improvements within the Town, as requested by the Selectmen, and to
authorize the Treasurer to borrow or bond, pursuant to any applicable statute in
anticipation of reimbursement; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 16 Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to release or acquire
by gift,  eminent domain or otherwise such easements as may be necessary for
drainage purposes and the laying out of public ways, and to raise and appropriate, or
transfer from any available source of funds, a sum of money for said purpose; or take
any other action relative thereto.
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ARTICLE 17
Submitted by Board of SelectmenTo see if the Town will vote to acquire by gift, eminent domain or otherwise land or

easements for open space or passive recreational purposes; or take any other actionrelative thereto.

ARTICLE 18
Submitted by Town Administrator

To see if the Town will vote pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,
Section 53E 1/ 2. To authorize the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of paying theexpenses of snow removal from King Philip Regional school property within the Townof Norfolk; .

aid fund to be credited with receipt of fees charged for this service under
the authority and direction of the Board of Selectmen, such expenditures not to exceed5, 000 in fiscal year 1999; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 19

Submitted by Town AdministratorTo see if the Town will vote pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,Section 53E  'A, 
to authorize the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of payingexpenses related to the collection of parking ticket violations; said fund to be creditedwith receipts collected not to exceed $ 1, 000 in fiscal year 1999 under the directionof the Board of Selectmen; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 20

Submitted by Planning BoardTo see if the Town will vote to reauthorize Planning Board Revolving Fund pursuantto Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E %2 from which to receive anddisburse subdivision performance inspection fees as may be established
by

thePlanning Board for
services of Town Departments in the inspection and

approvalY
subdivisions and to authorize the Planning Board to pay such fees collected to theTown of Norfolk General Fund in an amount not to exceed $ 40,000 durin fiscal ear1999; or take any other action relative thereto.       g y

ARTICLE 21
Submitted by Water CommissionTo see if the Town will vote to authorize the use of a revolving fund

ers

toM. G. L. Chapter 44, Section 531~ 1/2 for the purpose of a Department of

Envpursuant
alProtection Cross Connection Control Program, said revolving fund shall be creditedwith receipts from Inspection Services under the authority and direction of the Boardof Water Commissioners, such expenditures not to exceed $ 5, 000 and to see what

sum of money the Town will appropriate from available funds to establish the revolvinfund; or take any other, action relative thereto,  g

ARTICLE 22
Submitted by Water ComTo see if the Town

will vote to accept all State and Federal G
antsynn

ands
reimbursements for the Water Department which do not require matching funds fromthe Town or any representative or agency thereof, and will not obligate or encumber

any resident of the Town of Norfolk without a town meeting, or take any other actionrelative thereto.
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ARtICLE 23 Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept any monies
received through grants applied for by various Town Departments/ Boards; or take any
other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 24 Submitted by Conservation Commission
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Norfolk Wetland Protection Bylaw by adding
the words   " or Riverfront Area"  following the word  " estuary"  in Section 2,

JURISDICTION of Article VII, Section 2 of the Town of Norfolk Bylaws.

ARTICLE 25 Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to advertise in a local
newspaper and sell at public sale from time to time, as it may deem in the best interest
of the Town, any and all lands or portions thereof which the Town has acquired or
may acquire as Tax Title land, so called, such sales to be made on behalf of the

inhabitants of the Town of Norfolk, and to authorize the Selectmen to expend from the
proceeds of such sale the necessary costs of recording fees, documentary stamps, and
auctioneer' s fees, if required; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 26 Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to grant the Board of Selectmen permission to sell surplus
property of the Town, exclusive of buildings and land, no longer needed by the Town;
or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 27 Submitted by Town Administrator

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from any available
source of funds,  a sum of money to pay unpaid bills of a prior year pursuant to
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 64; or take any other action relative
thereto.

ARTICLE 2 Submitted by Town Administrator

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from any available
source of funds, sums of money to be added to various departmental budgets and
appropriations for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 1998; or take any other action
relative thereto.

ARTICLE 29 Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public way and to accept all easements.
related thereto, Liberty Lane, formerly known as a portion of North Street, as approved
by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with a plan drawn by Color & Colantonio

Engineers of Norweli, Massachusetts, a copy of which is on file In the Office of the
Town Clerk; or take any other action relative thereto.

137



4

ARTICLE 30
Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public way and to accept all easements
related thereto, Independence Drive, formerly known as North Street Connector, as
approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with a plan drawn by Coler
Colantonio Engineers of Norwell,  Massachusetts, a copy of which is on file in the
Office of the Town Clerk; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 31
Submitted by Planning BoardTo see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land, or take by eminent domain

pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as public ways the
following streets in Noon Hill Estates as shown a definitive plan of " Noon Hill Estates"
by McIntyre and Johnson, Inc. dated September 1965, and further described by Judith
Nitsch Engineering Company and approved and laid out by the Board of Selectmen:
A.      Chicatabut Avenue, a distance of 1, 920 +/- feet, from Fruit Street to cul de sacB.       Seneca Street, a distance of 370 +/- feet, from Noon Hill Avenue to Medfield

Town Line
C.      Pennacook Street, a distance of 1, 500 +/- feet, from Massachusetts Avenue

to Chicatabut Avenue
D.      Hemlock Lane ( formerly Nipmuck Street), a distance of 300 + 1- feet, from Noon

Hill Avenue to Medfield Town Line
E.       Cowesit Avenue,  a distance of 900  + 1-  feet,  from Noon Hill Avenue to

Naugatuck Avenue
P.       Masconemet Avenue, a distance of 1, 150 +/- feet, from Fruit Street to. CowesitAvenue
G.      Naugatuck Avenue, a distance of 1, 520 +/ feet, from Fruit Street to cul de sac

and to accept all utility and drainage easements as shown on the plan entitled " NoonHill Estates"  and further to see what sum of money the Town will raise and
appropriate, borrow, or transfer from available funds for damages, fees, and expenses;
or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 32
Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public wayLantern Lane, a distance of 1, 230  +/- feet, from Lafayette Lane to the cul de sac
together with the utility,and drainage easements as laid out and approved by the Board
of Selectmen together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out and
approved by the Board of Selectmen4n accordance with the acceptance plan as drawnby Yunits Engineering Co., Inc. of Holbrook, Massachusetts 02343 dated October 12,
1979 and further to see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate,
borrow or transfer from available funds for damages, fees, and expenses; or take anyother action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 33
Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way
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Lafayette Lane,  a distance of 310  +/- feet, from a Lafayette Lane cul de sac to

Lantern Lane together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out and approved
by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance plan as drawn by Yunits I
Engineering Co., Inc. of Holbrook, Massachusetts 02343 dated October 12, 1979 and Z
to see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer
from available funds for damages, fees, and expenses; or take any other action relative I

thereto.

ARTICLE 34 Submitted by Planning Board 1
To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain u
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,
Lafayette Lane, a distance of 543+/- feet, from Valentine Drive to the cut de sac on

Lafayette Lane together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out and 1

approved by the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance plan as drawn
by Stavinski Engineering,  Associates,  Inc.  of Wrentham,  Massachusetts dated

September 21 ,  1989 and to see what sum .of money the Town will raise and
appropriate, borrow, or transfer from available funds for damages, fees, and expenses;
or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 35 Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,
Valentine Drive, a distance of 1, 145 +/- feet, from Freedom Trail to Valentine Drive,

together with the utility and drainage easements as approved by the Board of
Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance plan as drawn by Stavinski Engineering,
Associates, Inc. of Wrentham, Massachusetts dated October 20, 1989 and to see
what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer from
available funds for' damages, fees, and expenses; or take any other action relative
thereto.      

ARTICLE 36 Submitted by Planning Board J

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way i

Freedom Trail, a distance of 3, 765 + 1- feet, from Everett Street to the end of the cul
de sac together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out and approved by

x

the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance plan as drawn by Stavinski i

Engineering, Associates, Inc, of Wrentham, Massachusetts dated March 7, 1989 and
to see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer
from available funds for damages, gees, and expenses; or take any other action relative
thereto.

ARTICLE 37
Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a giftof land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,
Country Squire Drive, a distance of 654 +/- feet, from Valentine Drive to the end of

the cul de sac together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out and
approved by the Board of Selectmen as shown on the subdivision plan entitled,      
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COBBLE KNOLL ESTATES"  drawn by Norwood Engineering,  Inc.  of Norwood,Massachusetts dated July 14,  1971 and to see what sum of money the Town will
raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer from available funds for damages, fees, andexpenses;  or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 38
Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way, OldLiberty Lane Ixormerly " future road" and Liberty Lane), a distance of 300  +/- feet,
from Freedom Trail to the Walpole Town Line together with utility and drainage
easements as laid out and approved by the Board of Selectmen as shown on thesubdivision plan entitled,  " LAFAYETTE ESTATES, EXTENSION 3" drawn by YunitsEngineering of Holbrook,  Massachusetts 02343 dated September 9, 1980 and to see
what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer from
available funds for damages, fees, and expenses; or take any other action relativethereto.

ARTICLE 39
Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,Chickadee Drive, a distance of 1, 255  + 1- feet, from King Street to the cul de sac
together with the Utility and drainage easements as laid out and approved by the Boardof Selectmen as shown on the subdivision plan entitled,  " PINE BROOK ESTATES"
drawn by Landmark Engineering of New England, Inc. of Wrentham, Massachusetts
dated March 19, 1982 and revised June 2, 1982 and to see what sum of money theTown will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer from available funds for damages,fees, and expenses; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 40

Submitted by Planning BoardTo see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,Sparrow Road, a distance of 692 +/- feet, from neat Robin Road to Chickadee Drivetogether with the utility and drainage easements as laid out by the Board of Selectmenas shown on the subdivision plan entitled,  " PINE BROOK ESTATES"  drawn byLandmark Engineering of New England, Inc. of Wrentham,

arch19, 1982 and revised June 2, 1982 and further to see what sum ofsmoney the
etts dated

Townn
will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer from available funds for damages, fees,and expenses;  or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 41

Submitted by Planning Boar..To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,Eagle Drive, a distance of 960 + 1- feet, from Lawrence Street to Dead End, together
with the utility and drainage easements as laid out by f Selectmen inaccordance with the acceptance plan dated October 27, 1199 and

he Board

orevised June 7,1992 drawn by GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston,' Massachusetts andfurther to see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or
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transfer from available funds for damages, fees, and expenses; or take any other

action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 42 Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the. General Laws and further to accept as a public way,
Bretts Farm Road, a distance of 2, 556  +/- feet, from Lawrence Strcot to Dead End

together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out by the Board of Selectmen
in accordance with the acceptance plan dated October 27, 1989 and revised June 7,
1992 drawn by GLM Engineering Consultants, Inc. of Holliston, Massachusetts and
further to see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or
transfer from available funds for damages, fees, and expenses;   or take any other

action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 43 Submitted by Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land or take by eminent domain
pursuant to Chapter 79 of the General Laws and further to accept as a public way,
Cranberry Meadow Road, a distance of 1, 355+ 1- feet, from Lawrence Street to Dead

End and stub off of Cranberry Meadow Road, to be known as Eagle Drive Extension,
together with the utility and drainage easements as laid out by the Board of Selectmen
in accordance with the acceptance plan dated July 19, 1991 and to see what sum of
money the Town will raise and appropriate, borrow, or transfer from available funds
for damages, fees, and expenses;

and further to see if the Town will vote to accept a gift of land and easements or to
take, pursuant to Chapter Seventy-Nine of the General Laws, the unfinished portion
of the stub off of Cranberry Meadow Road, to be known as Eagle Drive Extension,
from the paved portion to property of William H. and Beverly J. Slattery as shown
on Sheet 2 of 2 of the plan entitled, " Acceptance Plan of Land of Cranberry

Meadow Road" in Norfolk, Mass dated July 19, 1991 and revised June 8, 1992
drawn by GLM Engineering Consultants, inc. of Houston, Massachusetts and as
described in documents entitled " Description Cranberry Meadow Road" and Drain
Easements. Said parcel containing the roadway between Lots 10 and 11 and all
easements as shown on said plan; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 44 Submitted by Advisory Board

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any source of
available funds, or otherwise provide for the Stabilization Fund pursuant to
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 40, Section 58; or take any other action
relative thereto.
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Hereof, fail not, but make due return of this warrant, with your doings thereon to
the Town Clerk, on or before the hour of said meeting.   Given under our hands and
seal of the Town of Norfolk on the 30th day of March, 1998, A. D.

NORE L   .••

BARD
OF SELECTMEN

s
Ira      .   t. a m. • .   Chairman

0
J.  n   . Czyz

1^-4-.4 g
seR.    iebf ' ed, Memberam r

A true copy, attest:
Town of Norfolk
Norfolk, ss

By virtue of this Warrant, I have notified and warned the legal voters of the Town of
Norfolk aforesaid to meet at the time and place and for the purposes specified in said
Warrant, by posting true and attested copies thereof in the Town Hall, and in at least
one public place in each of the three precincts, not less than seven ( 7) days at least
before the date of said meeting.

Constable

Date
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TOWN OF NORFOLK I
127th ANNUAL REPORT

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 1997

OUR TOWN
SCHOOLS:   H. Olive Day, Pre K-2

SETT
1678

Freeman/ Centennial, 3- 6

INSETTLED:       
1870 King Philip Regional Junior High, 7- 8

POPULATION: 9,20 King Philip Regional Senior High, 9- 12

MCI POPULATION:     2, 526 Tri County Vocational Reg. Technical School, 9- 12

AREA:   
15 Square Miles Norfolk County Agricultural School, 9- 12

LOCATION:     20 miles south of Boston, 22 miles north
of Providence, RI TRANSPORTATION:

BOUNDED BY:  Foxboro, Franklin, Medfield, Medway,  MBTA rail service daily to Boston, two taxi cab

Millis, Walpole, and Wrentham companies

ELEVATION:    220 feet
SENATORS IN CONGRESS:

VOTERS: 4,788

TAX RATE:      15. 97 per$ 1, 000 Edward M. Kennedy, JFK Federal Building, Room

VALUATION:    630, 144,736 409, Government Center, Boston, MA 02203

PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION:  94% Residential Tel.( 617) 565- 3170

3% Commercial

1% Industrial John F. Kerry, Transportation Building, Room 3220,
2% Personal 10 Park Plaza, Boston, MA 02116

100%  Tel.( 617) 565- 8519

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS: 2,669
FORM OF GOVERNMENT: Open Town Meeting, Board of Selectmen REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS:

Barney Frank— 4th Congressional District

PAVED ROAD MILES:  75 miles
2404 Rayburn Building, Washington, DC 2( 1515
District Office-- 29 Crafts Street, Newton, MA

AREA HOSPITALS:       
02158

Caritas Southwood Hospital, Norfolk
Tel.( 617) 332- 3920

1 Norwood Hospital, Norwood

Sturdy Memorial Hospital, Attleborough
STATE SENATOR:

Milford-Whitinsville Regional Hospital, Milford
Cheryl Jacques--- Norfolk, Bristol. Middlesex District

State House, Room 213C, Boston, MA 02133

CHURCHES:      
Tel.( 617) 722- 1555

The Federated Church of Norfolk- Interdenominational
St. Jude' s- Catholic

STATE REPRESENTATIVE:

Emmanuel- Baptist
JoAnne Sprague— Walpole 9th Norfolk District

State House, Room 237, Boston, MA 02133

LIBRARY:  139 Main Street, 528- 3380
Tel.( 617) 722-2305

HOURS OF OPERATION:

Monday 2 p.m.- 8: 30 p.m.   
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Tuesday 10 a. m.- 8: 30 p.m.
William P. O' Donnell

Wednesday 10 a. m.- 5 p.m.   
John M. Gillis

Thursday 10 a. m.- 8:30 p.m.
Peter H. Collins

Friday Closed
Tel.( 617) 461- 6105

Saturday 10 a. m.- 4 p.m.     
SHERIFF NORFOLK COUNTY:

ABSENTEE VOTING:   All Elections
John H. Flood

Tel.( 617) 329-3705

DOG LICENSES:

All licenses expire December 31. A dog must be licensed if over 6 DISTRICT ATTORNEY:

months old.
Jeffrey A. Locke

Fee:     Spayed female and neutered male$ 6.00
Tel( 617) 329-5440

Female& male$ 10.00

Late Fee After May 1$ 25. 00
Please show evidence of current rabies inoculation.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR REGISTRATION AS VOTERS:Must be 18 years of age, American born or naturalized. Registration: Monday through Thursday 8: 00 a. m. to 3: 00 p.m.; at Town
Clerk's office: Special evening sessions for registration of voters held by Registrars preceding elections.

TAX BILLS: Tax bills are paid quarterly. First payment is due on August first, second payment is due on November first, third payment is dueFebruary first and the fourth payment is due May first or thirty days from mailing of bill, whichever is latest. Motor vehicle excise bills
and water bills are due thirty days from date of issue.



Town Departments

Accountant/Finance Department
528- 5686

Animal Control
528- 4101

Board of Appeals
541- 8455

Assessors
528- 1120

Town Clerk
528- 1400

Tax Collector
520- 0058

Conservation Commission
541- 8455

Council on Aging
528- 4430

Finance Director
528- 3152

Fire Department( Information)  
528- 3207

Board of Health
528- 7747

Building Department
528- 5088

Highway Department
528- 4990

Library
528- 3380

Planning Board
528- 2961

Police Department( Information)
528- 3206

Recreation
520- 1315

Schools:

Superintendent' s Office
528- 1225

Freeman/ Centennial School
528- 1266

H. Olive Day 541- 5475
King Philip Regional High School 384- 1000
King Philip Regional Junior High School 541- 7324
Tri-County Reg. Vocational High School 528- 5400
Norfolk County Agricultural School 668- 0268

Selectmen/ Town Administrator
528- 1408

Treasurer
541 3984

Veteran' s Agent
520-7170

Water Department
528- 1412

POLICE/FIRE/AMBULANCE EMERGENCY
9. 1. 1

NO SCHOOL SIGNALS

ALL SCHOOLS
ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS ONLY

Fire Whistle blows at 6: 30 a.m.   Fire Whistle blows at 7: 00 a.m.

TRANSFER STATION HOURS

TO USE THE RECYCLING/TRANSFER STATION:
r

You must be a legal resident of Norfolk and must purchase a decal for your vehicle in order to use the Transfer Station.
RECYCLING/TRANSFER STATION

HOURS OF OPERATION
Wednesday:  Summer hours: 4/ 1- 9/ 30 11: 30 a.m.- 7: 00 p.m.

Winter hours: 10/ 1- 3/ 31 11: 30 a. m.- 5: 00 p.m.

Saturday:     8: 00 a.m.-4:00 p. m.

Decals may be purchased at the Transfer Station during normal hours of operation.
Closed Legal Holidays: If closed Tuesday for Holiday, will open Wednesday.

When a holiday falls on a clay when the Transfer Station is regularly open to the public, the area will be closed and will be open00
to the public the following day. In the event of severe weather( i.e. blizzard) the Transfer Station may be closed and will be open the0i

next regularly scheduled day— check with the local cable TV Station or the Highway Department.
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